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Letter from the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board

Dear All,

Grupa LOTOS deserves high marks for its performance in 2013. Despite the precarious economic climate and
challenging market conditions, the Company was able to generate operating profit and effectively
deleverage its business. Even more importantly, it was successful in the consistent pursuit of its strategy to
build Grupa LOTOS' value and improve Poland's energy security. Together with Grupa Azoty, the Company
also made the first step towards embarking on a major petrochemical project.

Particularly worthy of note is the consistency with which Grupa LOTOS delivered on its strategic objectives — it
was steadily increasing its own crude oil production, maintained robust competitiveness of its refining
business by steadily improving the refinery's efficiency, enhanced its market position — on the market of both
motor fuel (an 8.5% share in retail sales) and aviation fuel — and was gradually reducing its debt (now at 62%
of equity). Grupa LOTOS boasts the sixth highest sales revenue in Central Europe, and fifth highest in Poland.

The growing value of the LOTOS brand, driven both by business efforts and the long-term corporate social
responsibility (CSR) strategy, is also to be appreciated. This responsible and transparent approach of Grupa
LOTOS towards various stakeholder groups is cited as a paragon of modern business practices. The 2013—
2015 Effective and Rising Programme, which opens new growth prospects for Grupa LOTOS in the medium
and long term, is yet another example of the Board's ability to explore and successfully implement original
and innovative solutions, improving the overall operating efficiency of both the Company and the LOTOS
Group. The programme focuses on key investment projects and on restructuring the LOTOS Group in those
areas where this would make business sense. By successfully delivering on both these objectives, Grupa LOTOS
has been able to improve its efficiency and competitiveness.
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Essential to securing the Company's future growth is stable employment and a high level of professional
competence and experience of its Board Members and the management staff of its subsidiaries. This creates
a positive work atmosphere across all levels — from managers to lower-tier staff. Grupa LOTOS employees are
visibly proud to work for the Company and deeply committed to its further growth. This combination of the
rational and the emotional in corporate management is a rare and extremely valuable asset.

Given the consistently implemented strategy, highly professional management staff and dedication of
employees, | am convinced that the future of Grupa LOTOS will bring further dynamic growth of its value and
market shares. Grupa LOTOS will remain a robust and reliable presence in Poland's economy, a driver of its
modern and sustainable growth.

Yours faithfully,

hiedws Uwallo

Wiestaw Skwarko
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Grupa LOTOS
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Letter from the President of the Board

Dear All,

Itis with great pleasure and immense satisfaction that | hereby present to you the financial statements of
Grupa LOTOS for 2013.

This document clearly shows that Grupa LOTOS is a modern, vertically integrated corporation with a sound
financial standing and firm market position, which by consistently pursuing its strategy can grow strongly
even under the most adverse conditions while respecting the principles of sustainable development and
corporate social responsibility..

Last year's macroeconomic landscape, both in Poland and globally, was unusually complex. While taking its
toll on the economy at large, the long-running crisis affected customer and consumer purchasing decisions,
including those related to liquid fuels. It was a difficult period for the market, with strong downward
pressures on prices on the one hand, and dwindling margins on the other. In such an environment, only the
best managed companies have a chance for growth. I am happy to say that Grupa LOTOS has proved to be
one of them. In 2013, it delivered a robust performance, providing a very good foundation for 2014. Our
motto is ‘Open to the future’, to which | can also add ‘We can build that future’.

Grupa LOTOS stands on a solid financial footing and manages its liquidity in an efficient manner. In 2013, we
repaid another portion of the debt incurred to finance the 10+ Programme and meet other needs, bringing
down our net debt position by PLN 580m year on year.
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At the same time, we generated just under PLN 28.6bn in revenue, with operating profit coming in at PLN
146m and net profit at approximately PLN 40m. Last year was a tough one for the global oil industry, with
fierce competition on liquid fuel markets, and crude prices flat, but still high, ranging between USD 100 and
USD 110 per barrel. The availability of cheaper commodities in the US had an adverse effect on exports,
especially exports of gasoline to North America, which weighed on the performance of many European
refineries. Other factors behind the performance of Grupa LOTOS included record low refining margins and
oil product prices. As for the Polish market, it suffered an overall downturn and weaker demand for liquid
fuels, reflecting a slower rate of GDP growth and the grey market's activity.

A powerful response to these hardships was the 2013-2015 Effective and Rising Programme, announced in
the spring of last year, which places a strong focus on key projects driving the Company's value and on the
LOTOS Group's restructuring effort.

The implementation of the Programme is inextricably tied to the process of building Poland's energy security.

A vital element of this process is access to oil from own deposits. Last year our upstream segment operations
gained a significant growth momentum. Due to the closure of Heimdal package transaction on the
Norwegian Continental Shelf we doubled our hydrocarbon production volumes. We also stepped up
exploration and production activities in the Baltic Sea, which we think may hold 30 million tonnes of
hydrocarbons.

In the retail area, we are particularly proud of the continued brisk growth of our LOTOS service station chain
and the expanding market share of our retail franchise. As at the end of 2013, the LOTOS chain comprised
439 service stations, an impressive rise on the 324 stations operated in 2010. The LOTOS Optima chain is
growing even faster — it began market expansion in 2011 with 50 retail outlets and closed 2013 with 151
stations. These figures have earned our service station chain the status of the fastest-growing retail chain in
Poland for another yearin a row.

A great source of satisfaction is the increased presence of Grupa LOTOS in the aviation fuels market. LOTOS-
Air BP Polska, a recently established joint venture, launched operations at Pyrzowice airport in Katowice in
January of this year, and also provides wing-tip supplies of Jet A1 fuel at airports in Warsaw, Krakow and
Gdansk. Its recently added accounts include Wizz Air, one of the top three carriers operating in Poland.

Our accomplishments in the upstream, marketing and production areas do not relieve us from our social
responsibilities, which we see as particularly important. We take great pride in our various CSR projects and
initiatives, which deliver outstanding results and are widely appreciated. The best and most relevant example
is the 'In Search for the Champion’s Successors' programme, organized jointly by Grupa LOTOS and the Polish
Ski Association, which gave the nation Kamil Stoch, two-time gold medalist at the recent Winter Olympics in
Sochi, Russia. | can safely say that it is Grupa LOTOS and its partners that may take the credit for creating an
innovative model of sports sponsorship, held as an example of transparency, legal compliance and
effectiveness.

With the state-of-the-art technologies deployed as part of the 10+ Programme, our refinery in Gdansk ranks
among the most advanced facilities of its kind in the world, as confirmed by Solomon Associates, an
international opinion leader in refinery benchmarking.
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Dear All,

Well advanced implementation of the Effective and Rising Programme makes us feel positive and
enthusiastic about the coming years. When majority thinks how to survive the present time, we know how to
win the future. We are well prepared for change and know how to build a strong position of LOTOS.

In 2014, we are bound to undergo significant organizational, management and capital transformation, and
we will carry on multiple tasks and investment programs aiming to improve the efficiency and effectiveness
of the organization. This will definitely strengthen Grupa LOTOS market position, and deliver value to the
shareholders and the joy of participating in a very interesting economical process to our employees.

We believe that we implement a very serious development programme of the Polish economy substantial
part for the benefit of us all - Gdansk, Pomerania, Poland.

Inspiring and challenging future is ahead. We will do our best to ensure full satisfaction of our shareholders
with our business value growth.

With kindest regards,

e Tt

Pawet Olechnowicz
President of the Board
Chief Executive Officer
Grupa LOTOS
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Organization
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This 2013 Integrated Annual Report provides an overview of the activities of the LOTOS Group (“the LOTOS
Group”), with a particular focus on the LOTOS Group's parent entity — Grupa LOTOS S.A. (“Grupa LOTOS", “the
Company” or "we").

Grupa LOTOS is one of Europe’s largest and most productive oil companies.
In terms of revenue generated in 2012, it is second of the 500 largest companies in Poland, and sixth among
the 500 largest companies in Central and Eastern Europe.

Grupa LOTOS shares have been listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange since June 2005. Since November 2009,
Grupa LOTOS shares have also been listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange's RESPECT Index of socially
responsible companies.

The LOTOS Group employs almost five thousand people in Poland and abroad, and the high quality of our HR
policy was confirmed last year with the 'Best Employer 2013' and the '"Human Resources Management
Leader' awards.

*s*RESPECT

Index

L) BESTEMFLO'YER 2013
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LOTOS Group workforce structure by key companies.
As at December 31st 2013

Grupa LOTOS 5.A.

LOTOS Petrobaltic S.A.

LOTOS Asfalt Sp. z 0.0, = .
S Z R ~ LOTOS Kolej Sp. z 0.0.

LOTOS Serwis Sp. z o.o.
LOTOS OIL 5.A.

Apart from Grupa LOTOS (the parent entity and operator of the refinery in Gdansk), the LOTOS Group

comprises 15 other companies operating under the LOTOS name. Two of them are based outside Poland, in
Lithuania and Norway.

Territory covered by the LOTOS Group's operations.

Norwegian
Sea

Norway

North Sea Baltic

Poland

Our activities contribute not only to the development of communities in the regions where we are present,

but also to the growth of public revenue. In 2013, we paid a total of PLN 12,571,938 thousand in taxes to the
Polish state budget.
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Statement by Mieczystaw Struk

, , Business activity brings

measurable benefits to our
region in form of jobs created
by companies and financial
contribution made by them
through taxes. The impact of
LOTOS, however, goes far
beyond that, the best
example of that impact being
the 10+ Programme, the
largest CAPEX project in this
part of Europe.

Mieczystaw Struk
Marshal of the Pomorskie Voivodeship

Marshal of the Pomorskie Voivodeship

Business activity brings measurable benefits to our region in
form of jobs created by companies and financial contribution
made by them through taxes. The impact of LOTOS, however,
goes far beyond that, the best example of that impact being
the 10+ Programme, the largest CAPEX project in this part of
Europe.

The Pomorskie Voivodeship* Development Strategy 2020 is the effect of
analyzing the strong and weak points of our region, with the aim of aiding
overcoming barriers and undertaking appropriate initiatives to suit the changing
reality. However, in order to meet the objectives defined in it, it is necessary for us
to initiate social dialogue and cooperation, which given the low level of social
trust in Poland poses a major challenge to us. That is why the activity of Polish
businesses is so important here, and Grupa LOTOS serves as a perfect example of
a company, which, on the one hand, contributes significantly to the development
of the national economy while being a responsible neighbour and a committed
representative of our region, on the other hand.

We are well aware that the cooperation of the local government with business is
the key to successful development of the Pomerania region. Therefore, all the
more so we appreciate the fact that LOTOS becomes engaged in and strategically
implements initiatives in areas which are challenging for us. At the same time, |
feel additional satisfaction knowing that the Company substantively supports
Pomeranian higher education institutions, leveraging the potential of the
cooperation between the academic community and business. Equally important
is the Company's contribution to environmental investments and initiatives
aimed at preserving the biodiversity of the Baltic Sea.

* Pomorskie Voivodeship is the official name; herein: the Province of Gdansk.
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Business mode|

The LOTOS Group's strategy is designed to strengthen its position as a strong, innovative and efficient
business that plays a major role in ensuring national energy security. Our operations consist in crude oil
production and processing, as well as wholesale and retail sale of petroleum products. We strive to achieve
our business objectives with due care and respect for social responsibility and sustained development values.

The LOTOS Group value chain

r‘-! _!__ F3 -
% 'm b W » W -
- [# = L g
% I I R o gy
PRIMARY SALES AND SERVICE
PRODUCTION ) DOWNSTREAM LGS SECONDARY STATION CHAIN
' ' LOGISTICS MANAGEMENT
£ 3

SUPRODTT proCesses

The top priority objective of the LOTOS Group's strategy for 2011-2015 is dynamic development of the
hydrocarbon exploration and production segment. The LOTOS Group produces crude oil in the Baltic Sea and
the Norwegian Continental Shelf. We also have access to onshore oil deposits in Lithuania.

s Produtts, semi-finished - ..
products and crude oil - 3/

: High-guality products
N and crude oil

: Al 3
Product sales to Narthdvestern A i
Europe and US : : : :
L 10 z : '
""""'"":- ................. '--u..,.”_”__'.””‘_ :E: ) i -
Qil supplies from Arab countries e L LT i e e 4 e Refinery, I-:_:gustucs
and the Morth Sea Rosmk\ \ Geanck and trade in Gdarnsk o
oy Schiwees __-—_'_N\‘- jmmz_\'r
B Fi::k .--"'-'Exis'cing Cruzhba pipeline
I'l.-?:“-..‘--‘. .--.‘-‘..l---‘_|-l"‘ -
*
""" semi-finished products LR
* Products
""" Crude oil

*MWE — Northwest Europe

In Poland, we manage the refinery in Gdarnsk. Our product range includes unleaded gasoline, diesel oil,
aviation fuel and heavy fuel oil. We also specialise in the production and sale of lubricating oils and bitumens.

Main product brands
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Main product brands

Dynaniic
LOTOSDYNAMIC 98 gasoline

LOTOS DYNAMIC DIESEL oil
LOTOSRED,dieseloilforheating purposes

1Z-40diesel oil
propane-butanelPG

Fuel products

(910108)  (wiowD AGROL S LOTOS Oil

CUE=Er TURDUS

INODUSTRIAL LUBRICANTS

Non-fuel products

Engine oils: LOTOSQuazar,LOTOSThermalControl,LOTOS Turdus,RGTrans,Agrol,Marinol
Industrial oils: Transmil,Hydromil,Remiz

Plasticisers: Quantilus

Bitumens: MODBIT

Petrochemical

products Xylenefraction

The LOTOS Group's main market is Poland, but our foreign sales are also on a steady rise. In 2013, exports
represented 33% of our total sales volume. (More information)

LOTOS Group sales by markets in thousand tonnes
2013. (%)
Dom estic sa les 6,258
Exportsales 3,082
Total 9,340

Il Domestic sales
M Export sales
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We export our products to 75 countries all over the world.

e

75 countries

Our chain of LOTOS brand service stations is the fourth largest in Poland. Through this chain, we offer
products and services in the premium segment, which also comprises motorway service stations. One third of
our stations operate in the economy segment, under the LOTOS Optima brand. Compared with its
competitors, LOTOS has the second fastest growing service station chain in Poland.

As at the end of 2013, our share in retail sales of fuels in Poland amounted to 8.5%.

LOTOS Premium stations LOTOS Optima stations

40 service stations I ;' /0 sewice stations .

B
- 21 - 30 service stations - 21 - 30 senvice stations
11 - 20 service stations 11 - 20 service stations
1

10 service stations 1 - 10 service stations
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Shareholder structure

Grupa LOTOS share capital Shareholder structure of Grupa Grupa LOTOS shareholder
structure by series. LOTOS as at the end of 2012 (%) structure from April 24th 2013 to
As at December 31st 2013 and the the date of this Report (%)

date of publication of this Report.

M State Treasury
Il series A M series B I State Treasury B ING OFE
I series C I Other shareholders Il Other shareholders

Geographical structure of minority
interests (%) !

Il Poland Il North America
Il Rest of Europe

UK and Ireland Il Asia
M Australia

T Based on the identified minority interests.

Grupa LOTOS share capital did not change from the value reported in 2012 and is divided into 129,873,362
fully paid-up ordinary shares with a par value of PLN 1 per share. Each share represents one vote at the
General Meeting and carries the right to dividend.

In 2012-2013 and until the date of this Report, the State Treasury held a total of 69,076,392 ordinary bearer
shares in Grupa LOTOS, representing 53.20% of its share capital and the same proportion of voting rights at
the Company’s General Meeting.

In 2012, no changes occurred in the main shareholder composition, which means that the remaining 46.81%
of share capital, thatis 60,796,970 shares, was in free float.

“14-
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On April 29th 2013, the Company was notified that as a result of the acquisition of Grupa LOTOS shares in
transactions on the Warsaw Stock Exchange, settled on April 24th 2013, the open-end pension fund ING
Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny increased its shareholding in the Company so that it exceeded the threshold of
5% of the total voting rights at the Company's General Meeting. (more information)

Share capital and voting rights at the General Meeting, held by Grupa LOTOS shareholders as at
December 31st 2013 and the date of publication of this Report

Shareholder Number of shares/voting rights  Par value of shares Share in share capital/total voting rights at the GM
StateTreasury 69,076,392 69,076,392 53.20%
INGOFE 6,893,079 6,893,079 530%
Othershareholders 53,903,891 53,903,891 4150%
Total 129,873,362 129,873,362 100.00%

Share in total voting rights
Entity Number of shares at the GM [%]* Share in share capital [%]

StateTreasury 69,076,392 78 53.20

* Based on data from the GM summoned for June 28th 2013.

In 2013, the Company did not issue any securities which would vest shareholders with any special control
powers. As at the date of this Report, we have no information on shareholders' agreements on joint exercise
of voting rights.

One share in Grupa LOTOS confers the right to one vote at its General Meeting (GM). However, pursuant to
the Company's Articles of Association (Statute of Grupa LOTOS), the voting rights of Company shareholders
are limited, so that none may exercise more than 10% of the total voting rights at the Company, as at the day
on which the General Meeting is held, with the proviso that for the purpose of determining the obligations of
buyers of significant shareholdings (provided for in the Act on Public Offering, Conditions Governing the
Introduction of Financial Instruments to Organised Trading and Public Companies of July 29th 2005, and the
Act on Insurance Activity of May 22nd 2003), such limitation of voting rights is deemed non-existent.
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Structure of the organization

As at December 31st 2013, the LOTOS Group comprised Grupa LOTOS (the Parent), and 22 production and

service companies, including:

® 13 direct subsidiaries of Grupa LOTOS,
® 9 indirect subsidiaries of Grupa LOTOS.

Composition of the LOTOS Group

Name

Registered

office

Business
profile

Grupa LOTOS's shareholding

Dec 31st2013

Dec 31st2012

Parent

Grupa LOTOSSA.

Direct fully-consolidated subsidiaries

LOTOS Petrobaltic S.A. (parent of another group: LOTOS
Petrobaltic Group)

LOTOS Paliwa Sp. z 0.0.

LOTOS Qil S.A.

LOTOS Asfalt Sp. z 0.0.

LOTOS Kolej Sp. z 0.0.

LOTOS Serwis Sp. z 0.0.

Gdansk

Gdansk

Gdansk

Gdansk

Gdansk

Gdansk

Gdansk

Production
and
processing of
refined
petroleum
products
(mainly fuels)
and their
wholesale

Acquisition of
crudeoiland
naturalgas
depositsand
hydrocarbon
production

Wholesale
and retailsale
offuelsand
lightfueloil,
management
oftheLOTOS
servicestation
chain

Production
andsaleof
lubricating oils
and
lubricants,
andsaleof
baseoils

Production
andsaleof
bitumens

Railway
transport

Maintenance
ofmechanical
and electric
operations
and
controlling
devices,
overhauland
repair services

Notapplicable

9998%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

Notapplicable

9996%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%



$yLOTOS

Integrated Annual Report 2013 - Grupa LOTOS S.A

Win the Future

LOTOS Lab Sp. zo.0.
LOTOS Straz Sp. z 0.0.

LOTOS Ochrona Sp. z 0.0.

LOTOS Terminale S.A.(z) (parent of another group: LOTOS
Terminale Group)

LOTOS Infrastruktura S.A. @)

LOTOS Gaz S.A. (in liquidation)
LOTOS Park Technologiczny Sp. z 0.0.
Indirect fully-consolidated subsidiaries

LOTO S Terminale Gro up

e RCEkoenergia Sp.zo.0.

e [OTOSBiopaliwa Sp.zo.o.

LOTOS Petro baltic Gro up

® [ OTOSExplorationand Production Norge AS

® Aphrodite Offshore ServicesN.V.

® EnergobalticSp.zo.0.

® B8Sp.zoo

Gdansk

Gdansk

Gdansk

Czechowice-
Dziedzice

Jasto

Krakéw

Jasto

Czechowice-
Dziedzice

Czechowice-
Dziedzice

Stavanger,
Norway

Curacao,
Netherlands
Antilles

Wiadystawowo

Gdansk

Laboratory

100.00%
analyses

100.00%

Fire services 100.00% 100.00%

Security

) 100.00%
services

100.00%

Storageand
distribution of
fuels

100.00% 100.00%

Storageand

distribution of
fuelsRenting

and 100.00%
operating of

own orleased

realestate

100.00%

Dormant 100.00% 100.00%

Dormant 100.00% 100.00%

Production
and
distribution of
electricity,heat
andgas

100.00% 100.00%

Production of
fattyacid
methylesters
(FAME)

100.00% 100.00%

Oilexploration
and
production
onthe
Norwegian
Continental
Shelf, provision
of services
related to oil
exploration
and
production

99989% (4) 99.96%

Sea transport
services
(dormant)

99989% (4) 99.96%

Production of
electricity,heat,
LPGand
naturalgas
condensate

99989% (4) 99.96%

Support

activitiesfor

extraction

and 99.989% (4.9
quarrying

operations

(dormant)
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® B8Spdtka zograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig BALTIC
SKA.

e Miiana Shipholding CompanyLtd.(parentofanother
group: Miliana Shipholding Group)

® TechnicalShip ManagementSp.zo.0. (parentof
anothergroup: TechnicalShip Management
Group)

® SPVBalticSpzo.o.

® Miiana ShipmanagementLtd.

e Milana Shipping Group Ltd.(spotka posiada swoja
grupe kapitatowg: GK Miliana Shipping Group
Ltd)

e BazaftNavigation CompanyLtd.

® GranitNavigation Company Ltd.

e KambrNavigation Company Ltd.

® St.Barbara Navigation CompanyLtd.

® PetrolcarusCompanyLtd.

® Petro AphroditeCompany Ltd.

® ABLOTOSGeonafta (spdtka posiada swoja grupe
kapitatowa: GK AB LOTOS Geonafta)

® UAB Genciu Nafta

® UAB Manifoldas

Gdansk

Nicosia,Cyprus

Gdansk

Gdansk

Nicosia,Cyprus

Nicosia,Cyprus

Nicosia,Cyprus

Nicosia,Cyprus

Nicosia,Cyprus

Nicosia,Cyprus

Nicosia,Cyprus

Nicosia,Cyprus

Gargzdai,
Lithuania

Gargzdai,
Lithuania

Gargzdai,
Lithuania

Exploration
and
production of
crudeoiland
naturalgas
(dormant)

Storageand
transportof

crudeoil,other

sea transport
services

Sea transport
support

a ctivities, ship
operation
advisory
services

Provision of
sea transport
and related
services

Provision of
sea transport
and related
services

Management
of own assets

Ship
chartering

Ship
chartering

Ship
chartering

Ship
chartering

Ship
chartering

Ship
chartering

Crudeoil
exploration
and
production,
driling services,
and purchase
andsaleof
crudeoil

Crudeoll
exploration
and
production

Crudeoll
exploration
and
production

99989 (4.6)

99989% 4)

19 (4)

99.98% ()

99.98% ()

99.98% ()

99.98% ()
99989% 4)
(4)

9998%

99989% (4)

99989% 4)

99989% 4)

99989% 4)

99989% 4)

9996%

9996%

9996%

9996%

9996%

9996%

9996 %

9996%

9996%

9996%

9996%

9996%

9996%



‘() LOTOS Integrated Annual Report 2013 - Grupa LOTOS S.A. Win the Future

Equity-accounted entities

Saleof
e LOTOS-AIrBPPolska Sp.zo.0.8) Gdansk aviation fuel 5000% (&) 100.00%
and logistics
services
LOTOS Petro baltic Gro up
Oiland gas
production
e BalticGasSp.zoo. Gdansk (upport g 990, (4.9) 99.96%
activitiesfor ol
andgas
production)
® Baltic Gasspotka zograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia i Crudeoiland (4,10)
WepdInicy so k Gdansk gas 8168% 9996%
P yspk production
Jednostki konsolidowane metoda proporcjonalna
GKABLOTOS Geo nafta
Crudeoil
e UABMiiosNafta Gargzdaj, exploration 4999% () 4998%
Lithuania and
production

(1) In 2013, Grupa LOTOS continued the squeeze-out of shares in LOTOS Petrobaltic S.A. Following the acquisition of shares in LOTOS
Petrobaltic S.A. as part of a squeeze-out, as at December 31st 2013 Grupa LOTOS held a 99.98% interest in the share capital of LOTOS
Petrobaltic S.A.

On July 30th 2013, the change of the company’s name from LOTOS Czechowice S.A. to LOTOS Terminale S.A. was registered.
3) On April 18th 2013, the change of the company’s name from LOTOS Jasfo S.A. to LOTOS Infrastruktura S.A. was registered.
(4)The shareholding changes described in item (1) above had an effect on the indirect equity interests held by Grupa LOTOS in the LOTOS

Petrobaltic Group entities.
©) On December 30th 2013, LOTOS Petrobaltic S.A. acquired 100% of the shares in B8 Sp. z 0.0. One of the objectives of the acquisition was
to create a vehicle for financing development of the B8 field.

On December 30th 2013, LOTOS Petrobaltic S.A. acquired a 99.5% interest in B8 Spotka z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoscig BALTIC spotka
komandytowo-akcyjna, and became a limited partner in the company. B8 Sp. z 0.0., holding 0.5% of the company shares, is a minority
shareholder and the general partner in the company. One of the objectives of the acquisition was to create a vehicle for the financing of
development of the B8 field.

On December 20th 2013, Technical Ship Management Sp. z 0.0. acquired a 100% interest in SPV Baltic Sp. z 0.0.

8) On November 25th 201 3, Grupa LOTOS sold to BP Europe SE 1,000 shares in LOTOS Tank Sp. z 0.0., representing 50% of LOTOS Tank Sp. z
0.0.'s share capital. The sale was connected with a joint venture agreement executed between Grupa LOTOS and BP Europa SE German Branch
on June 25th 2013, providing for the establishment of a new entity on the basis of LOTOS Tank Sp. z 0.0. (a Grupa LOTOS subsidiary), through
which the two partners could pursue joint operations in the aviation fuel market. On December 17th 2013, the change of the company's
name from LOTOS Tank Sp. z 0.0. to LOTOS-Air BP Polska Sp. z 0.0. was registered.

The sale by LOTOS Petrobaltic S.A. of a 50% interest in Baltic Gas Sp. z 0.0. to CalEnergy Resources Poland Sp. z 0.0. was registered on
April 9th 2013.

The presented ownership interest was determined based on the value of contributions made by individual partners relative to the sum of
all contributions as at December 31st 2013:

° Baltic GasSp.zo.0.(generalpartner) (0002% ),
° LOTOS Petroba ltic SA. (imited partner) (81.693%),
° CalEnergy ResourcesPoland Sp.zo.0.("CalEnergy”) (mited partner) (18.305% ).

Grupa LOTOS's indirect ownership interest in Baltic Gas spoétka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia i wspdlnicy sp. k. (a jointly-controlled entity)
is 81.68%.

Baltic Gas spdtka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia i wspdlnicy spotka komandytowa (“Baltic Gas”) is a partnership. The partnership
agreement defines the profit and loss sharing ratio, whereby Baltic Gas Sp. z 0.0. holds 0.001% share in profits and 100% share in losses,
LOTOS Petrobaltic S.A. holds 50.9995% share in profits, and CalEnergy holds 48.9995% share in profits. The respective percentage shares in
the total vote are not given, as any matters subject to the partners’ decision, as set forth in the partnership agreement, require unanimous
approval, or the partners are required to unanimously pass a resolution determining the procedure for deciding on other matters not specified
in the partnership agreement. For the purposes of the IFRS, Baltic Gas is an entity jointly-controlled by Grupa LOTOS.



S")I.OTOS Integrated Annual Report 2013 - Grupa LOTOS S.A Win the Future

Structure of the LOTOS Group. As at December 31st 2013

GRUPA LOTOS S.A.

EXPLORATION
MARKETING SEGMENT FINANCIAL SEGMENT OPERATIONAL SEGMENT AND PRODUCTION
SEGMENT
LOTOS LOTOS Park ()
LOTOS o X @ . LOTOS LOTOS 7
: Air BP Polsk: U f—  Technol 9 f— . 9 %
Paliwa Sp.z 0.0. 100% 5;2 0_0_0 ska  50% S;_CZ Zv(;.oglczny 100% Straz Sp.zo.0. 100% Petrobaltic S.A. 99,98%
| LOTOS LOTOS Gaz s.A. W | LOTOS Aphrodite Offshore ®
Asfaltsp.zoo.  100% in liquidation 100% Labsp.zo.0, 100% = GervicesNV. 100% g
8
8
KRAK GAZ sp.zo.0. LOTOS Exploration S
— LOTOSOilsA  100% L— in bankruptcy 100% [— LOTOS 100% — andProduction  99,99999989% <—
by liquidation Serwis Sp.zo. 0. Norge AS
| LOTOS o | LOTOS o, | ENERGOBALTIC 5
Kolej Sp.zo. 0. 100% Infrastruktura S.A. 100% Sp.zo.0. 100%
3 @)
LOTOS ; | LOTOS Ochrona Baltic Gas
Terminale S.A. 100% Sp.zo.o. o0 Sp.zo.o. 50%
. 0,005% (2) Baltic Gas spdtka z ograniczong  (3)
[ stCEk;)iﬂﬂgla 99,9959% < > odpowiedzialnoscia
: : i wspdlnicy sp.k. 5)
0,005%
LOTOS !
L 99,995% ¢—— | B8 9
Biopaliwa Sp.z 0.0 SPV Baltic 1009, So2ee 100%
Sp.z0.0. o os (3)
(2) B8 S
> p.z0.0. ®
Technical Ship BALTICS.KA. D
Management Sp. zo. o.
- 99.90862% 0,00137%
lliana Miliana Shipholding v i “ AB LOTOS
Shipmanagement Ltd 100% Company Ltd. 100% Geonafta
Miliana Shippin
Group Ltd. PRIng 100% UAB Minijos
Nafta
Granit Navigation
Company Ltgd_ 100% Ez:\k’;;?jﬂg?“on 100% UAB Manifoldas  100%
Bazalt Navigation Petro Aphrodite UAB Genciu
Company Ltd. 100% Company Ltd. 100% Nafta 100%
St. Barbara Navigation o Petro Icarus
Company Ltd. 100% Company Ltd. 100%

(1) State Treasury — 0.01%, employee shares — 0.01%

(2) Limited partner

3) General partner

) CalEnergy Resources Poland Sp. z 0.0. - 50%

) CalEnergy Resources Poland Sp. z 0.0. — limited partner

Eg; 99% (own shares acquired for redemption) — Technical Ship Management Sp. z 0.0.

BP Europa SE - 50%
Grupa LOTOS also holds 8.97% of shares in P.P.P.P. Naftoport Sp. z 0.0. (a PERN Przyjazri Group company).

Within the LOTOS Group, the role of Grupa LOTOS as the parent entity is to integrate the key
management and support functions. As such, Grupa LOTOS has implemented a segmental
management model.

A segment is a separate area of operations managed within the LOTOS Group by a
designated member of the Board of Grupa LOTOS.

This model enhances management efficiency, delivering LOTOS Group-wide cost and revenue synergies.
Segmental management provides for consistent implementation of the strategy, coordinated planning,
integrated operational management and maintenance of uniform corporate standards.
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Financial
segment

Marketing
segment

Operational
segment

LOTOS Group
segments

Exploration
Management P .
and production
segment
segment

Management segment

Head: President of the Board of Grupa LOTOS, Chief Executive Officer

Tasks: increasing the LOTOS Group's value through overall management of its operations, including
coordination of strategy development, definition of development directions for individual business areas,
and coordination of process support functions.

Exploration and production segment

Head: Vice-President of the Management Board of Grupa LOTOS, Exploration&Production.

Tasks: formulation of development strategies for the LOTOS Group in oil and gas exploration and production,
as well as management and supervision of these activities.

Companies: LOTOS Petrobaltic with subsidiaries and affiliates.

Operational segment

Head: Vice-President of the Management Board of Grupa LOTOS, Chief Operation Officer.

Tasks: formulation of strategies for maintaining and expanding production facilities, as well as supervision
and coordination of all matters regarding the processing of crude oil, refinery production and associated
technologies, definition of refinery production policy objectives, supervision of production-related R&D work,
coordination of technical and technological development projects, ensuring the required technical
performance of assets, supervision of environmental protection processes, safety processes and physical
protection.

Companies: LOTOS Infrastruktura, LOTOS Lab, LOTOS Ochrona, LOTOS Serwis, and LOTOS Straz.

Changes in 2013: following business profile changes, LOTOS Czechowice was renamed LOTOS Terminale
and assigned to the marketing segment, while LOTOS Jasto changed its name to LOTOS Infrastruktura.

Marketing segment

Head: Vice-President of the Management Board of Grupa LOTOS, Chief Commercial Officer.

Tasks: formulation of marketing strategies as well as effective management of sales, supplies and distribution
of crude oil and petroleum products, responsibility for the development of trading and optimisation
activities.
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Companies: LOTOS-Air BP Polska, LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOS Kolej, LOTOS Qil, LOTOS Paliwa and LOTOS Terminale
with subsidiaries.
Changes in 2013: Grupa LOTOS sold 50% of its interest in LOTOS Tank, which was then renamed LOTOS-Air

BP Polska. Also in 2013, the marketing segment was expanded to include LOTOS Terminale (formerly (in
2012) LOTOS Czechowice), which was transferred from the operational segment.

Financial segment

Head: Vice-President of the Board, Chief Financial Officer.

Tasks: monitoring of the implementation of the LOTOS Group's strategies and overall management of
financial and accounting processes, including formulation of financial, legal and insurance strategies and
monitoring of their implementation, management of budgeting and controlling, development and
implementation of financial risk management strategies, and overall management of assets and
restructuring processes.

Companies: LOTOS Park Technologiczny and LOTOS Gaz w likwidadji (in liquidation) and its subsidiary.

For purposes of the economic efficiency analysis and clear presentation of the financial statements, the
following two main reporting operations segments can be identified in the operational activities of the
LOTOS Group:

e Upstream operations segment — com prising activities concerning exploration for and exploitation
of crude oil and natural gas deposits;

e Downstream and marketing operations segment —comprising activities of companies concerned
with production and processing of refined petroleum products as well as their retail and
wholesale, and support, transport and servicing activities.

Key objectives of the organizational changes
implemented in 2013:

raise the stature, decision-making powers and accountability of the corporate departments,
enhancethe management model,

minimise management costs,

improve segmental reporting,

enhance the communication process,

optimise accounting, finance, trading and legal functions.

At the end of 2013, Grupa LOTOS's organization and management structure, which reflects the division of
competences and the relationships between various functions and tasks performed at the Company, and
illustrates the reporting hierarchy of organizational units and management, comprised the following units:

16 divisions, including 5 divisions reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer,
36 offices,

16 departments,

8 plants.
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Operational segments. As at December 31st 2013

Grupa LOTOS

Marketing segment Financial segment
LOTOS Paliwa Sp. z 0.0., LOTOS Asfalt Sp. z 0.0., LOTOS Oil S.A., )
. ) LOTOS Park Technologiczny Sp. z 0.0.,
LOTOS Terminale S.A., LOTOS - Air BP Polska Sp. z 0.0. o R
LOTOS Gaz S.A. w likwidadji (in liquidation)

LOTOS Kolej Sp. zo.0.

Management segment

Exploration

' and pr tion
Operational segment d productio
segment

LOTOS Ochrona Sp. z 0.0., LOTOS Infrastruktura S.A.,

LOTOS Straz Sp. z 0.0., LOTOS Lab Sp. z 0.0., LOTOS Serwis Sp. z 0.0. LOTOS Petrobaltic S.A.
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Integrated reporting

The Annual Report of the LOTOS Group for 2013 is an integrated report covering the organization’s
operations in the financial year 2013, which coincides with the calendar year. The previous integrated annual
report was published in April 2013.

In 2007-2009, we published separate reports on the financial and non-financial aspects of our activity. In
2010, the Board of Grupa LOTOS decided to integrate the reports for stakeholders presenting the
organization’s management approach and performance across all areas of its activity. This publication is our
fifth integrated report.

The Board's intent is to enable our stakeholders to make a comprehensive, measurable and objective
assessment of our overall involvement in sustainable development through an integrated and reader-friendly
presentation of our financial statements and non-financial reports for a given year. We follow the best
communication practices applicable to public companies:

e For financial reporting, we adhere to the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
endorsed by the European Union, published and in effect as at December 31st 2012,

e For non-financial reporting, we adhere to the Sustainability Reporting Framework and Guidelines
of the Global Reporting Initiative (G3.1 GRI, with the Oil and Gas Sector Supplement) and the
United Nations Global Compact’s Principles. We declare that we are at Application Level A+*") in
the three-level GRIreporting system.

e Additionally, we made efforts to comply with the International Integrated Reporting Framework
published by the International Integrated Reporting Committee (lIRC) in December 2013. The
lIRC believes that integrating financial analysis with analysis of the social, environmental and
economic context of acompany’s operations is a valuable source of information, allowing its
stakeholders to assess its long-term profitability.

(1) The individual Application Levels were assigned letters from C (the lowest), to C+ (where a “+" is given if a report has been verified by an
independent assurance body), B, B+, A, through to A+. The reporting criteria used for each level measure the extent to which the Guidelines
and the GRI Reporting Framework have been applied.

In our work on this Report we embraced the key principles of accuracy, materiality, completeness,
comparability, balance and reliability. All data contained in this Report was collected in a reliable and
responsible manner, and verified as being consistent with the facts.

The consolidated financial statements of the LOTOS Group included in this Report were audited by qualified
auditors at Ernst & Young, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 7 of the Polish Accountancy Act of
September 29th 1994 (Dz.U. of 2009, No. 152, item 1223, as amended), and the Polish financial auditing
standards issued by the National Council of Statutory Auditors (Krajowa Rada Biegtych Rewidentéw).

To ensure an appropriate level of transparency and credibility, the Board of Grupa LOTOS decided that third
party assurance of non-financial data included in the Annual Report should be provided by an independent
body. Limited assurance provided in 2014 by PwC complied with the International Standard on Assurance
Engagements (3000 ISAE, Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information). ISAE 3000 was issued by the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC). The standard is
based on IFAC's Code of Conduct and the International Standard of Quality Control (ISQC-1), and is used to
provide assurance with respect to CSR reports. The Standard defines the key principles and procedures for
assurance engagements, including “limited assurance” engagements. The 2013 Annual Report is our third
report in which the data reported for the CSR area were subject to independent assurance.
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Apart from the procedure described above, we have made every effort to ensure the quality of the data
collection process. This process is supported by the organization’s management systems.

Driven by environmental concerns, we are publishing this Report in electronic form only. This also serves the
intention of providing readers with the most convenient range of solutions to making this publication a
friendly tool, with which to perform their own analyses. Readers can display selected numerical data by
periods, GRI indicators, operating segments, etc. Information included in the Report is integrated with the
contents of the Company’s website, which includes reports from previous years. An option has been provided
for readers to leave feedback. Also, accessibility options such as narration, a high-contrast mode and text
zoom, have been added for people with disabilities, the elderly and the vision impaired. Environmental
friendliness is ensured by an economical printout option.

The Board of Grupa LOTOS has resolved to adopt the annual reporting cycle for our reports. Previous reports
are available from www.lotos.pl/en (link). For contact details, refer to the “Useful information” ( link) section of
this Report.

Engaging stakeholders in the process of improving our
reporting

The functional solutions embedded in the Report's electronic format as well as ways of selecting and
presenting information in it are updated regularly based on stakeholder opinion polls, the appraisal of traffic
to the webpage featuring the Report, etc. For purposes of this Report, we conducted special opinion polls
among members of the LOTOS Group’s management staff and among capital market analysts, who make use
of the reported information. Altogether, around 50 persons participated in these consultations.

Integrating financial and non-financial data

According to the majority of the respondents, integrating financial and non-financial information is the right
approach (88%) and raises awareness of sustainability issues (likewise, 88%). What is more, 8 out of 10 of the
polled persons stated that it also responds to the stakeholders’ contemporary needs, provides them with a
wider picture of the company’s operations and enables adequate communication of factors which are
material to its value creation. Most respondents confirmed that integrating data helps present the overall
impacts of the organization’s activities on its environment and that it allows investors to make informed
decisions on effectively allocating their funds; also, the same number of respondents believed that annual
reporting enables them to compare data from different periods.

As many as 98% participants agreed with the statement that the structure of the Report as well as the
information contained in it correspond with the 2012-2015 CSR Strategy of the LOTOS Group, taking into
account its objectives and baselines as well as future commitments.

Also, the majority of the respondents expressed an opinion that integrated reporting facilitates early risk
identification (63%), responds to the need of transparency in the organization’s activities and is a key
element contributing to trust building (60% each). Also, most participants stressed that it is the right
approach as long as the report is subject to external assurance (63%) and that not all stakeholders are
interested in every aspect presented in the integrated report (58%).
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Benefits of integrated reporting at Grupa LOTOS (%)

Raising the aw areness of sustainability
issues

Providing adequate communication of
factors w hich are material to the
company’s value creation in the short-,
medium- and long-term

Enabling better understanding of how
the organization w ill create value in
future

Presenting a wider picture of the
company’s operations

Providing a wider picture of the
company’s overall impacts on its
environment

Helping investors take informed
decisions on effective allocation of their
funds

Facilitating early risk identification

Helping to learn about the progress in
implementing the business strategy and
corporate social strategy by the
company as w ell as to gather better
quality data
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Assessment of the LOTOS Group's reports

Our online reports were rated by the respondents at 4.3 points on a scale from 1 being the lowest (‘"does not
meet my expectations’) to 5 — the highest ('very attractive’). The most frequently given answers were 5 or 4
(39% each), which means that 78% of the participants found this version of the report attractive.

How attractive do you find the online version of the report (on a scale from 1 - least to 5 — most attractive)?

2 points

3 points

— 5 points

4 points =
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In their comments, the respondents most often expressed an opinion that this form of presenting the LOTOS
Group's annual reports makes them very clear and visually attractive, and that the reported information is
presented in a very accessible way.

Itis worth noting here that the 2012 Annual Report won the first prize in ‘The Best Annual Report 2012’
competition organized by the Accounting and Taxation Institute in ‘'The Best Internet Annual Report’
category.

Furthermore, in October 2013 the results of the second edition of the ‘ESG Analysis of Companies in Poland’,
organized by the Polish Association of Listed Companies in cooperation with GES and Crido Business
Consulting, were announced. The goal of the project is to increase the transparency of non-financial data
reporting in the Polish capital market by educating listed companies on how to communicate effectively ESG
data (E — environment; S - social; G — governance) and how to build a CSR strategy. The 'ESG Analysis of
Companies in Poland’is a unique project across Europe, the only one which analyzes the non-financial
reporting practices of all listed companies.

Based on the results of the analysis, the 2013 Ranking of listed companies best reporting their ESG data’ was
compiled, in which 3 top companies were selected in two classifications: sector and index. Grupa LOTOS was
classified as a leader of ESG data reporting in both classifications. Key sources of information for compiling the
ranking are the companies’ annual reports, their websites and official documents. In the same analysis, Grupa
LOTOS — as one of four companies representing the Qil, Gas & Consumable Fuels sector — was also listed
among 30 public companies of highest transparency with regard to ESG risks reporting based on the ratings
acquired.

The analysis of the ESG data reporting covered all companies listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange as on June
30th 2013, including on the New Connect market; these were altogether 865 entities.
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Remit and extent

In determining the content of the non-financial sections of the Annual Report, we were guided by the GRI
Reporting Framework and the International Integrated Reporting Framework issued by the International
Integrated Reporting Committee (IIRC). The information contained in the Report was selected based on the
materiality criterion, which we define as having the potential to affect our enterprise's compliance with
sustainable development principles, as well as our external stakeholders when looking for reliable,
comparable and accurate information with which to inform their decisions.

To determine the content of the Report, we held a workshop with these stakeholders who are key for
improving our reporting. In the course of this workshop, a number of issues of particular materiality to the

organization and to its market environment were identified.

Determining materiality
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>The Company's role in the national and regional energy security system
) High reliability of production units and installations

>Acquisitiom and development of new production licences

>Final product quality

1
2
3

=

New investment projects

Environmental monitoring close to the organization’s operations
Investment activities employing Best Available Techniques BAT)
Promotion of best practices in the supply chain

Further development of the Ethical Conduct Programme

Further development of the public consultations system

Creating the value of the LOTOS brand

Use of state-of-the-art technical solutions

Providing our employees with professional development opportunities
Building proper relations with our employees

5
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L Contributing to the social and economic development of our region
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The non-financial information included in this Report was prepared using the majority of core and additional
indicators provided for in the GRI Guidelines, to present our economic, environmental and social
performance.

Like a year ago, additional industry-specific indicators from the Sector Supplement (GRI Oil & Gas Sector
Supplement (OGSS)) were added to enrich this Report.

The methods used to calculate the figures presented in this Report were the same as those used in
preparation of the LOTOS Group's consolidated financial statements for 2013. These methods are in
accordance with the IFRS effective as at December 315t 2013.
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For a vast majority of topic areas, the facts and non-financial data presented in the Report pertain to Grupa
LOTOS, the parent entity. However, all due care and consideration has been given on our part to account for
the LOTOS Group's consolidated data where possible. Regarding areas of key importance to social and
environmental responsibility, we have also presented data on the largest commercial companies of the group
and, as a natural consequence of using the Sector Supplement, on the LOTOS Petrobaltic Group. In each case,
we make a clear distinction by specifically indicating the LOTOS Group entity currently being discussed in the
Report.

Whenever we refer to the largest commercial companies of the LOTOS Group (both in terms of revenue and
head count), this applies to LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOS Kolej, LOTOS Oil and LOTOS Paliwa. The largest companies of
the LOTOS Petrobaltic Group which are active in the exploration and production business include, after the
parent — LOTOS Petrobaltic (operating in Poland), — LOTOS Geonafta in Lithuania and LOTOS Norge in Norway.
The Report also considers another vital company of the LOTOS Petrobaltic Group, Energobaltic, which is a

CHP operator in Wtadystawowo. Since the reporting for the LOTOS Petrobaltic Group is still in its initial stage,
it has not been possible to present all results of the companies covered by the Report in a uniform and
consistent manner. However, given the challenges of sustainable development that lie ahead for the
production business, we decided to present the collected data anyway.

In the previous reporting period, no material changes or other circumstances occurred with respect to the
LOTOS Group's entities which would affect the overall assessment of the organization, either in terms of its
individual activities or in comparison with its domestic peers.

GRI indicators as reported by the LOTOS Group companies: LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOS Kolej, LOTOS Qil,
LOTOS Paliwa, and the LOTOS Petrobaltic Group (2 (LOTOS Petrobaltic, LOTOS Geonafta, LOTOS
Norge, Energobaltic)

GRI indicators reported
GRI aspects in 2013 Subsidiaries

EN26 LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOSKolej, LOTOS Oil,LOTOS Paliwa,LOTOS

Productsand Petroba ltic, LOTOS Geonafta,LOTOS Norge
services
EN27 LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOS Oil, LOTOS Pa liwa
LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOSKolej, LOTOS Oil,LOTOS Paliwa,LOTOS
Transport EN29 )
Petroballtic (group)
Customerheafth LOTOS Asfalt,LOTOS Kolej, LOTOS Oil,LOTOS Paliwa
and safety
LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOSKolej, LOTOS Oil,LOTOS Paliwa,LOTOS
Processsa fety 0G13 i
Petroba ltic
Productand PR3,PR5 LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOS Kolej, LOTOS Oil, LOTOS Paliwa
servicelabeling
. PR6 LOTOS Oil, LOTOS Paliwa
Marketing
communications
PR7 LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOSKole, LOTOS Oil,LOTOS Paliwa
Customer privacy PR8 LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOS Kolej, LOTOS Oil,LOTOS Paliwa
Compliance PR2,PR4,PR9 LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOS Oil, LOTOS Paliwa,LOTOS Kolej
Biodiversity EN11,EN12,EN13,EN14,0G4 LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOS Qil, LOTOS Paliwa,LOTOS Petroba ltic
Emissions,
effluents, EN16,EN17,ENT8,EN19, EN20,EN21, LOTOS Petroba ltic (group)

EN22,EN23,0G5,0G7
and waste
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”;d 'r:ecrtn . (o LOTOS Asfat, LOTOS Kolej, LOTOS Oil,LOTOS Paliwa, LOTOS
.e ono Petroba ltic, LOTOS Geona fta

impacts

Local 0G11 LOTOS Petroba ltic (group)

community

Reserves 0G1 LOTOS Petroballtic (group)

Ma teria Is EN1 LOTOS Petroballtic (group)

Energy EN3,EN4 LOTOS Petroballtic (group)

Wa ter EN8,EN9 LOTOS Petroballtic (group)

LOTOSAsfalt, LOTOSKole, LOTOS Oi, LOTOS Paliwa,LOTOS

Market presence EC5,EC6,ECT7 Petrobaltic (group)

LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOSKole, LOTOS Oi, LOTOS Paliwa,LOTOS

LALLAZ,LAB, LA LAT4 Petrobaltic (group),LOTOS-Air BP Polska

Employment
LA1,LA2,LA8 LOTOS Paliwa

LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOSKole, LOTOS Oi, LOTOS Paliwa,LOTOS

Humanrights HR1,HR2 Petroba ltic (group)

@) Whenever results are reported for all companies, 'LOTOS Petrobaltic (group)’is listed. However, when not all companies of this group
report the given indicator, the names of individual entities reporting the indicator are listed.

The Annual Report for 2013 accounts for a total of 87 GRIindicators. We decided to discontinue reporting of
9 indicators: HR5, HR9, HR10, HR11, EN2, OG2, OG3, OG9 core indicators, and the HR9 additional indicator, as
the issues they cover were deemed immaterial to our organization.

An index for looking up specific performance indicators and descriptive parts relating to specific issues

discussed in this Report is included in the GRI and UN Global Compact Content Index (link), in the "Useful
information” section of this Report.
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Auditing and reviews

Independent auditors' opinion of Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0. regarding the Financial statements of
Grupa LOTOS for 2012.

The Polish original should be referred to in matters of interpretation,
Translation of auditors” report ariginally issued in Polish.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® OPINION

To the Supervisory Board of Grupa LOTOS S.A

1.

We have audited the attached financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
of Grupa LOTOS $.A. (‘the Company*) located in Gdansk at 135 Elblgska Street, containing
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, the stalement of comprehensive
income, the statement of cash flow, the statement of changes in equity for the period from
1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 and the notes to the financial statements (‘the attached
financial statements”).

The truth and faimess' of the attached financial statements, the preparation of the attached
financial statements in accordance with the required applicable accounting policies and
the proper maintenance of the accounting records are the responsibility of the Company’s
Management Board. In addition, the Company’s Management Board and Members
of the Supervisory Board are required to ensure that the attached financial statements and
the Directors” Report meet the requirements of Accounting Act dated 29 September 1994
{Journal of Laws 2013330 with subsequent amendments - ‘the Accounting Act’).
Our responsibility was to audit the attached financial statements and to express an opinion
on whether, based on our audit, these financial statements comply, in all material respects,
with the required applicable accounting policies, whether they truly and fairly® reflect,
in all material respeets, the financial position and resulls of the operations of the Company
and whether the accounting records that form the basis for their preparation are, in all material
respects, properly maintained.

We conducted our audit of the attached financial statements in accordance with:

« chapter 7 of the Accounting Act,

« national auditing standards issued by the National Couneil of Statutory Auditors,

in order to obtain reasonable assurance whether these financial statements are free of material
misstatement. In particular, the audit included examining, to a large extent on a test basis,
documentation supporting the amounts and disclosures in the attached financial statements.
The audit also included assessing the accounting principles adopted and used and significant
estimates made by the Management Board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
attached financial statements. We believe our audit has provided a reasonable basis to express
our opinion on the attached financial statements treated as a whole,

! Translation of the following expression in Polish: *rzefebiosé i jasnode’
* Translation of the following expression in Polish: *rzefelnie i jasno’
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The Polish original should be referred to in matters of interpretation.
Translation of auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.

4.

9.

In our opinion, the attached financial statements, in all material respects:

« present truly and fairly all information material for the assessment of the results
of the Company’s operations for the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013,
as well as its financial position® as at 31 December 2013;

+ have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the EU and based on properly maintained accounting records;

+ are in respect of the form and content, in accordance with legal regulations governing
the preparation of financial statements and the Company’s Articles of Association.

Without qualifving our opinion, we draw attention, that in the attached financial statements
the Company has presented shares in the subsidiaries and joint-ventures at cost’ less
any impairment write down. In accordance with the accounting policies resulting from
International Financial Reporting Standards, LOTOS Capital Group ('The LOTOS Group®),
of which the Company is the dominant entity, prepared its consolidated financial
statements dated 3 March 2014, The consolidated net profit from continuing operations
of LOTOS Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounts to PLN 39 428 thousand,
the consolidated equity as at 31 December 2013 amounts to PLN 9 189 596 thousand
and the consolidated assets amounts to PLN 20 299 617 thousand,

We have read the ‘Directors” Report for the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013
and the rules of preparation of annual statements’ (*the Directors” Report”) and concluded that
the information derived from the attached financial statements reconciles with these financial
statements. The information included in the Directors” Report corresponds with the relevant
regulations of the Decree of the Minister of Finance dated 19 February 2009 on current
and periodic information published by issuers of securities and conditions for recognition
as equivalent the information required by laws of non-EU member states (Journal of Laws
2009.33.259 with subsequent amendments).

on behalf of
Ermst & Young Audyt Polska spolka
z ograniczong odpowiedzialno$er sp. k.
(formerly: Emst & Young Audit sp. z 0.0.)
Rondo ONZ 1, 00-124 Warsaw
Reg. No 130

Key Certificd Auditor

Mariein Zielinsk
certified auditor
No. 10402

Warsaw, 3 March 2014

* Translation of the following expression in Polish: *svtnacia majgtkowa i finansowa’
* Translation of the following expression in Polish language: “cena nabyeia”

pird
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Independent auditors' opinion of Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0. regarding the Consolidated financial
statements of the LOTOS Group for 2012.

The Polish original should be referred to in matters of interpretation,
Translation of auditors” report originally issued in Polish.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ OPINION

To the Supervisory Board of Grupa LOTOS S.A.

L.

-
e

We have audited the attached consolidated financial statements of LOTOS Capital Group
(“the Group®), for which the holding company is Grupa LOTOS S.A. (*the Company®) located
in Gdansk at 135 Elblaska Street, for the year ended 31 December 2013 containing,
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flow, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013
and notes to the financial statements (*the attached consolidated financial statements ™).

The truth and faimess of the attached consolidated financial statements, the preparation of the
attached consolidated financial statements in accordance with the required applicable
accounting policies and the proper maintenance of the consolidation documentation are
the responsibility of the Company’s Management Board. In addition, the Companys
Management Board and Members of the Supervisory Board are required to ensure that
the attached consolidated financial statements and the Directors” Report meet the requirements
of the Accounting Act dated 29 September 1994 (Journal of Laws 2013.330 with subsequent
amendments - “the Accounting Act’). Our responsibility was to audit the attached consolidated
financial statements and to express an opinion on whether, based on our audit, these financial
statements comply, in all material respects, with the required applicable accounting policies
and whether they truly and fairly® reflect, in all material respects, the financial position and
results of the operations of the Group.

We conducted our audit of the attached consolidated financial statements in accordance with:
s+ chapter 7 of the Accounting Act,
+  national auditing standards issued by the National Council of Statutory Auditors,

! Translation of the following expression in Polish: *reetelnosé i fasnose
* Translation of the following expression in Polish: *rzetelne i jasne’
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in order to obtain reasonable assurance whether these financial statements are free of material
misstatement. In particular, the audit included examining, to a large extent on a test basis,
documentation supporting the amounts and disclosures in the attached consolidated financial
statements, The audit also included assessing the accounting principles adopted and used and
significant estimates made by the Company’s Management Board, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the attached consolidated financial statements. We believe our audit
has provided a reasonable basis to express our opinion on the attached consolidated financial
statements treated as a whole.

. The consolidated financial statements for the prior financial year ended 31 December 2012

were subjeet to our audit and on 19 March 2013 we have ssued an unqualified opinion with
an emphasis of matter on these financial statements concerning the uncertainty indicated by
the Company’s Management relating to the recoverability of the assets recognized due to
the purchase of interests and exploration expenses incurred in respect of the YME oil field in
Norway.

. In our opinion, the attached consolidated financial statements, in all material respects:

« present truly and fairly all information material for the assessment of the resulis
of the Group’s operations for the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013,
as well as its financial position” as at 31 December 2013;

+ have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the EL;

« are in respeet of the form and content, in accordance with the legal regulations governing
the preparation of financial statements,

As disclosed in note 13 to the attached consolidated financial statements, as at 31 December
2013 the Group carried out an impairment test on assets relating to YME development project
in Morway based on the analysis of discounted cash flows for the 20% mterests held in
hydrocarbons’ reserves acquired as part of the production licences for the development of
the YME field as well as caleulated the recoverable amount of YME project based on
estimated fair value less costs to sell and and on that basis did not recognize further
impairment. As at 31 December 2013 the Group presents the fixed assets relating to YME
development project in the amount of PLN 537 million, the deferred tax asset in the amount
of PLN 932 million resulting from previously recognized write-offs of capital expenditures
incurred on YME project as well as previously incurred tax losses in Norway. Without
qualifying our opinion on the correctness and the accuracy of the attached consolidated
financial statements, we draw attention to the uncertainties indicated by the Company's
Management in the aforementioned note concerning recoverability of the assels recognized
in respect of the YME projeet due to the fact that the forecasts and the Company’s plans
are determined by a series of futures events, in particular by the execution of the final scenario
of the new development plan of YME field accepted by the consortium and by estimates
of market values of commercial hydrocarbon reserves in the YME field.

* Translation of the following expression in Polish: ‘svfnacja majgtkowa i finansowa’

13
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7. Wehave read the “Directors” Report for the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013
and the rules of preparation of annual statements™ (‘the Directors” Report’) and concluded
that the information derived from the attached consolidated financial statements reconciles
with these financial statements. The information included in the Directors” Report corresponds
with the relevant regulations of the Decree of the Minister of Finance dated 19 February 2009
on current and periodic information published by issuers of securitis and conditions
for recognition as equivalent the information required by laws of non-EU member states
{Journal of Laws 2009.33.259 with subsequent amendments).

on behalf of
Ernst & Young Audyt Polska spolka
z ograniczong odpowiedzialnodciy sp. k.
(formerly: Emst & Young Audit sp. z 0.0.)
Rondo ONZ. 1, 00-124 Warsaw
Reg. No 130

Key Certified Auditor

Marein Zielifski
certified auditor
No, 10402

Warsaw, 3 March 2014
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Limited assurance report
To the Management Board of LOTOS Group S.A.
Subject matter and Criteria

As per terms of our Agreement dated 4 February 2013 (the “Agreement”) we have been engaged to
perform a limited assurance engagement on selected non-financial data presented in the “LOTOS
Group S.A. 2013 Integrated Report — Economy, Society, Environment — Win the future” (“2013
Integrated Report”) for the financial year 2013. The selected data in the 2013 Integrated Report is

marked with a check symbol

The Company’s management prepared 2013 Integrated Report ensuring its adherence to the
Sustainability Reporting Guidelines of the Global Reporting Initiative version 3.1 and Oil & Gas
Sector Supplement (together the “GRI Ga.1 eriteria,“reporting criteria”).

2013 Integrated Report presents quantitative and cqualitative information on the Company’s
corporate responsibility practices in the period of 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013.

Management's Responsibility

LOTOS Group S.A. ("the Company) management is responsible for the preparation of the 2013
Integrated Report in accordance with the GRI Gz.1 criteria.

This responsibility includes the selection and application of appropriate methods to prepare the
non-financial data and the design, implementation and maintenance of systems and processes
which ensure the adherence to the GRI G3.1 eriteria relevant for the preparation of the non-
financial data using assumptions and estimates which are reasonable in the circumstances.

Practitioner’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion as to the selected indicators presented in 2013
Integrated Report. Performed procedures were chosen based on our judgment and take under
consideration our judgment of the risk of material misstatement of the selected indicators marked

with a check symbol " in the 2013 Integrated Report.

We conducted our work in accordance with International Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance engagements other than audits or reviews of historical financial information”
{.ISAE g0007).

Summary of the work performed

Within the scope of our work we performed amongst others the following procedures:

PricewaterhouseCoopers Sp. 2 0.0.,
Al Armil Ludowej 14, 00-638 Warszawa, Polska
T: +48(22) 523 4000, F: +48 (22) 523 4040, i poe.com

FritiwiléhousbCospars Sp. 2 0.0, wiliana jd do Kejiwl o Rijodr Sqdowepo prowidiinepo prios Sd Ripndy 83 m 8. Wirktiwy, pod rumdrém KRS
DOO0044555, NP S0-00 10229, Kapaah zakkadowy wyrd sl 10,383,600 tetych. Siodaby Spoikd st Waniziwa, Al Armil Ludiwi) 14
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¢ [Examination of the relevant documentation regarding relevant systems and processes for
gathering and analyzing of the data for the selected indicators marked with the check symbol

?

* Inquiries of the appropriate management members as well as personnel responsible for the
reporting of CSR information and performing of analytical procedures on selected indicators

marked with the check symbol

+ Obtaining sample evidence for the selected indicators marked with the check symbol
Sample analyzed documents included invoices/reports from external service providers,
internal reports including data generated as reports from the Company’s IT-systems.

In a limited assurance engagement the evidence-gathering procedures are more limited than in a
reasonable assurance engagement, and therefore less assurance is obtained than in a reasonable
assurance engagement.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our conclusion.

Conclusion

Based on our limited assurance engagement, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to

believe that the selected indicators marked with the check symbol ~ as presented in the 2013
Integrated Report have not been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the GRI
3.1 criteria.

Limitation of use and distribution

Our limited assurance report prepared by PricewaterhouseCoopers 8p. z o.0. (,PwC") for LOTOS
Group S.A. in respect of the Agreement is directed to sole use of the LOTOS Group S.A.
Management Board . It should not be used to other purposes.

Thus PwC does not take any responsibility in respect of this report (contractual, tort (including
that for negligence) or any other) in respect of any parties other than LOTOS Group S.A.
Respectively, regardless of the form of the actions, whether in contract, tort or other, within the
capacity allowed by the law, PwC does not take any responsibility, and any consequences coming
out of the report for any person (excluding the Company, based on rules described above) or for
any other decision taken based on this report.

The 2013 Integrated Report should be read together with the Sustainability Reporting Guidelines
of the GRI Gz.1.

TRANSLATION ONLY

PricewaterhouseCoopers 3p. zo.0.
Warsaw 2 June 2014
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Awards and distinctions

In 2013, LOTOS Group companies received numerous awards and distinctions in key areas such as corporate
management, CSR and product and service quality.

Management quality

Pawet Olechnowicz, President and CEO of Grupa LOTOS, was given a prestigious Manager Award, a
distinction awarded by Business Magazine to managers that are seen to be setting the tone for the
Polish economy. The Manager Award jury is presided over by the President of the Polish Chamber of
Commerce and is given in recognition of outstanding achievements made by company

managers.

Pawet Olechnowicz, President and CEO of Grupa LOTOS, was also awarded the Man of Energy title
by the Nowy Przemyst monthly and the wnp.pl website. Mr. Olechnowicz wasamong 12 people
whose work, ideas and beliefs have had a considerable impact on the Polish energy and fuel sector
over thelast 10 years and have stood the test of time.

Grupa LOTOS took the top position in the 2012 Pillars of Polish Economy ranking, in the Province
of Gdansk. The ranking was compiled by Puls Biznesu daily’s editorial team, under the honorary
patronage of the Ministry of the State Treasury, Polish Investments Programme, and the Polish
Agency for Enterprise Development. The winner was selected by the representatives of local
governments.

Grupa LOTOS was ranked first by the Accounting and Taxation Institute, the organizer of The Best
Annual Report competition, in two categories: The 2012 Best Annual Report and The Internet
Annual Report.

Grupa LOTOS ranked second among the 500 largest Polish companies of the 500 List, a periodic
ranking of the companies from the industrial, trading and services sectors, com piled by the Polityka
weekly. The Company’s position in the main ranking was based on the criterion of revenue, which
in 2012 camein at PLN 33.1bn. Grupa LOTOS has been ranked fifth among the 100 largest
exporters. In 2012, the LOTOS Group posted export revenue in excess of PLN 8.9bn. The Company
was also sixth among the 500 largest companies of Central and Eastern Europein a ranking
published by COFACE. The position in the region was also based on the criterion of revenue.

Four Forbes' Diamonds were awarded to LOTOS Asfalt, LOTOS Terminale, LOTOS Serwis, and LOTOS
Lab. Forbes magazine, together with the business intelligence agency Bisnode Polska, com piled
their seventh list of companies with the fastest value growth.

Grupa LOTOS received the '‘Outstanding Contribution to the Downstream Industry Award’ of the
World Refining Association for the best refinery in Central and Eastern Europe.

Corporate Social Responsibility

1.

Grupa LOTOS received the CSR Golden Leaf in the second ranking of companies whose CSR policies
adhereto theISO 26000 standard, compiled by the Polityka weekly and PwC.

Grupa LOTOS was distinguished as ‘'The Best Employer 2013’ in the XXL Com panies category. The
‘Best Employer’ survey was conducted by Aon Hewitt, based on a complex methodology,
encompassing questionnaires measuring em ployee satisfaction and engagement, as well asan
assessment of the HR practicesin place ata given company.

Grupa LOTOS received the title of the '2013 Human Resources Management Leader' and a Golden
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Statuette for outstanding achievementsin allHR management areas, awarded by the Institute of
Labour and Social Studies.

Grupa LOTOS took eighth place overall in the 7th Responsible Companies Ranking, and second in
the Industry category (Fuel, Energy, Mining). The Responsible Com panies Ranking draws on a
comprehensive list of the largest companiesin Poland, assessing them for the quality of their
Corporate Social Responsibility management. The authors of the ranking are representatives of the
Business Ethics Centre of Akademia Leona KoZzminskiego (Kozminski University) and the Dziennik
Gazety Prawnej daily, while PwC is responsible for checking and verification. Patronage of the
ranking is held by the Responsible Business Forum.

In the 11th edition of the Responsible Business in Poland ranking. Good Practices Report,
published by the Responsible Business Forum, three practices adopted by Grupa LOTOS were cited.
These were: public consultations on the Code of Ethics; stakeholders’ involvement in formulating a
revised CSR strategy, and the use of natural gasasa heating and process fuel in Grupa LOTOS. The
Company was also presented with a statuette to mark the five years of its cooperation with the
Responsible Business Forum.

Grupa LOTOS was declared 'A Well-Perceived Company' in the 4th edition of a competition
organised by the Business Centre Club. The Company was awarded in two categories — strategy
and communication. The purpose of the competition is to honour com panies which conduct their
business in a socially-responsible manner and promote knowledge of CSR and effective methods of
its communication. The com petition was organised under the honorary patronage of the Ministry
of Labour and Social Policy.

Grupa LOTOS has been included in the 6th and 7th edition of the RESPECT Index of the most
socially responsible WSE-listed com panies. The Company has been part of the Index since its
creation in 2009.

‘The White and Green Future with LOTOS’ CSR Programme, run by Grupa LOTOS and the Lechia
Gdansk Football Academy, won the Septem ber’s edition of the Responsible Initiative of the
Month com petition, organised by the CSR.pl website.

Grupa LOTOS received a statuette of the 2013 Patron of Culture, awarded by the Mayor of Jasto to
companies that provide considerable support for cultural events organised in Jasto.

Grupa LOTOS was awarded the ‘Leader of Safety in the Industry’ title by the insurance company
PZU at the Risk Engineering Days conference.

Quality of products and services

The LOTOS brand received a prestigious Business Superbrand 2013 award in the 7th edition of the
Superbrand contest for the strongest brands in Poland. The award was granted in the corporate
brand category. The Superbrands title, awarded for 17 yearsin over 87 countries, is granted by
Superbrands Ltd., an independent international organization. The purpose of the initiative is to
promote and award brands that achieved success on the market thanks to their unique qualities.
During the Ninth Autostrada-Polska Trade Fair in Kielce, LOTOS Asfalt won a medal in the
Technology category for its rubber modified bitumen, a product only recently introduced to the
Polish market. The product was recognised for its innovativeness and excellent properties in
practical applications. Grupa LOTOS's refinery in Gdansk is the first in Poland to manufacture
bitumen modified with rubber from recycled tyres. The technology employed by Grupa LOTOS
allows for a broad range of applications for the product, in construction of hard-wearing and
environmentally friendly road surfaces. The Autostrada-Polska trade fair is one of the most
prestigious events in the road construction industry and a meeting point for industry leaders and
top industry brands.
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3. LOTOS Asfalt received the 2013 Transport Innovation Award and the title of the Innovation

Ambassador at the Second Transport Innovation Forum. The competition, held under the auspices

Akademia Leona Kozminskiego (Kozminski University), and the Iransport innovation centre, Is
organised by the Center for Analyses in Transport and Infrastructure (CATI) to provide recognition
to innovative enterprises.

4. TRANSMIL XSP oil won the Quality International 2013 Golden Badge in the QI Product category for
top quality goods. This award confirms the status of the brand and its owner as industry leaders,
and attests to its highest quality — quality that is both highly trusted and widely renowned. The
awards are organised by the Ministry of Regional Development, Klub Polskie Forum ISO 9000
(Polish 1ISO 9000 Forum Club), and the Polish Agency for Enterprise Development. TRANSMIL XSP is
the first mineral oil available on the global market to meet the stringent SIEMENS/FLENDER Rev.13
criteria.

5. Turdus Powertec 3000 10W/40 oil was awarded the Good Brand 2013 - Quality, Confidence,
Reputation title. The title is given by the Forum Biznesu editorial team to the best, most dynamic,
and most recognised brandsin Poland, under the auspices of the Institute of Philosophy and
Sociology of the Polish Academy of Sciences. Turdus Powertec is an advanced semi-synthetic oil for
high-power diesel engines.

6. The LOTOS brand was recognised asthe TOP BRAND 2013 in the Engine oil category of the
Consumer Laurel 2013 competition. The title was awarded based on a popularity analysis of
brands present on the Polish market, as well as their growth dynamics over the last five years. The
fact that the LOTOS brand received this high distinction in the engine oils category confirms
awareness and popularity of the brand among Polish customers.

7. The LOTOS Dynamic brand was awarded the Good Fuel Symbol. The Symbol 2013 promotional
initiative was organised by Monitor Rynkowy, a supplement to the Dziennik Gazeta Prawna daily.
The Symbols are awarded in recognition of achievements and activities which stand out in the
context of the Polish market. The distinction is granted to large, reputed companies which boast
strong brands and market positions.

8. LOTOS Optima service stations received a distinction in the Best Service Station of 2013
competition, in the Economy service station and the Service station shop categories. Distinctions
were granted to the LOTOS Optima station in Nadarzyn and the LOTOS Premium station located
by the Opera House in Gdansk during the 13th PetroTrend Fuel Market Forum.

9. According to research conducted by Daymaker of Sweden, LOTOS brand service stations offer the
best customer service quality among its Polish peers. The research was carried out by mystery
shoppers, and covered Polish shops from 125 chains, representing 19 different sectors, including
service stations. The shoppers evaluated their surroundings, first im pressions, the staff's knowledge
and ability to identify customer’s needs, as well as the overall sales process and send-off.
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Risks and opportunities
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Risks and opportunities

Given the extent of its business and its dynamic growth, the LOTOS Group is exposed to a variety of risks,
ranging from exploration and production risks, to process risks, technical risks, market risks and financial risks.

Material risks incurred by the LOTOS Group, by business segments (%)

Marketing segment

Management segment

Operational segment

Exploration and Production segment

Financial segment

We analyse every risk and develop appropriate mitigation strategies. Throughout 2013, we continued to
implement appropriate measures in response to individual threats.

Key risks in the LOTOS Group

Operational risks related Political
to the refinery and legal risks
Reputation

Trading risks and social risks

Exploration and

production risks Financial risks
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Approach to management

The LOTOS Group has an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) system in place, which provides the framework
for our internal procedures and regulations. By implementing the ERM system, we can ensure that the impact
of potential threats to achieving our business and operational objectives is being minimized and that we can
effectively take advantage of newly emerging opportunities and business possibilities identified in our
environment.

ERM document hierarchy at the LOTOS Group

LOTOS Group Enterprise Risk Management Policy

Defines the general division of responsibility within the system, and the key risk management policies
operated by the LOTOS Group.

LOTOS Group Enterprise Risk Management Procedure
————>| Specifies detailed rules for risk identification and assessment, as well as monitoring and
reporting methods designed to evaluate the effectiveness of mitigating actions taken.

Risk Management Charts

Contain specific risk management guidelines, procedures for response
to and mitigation of materialised risks, and indicators for monitoring risk.
The charts are prepared chiefly for material risks.

The Enterprise Risk Management system is applicable to all LOTOS Group employees. Every employee can
report new risks and every individual risk is managed by a risk owner. The Enterprise Risk Management
Committee formulates recommendations on risk management and monitors the execution of mitigation
measures. The Board of Grupa LOTOS takes key decisions regarding the ERM system and approves Risk Maps.
Risk management is coordinated at all stages, from identification and assessment to response planning and
execution, and finally, monitoring and reporting.
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Hierarchy of responsibility for enterprise risk management at the LOTOS Group

Supervisory Board
Maonitors and supervises the risk
management system

Board of Grupa LOTOS

Makes key ERM decisions and approves

. Risk Maps
Risk management e
coordination
[Business Process
Management Office Enterprise Risk Management Committee
— Risk Management Recommends ERM actions and maonitors
Coordinator) their progress

Risk owners

Determine risk management strategies,
monitor risk levels and report the results of steps taken

LOTOS Group employees
mplement mitigation strategies and
dentify new risks

We evaluate our ERM system’s effectiveness every year, as part of our organizational maturity assessment, the
conclusions and recommendations of which are used to further improve the system.
A final assessment score, expressed as a percentage, reflects:

e thedegreeto which the system implemented in the Company complies with best practices,
e thedegree of itsimplementation.

ERM score as part of the annual organizational maturity assessment

Year Planned score[% ] Compliancewith planned score[% ] Totalscore[% ]*
2011 97 93 90
2012 96 97 93
2013 96 97 93

*The total is the product of the planned score and the compliance score.

Information on the operation of the Enterprise Risk Management System is reqularly provided to the Board
of Grupa LOTOS and the Audit Committee of the Company's Supervisory Board.
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Key instruments

The methods used by the LOTOS Group to identify and assess risk remained unchanged in 2013. Risks are
identified by their bearing on the organization’s strategic and operational objectives. They are then assessed
in two different time frames — until the following year, and until the end of the period covered by the current
strategy. The probability of a risk actually materialising is estimated using a Risk Matrix, following which an
assessment is made of its possible impact on the LOTOS Group’s financial standing and reputation. This takes
into consideration the predicted impact on human safety and the environment, as well as how key
stakeholders may perceive the risk. Based on these criteria, risks are classified as Material, Moderate or Low.

Risk Maps are developed from the risk assessment and are submitted to the Enterprise Risk Management
Committee for an opinion and to the Board of Grupa LOTOS for approval.

Each risk is assigned to an owner, who is responsible for its management, including its
oversight and monitoring and the implementation of the recommended mitigation strategy.

In addition, we prepare detailed analyses of Material risks and selected Moderate risks, which we use to
develop mitigation plans and response procedures in case of their occurrence. We also define Key Risk
Indicators (KRIs), which are subject to periodic monitoring and reporting.

Actions mitigating key risks

In progress {long-termj)

™ Executed in 2013

Enterprise Risk Management initiatives at the LOTOS Group are supported by the ERM Portal,
an IT tool.

Apart from recording information about risks and risk-related actions, the ERM Portal can also be used to
monitor current risk indicators and the automatic flow of information on actions in progress.

To better serve the needs of its users, in 2013 we updated the ERM Portal with numerous improvements and
new functionalities, including a database of risks audit results, as well as a risk management chart generator.
All of these initiatives were designed to improve the Enterprise Risk Management system.
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Implementation costs of hedging strategies

The costs of hedging strategies depend on the materiality of the risk and the potential benefits derived from
hedging.

Whenever possible, we use the ALARP (As Low As Reasonably Practicable) principle to
reduce risk to a level considered economically acceptable.

Furthermore, when preparing risk analyses or action plans, potential costs are among the factors considered
in making the final decision on actions necessary to be taken. This approach enables the LOTOS Group to
deploy the financial resources required for risk management in the most efficient manner possible.
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Management Segment

> Political and legal > Reputation and social risks
risks

> Project Risk
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Political and legal risks

Political and legal risks are considered to be among the greatest challenges faced by companies in the oil
industry. The passing and functioning of enforceable and effective laws, particularly where new business
legislation is drafted not only at the national but also at the EU level, is of great importance to the entire
sector.

The year 2013 was a busy one for Polish lawmakers working on regulations with direct or indirect
implications for the oil sector. Their work was driven by the need to implement the enacted EU directives into
the national law, recognise plans for new EU regulations, and align the Polish legal framework with the new
operating conditions of the Polish oil industry (including in the upstream segment). Although a lot has
already been done, risks stemming from laws and government policies for the oil sector remain real. These
include:

e Insufficient number of comprehensive regulatory frameworks and inconsistent law - the Polish
oil sector isregulated under multiple legal acts, com pliance with which is overseen by different
ministries, and this ham pers the industry's smooth functioning.

e Delays in the implementation of EU directives and protracted law-making processes — despite the
immense effort of the Polish administration, a number of EU directives still remain to be
incorporated into national law. Moreover, many areas are under-regulated and the legislative
process is lengthy. Since the regulator is not inclined to share clear outlines of planned laws, the
regulatory framework is a source of considerable uncertainty or significant consequences, often
forcing Polish oil industry players to incur excessive costs.

® The Polish voice remains largely unheard in the EU arena — even though members of the
government administration meet with representatives of the oil industry to discuss draft EU
legislation, in many cases the Polish voice has gone unheard. This stems from, among other things,
insufficient dialogue maintained with other countries to work out a common position and
promote certain views and initiatives. The Polish administration should find ways to support not
only local, but also international groups whose business goals converge with Poland's national
interests. As the interests of individual EU member states vary, the adopted legislation does not
always correspond with the needs and expectations of the Polish refiners.

Risks and opportunities related to national and EU regulations, which were the focus of attention in
2013 and which will have a bearing on the oil industry's operations in 2014.

Regulations on mandatory stocks

The drafting of amendments to the Act on Stocks of Crude Qil, Petroleum Products and Natural Gas, and on
the Rules to be Followed in the Event of Threat to National Fuel Security or Disruptions on the Petroleum
Market of February 16th 2007, was completed in 2013. The primary purpose of the amendments is to
implement Council Directive 2009/119/EC imposing an obligation on Member States to maintain minimum
stocks of crude oil and/or petroleum products.

The draft amendment to the Act prepared by the Polish government puts in place measures beneficial to
producers and importers of fuels such as a mechanism enabling companies to gradually reduce their
mandatory stocks (by a total of approximately 30% by the end of 2017) in exchange for a stock charge, to be
paid by the companies on a monthly basis. By reducing the volume of mandatory stocks:
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animmense amount of funds tied up in the stocks will be released,

the companies' balance sheets will improve,

valuations of the companies' assets will be less affected by market price fluctuations, and
the logistics costs and administrative expenses of holding mandatory stocks will decrease.

All these factors combined should have the effect of enhancing the competitiveness of Polish oil companies
in global markets. The amendments also introduce long-awaited non-discriminatory rules for building and
maintaining mandatory stocks, applicable to all producers and importers of crude oil and petroleum products
operating in the Polish market.

Regulations on hydrocarbon exploration and production

Regulations on hydrocarbon exploration and production provided an important focus for Grupa LOTOS in
2013.

Work on regulations governing upstream operations in Poland was accelerated by the required
implementation of Directive 2009/31/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of April 23rd 2009
on the geological storage of carbon dioxide, as well as the Polish government's increased interest in
developing the unconventional gas industry.

The drafting of amendments to the Geological and Mining Law consisted of two parallel processes to enable
faster implementation of the Directive mentioned above and to adjust the law to cover unconventional
hydrocarbon exploration.

Directive on carbon dioxide storage demonstration projects was implemented into Polish law by an act of
September 27th 2013, which came into force on November 24th 2013.

In contrast, work on new regulations regarding hydrocarbon exploration and production was at the drafting
and consultation stage in 2013 and has not been completed yet. On April 23rd 2014, Polish Prime Minister
passed to the Parliament the Draft Act Amending the Act - Geological and Mining Law, and Certain Other Acts
together with Draft Secondary Legislation, which is a huge advancement on previous proposals of
hydrocarbon exploration and production regulations in Poland. However, many of its provisions could be
changed to help create an even more transparent and investor-friendly regulatory framework which would
be secure for our country and still conducive to effective development of the upstream sector. Issues
requiring further clarification and provisions needing to be formulated more precisely or to be changed are as
follows:

e performing geophysical surveys for hydrocarbon exploration without the need to secure a licence — the
proposed provisions allow for conducting geophysical surveys also in areas covered by a hydrogen
licence awarded to another entity, which denies the licence holding company its exclusive right resulting
from the mining usufruct contract signed to use the given area for mining purposes;

e conducting exploration operations without the need to secure a licence gives rise to uncertainty as to
whether the licence will be awarded after substantial expenditure has been made to complete the
exploration programme. This will increase risk for the operators, and inhibit exploration activity in
Poland;

e determining the legal status of mining usufruct in a comprehensive manner;

e sharing the right to geological information acquired when conducting operations in cooperation with
other entities and determining who will have the right to it after the consortium has been dissolved;
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®  possibility of receiving a decision on licence award upon a request of the company without a tender;

e aconsiderably higher mineral production royalty, which will increase the costs of exploration and
production operations;

Key to development of the hydrogen exploration and production segment are transparent and investor-
friendly regulations.

The final draft passed to the Parliament takes into account the proposals and recommendations put forward
to previous draft amendments to the Geological and Mining Law. In particular, the following provisions are
welcome:

® introducing the possibility to acquire a uniform licence covering all stages of the hydrogen exploration
and production programme;

e dropping the plans of establishing a National Energy Minerals Operator (Narodowy Operator Kopalin
Energetycznych, NOKE) and its obligatory participation in all consortiums intending to conduct
hydrogen exploration, appraisal and production activities;

® introducing the possibility of having a licence awarded to a consortium of entities interested in
developing the given licence area together;

® the proposed amendments to the Act on the Provision of Information on the Environment and its
Protection, Public Participation in Environmental Protection and Environmental Impact Assessments, as
aiming for streamlining hydrogen field development programmes.

EU regulations for biofuels

In 2013, the European Commission and the European Parliament continued the work on amendments to
Directive 2009/28/EC, proposed in 2012 by the European Commission. However, no final decisions were
made. The individual Commissions, the European Parliament, the member states, as well as international
industry organizations all had differing views on matters of key importance to the future of renewable
energy sources in transport, which prevented a consensus. Work on the proposed amendments will continue.

The European Commission's proposal to amend Directive 2009/28/EC with respect to biofuels stems from a
discussion, ongoing for several years now, about the indirect impact of biofuels on changes of land use, and
biofuels competing for land suitable for cultivating food crops and animal feed (Indirect Land Use Change,
ILUC).

Also, the Council of Ministers issued the Regulation on National Indicative Targets (NIT) for 2013-2018. It
should be noted that all National Indicative Targets for 2013-2016 have been set at 7.10%.

In addition, the Council of Ministers issued the Regulation on the level of the reduction rates for 2014 and

2015.1n 2013, Grupa LOTOS availed itself of the right to reduce the National Indicative Targets, which helped
to decrease the costs of their achievement.

-50-



‘()loros Integrated Annual Report 2013 - Grupa LOTOS S.A Win the Future

Carbon dioxide (CO2) emission allowances

In 2013, the EU Council approved the European Commission's proposal, earlier adopted by the European
Parliament, to suspend the auction of 900m CO; allowances in 2013-2015 (backloading). The number of
allowances until 2020 is to be increased annually by the same amount. The purpose of these steps is to raise
the price of emission allowances. There is a risk that the Commission will next propose a permanent removal
of suspended allowances from the market.

In 2013, the government continued work on the amendments to the Act on Monitoring and Control of Fuel
Quality, which are designed to introduce into the Polish legal system the National Reduction Target following
from Article 7a of Directive 2009/28/EC. However, no transparent regulations on the methodology for
calculating emission reductions have been developed so far, on either EU or national levels. This will therefore
require the greater involvement of industry representatives in providing support to the state administration in
the process of developing the EU and Polish laws in this area.
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Reputation and social risks

Reputation risk

stems from events that may affect the perception of the LOTOS Group and the value of the LOTOS brand. As
most of the risks in each business segment may affect this perception and value of the LOTOS brand, they are
evaluated in the context of both finance and reputation. As both evaluation criteria are equally important,
risks with a potentially significant effect on reputation are subject to detailed analyses, and mitigation plans
are developed in accordance with relevant risk management rules.

Social risk

relates to the environment of the LOTOS Group and its employees. In 2013, we commenced implementation
of the 2013-2015 Effective and Rising Programme to increase efficiency and support the continued dynamic
development of all LOTOS Group companies. However, we realize that the planned changes, in particular
those involving restructuring, may give rise to concerns and the disapproval of employees and our immediate
social environment. For this reason a series of meetings was held between LOTOS Group employees and the
Board of Grupa LOTOS as well as the Management Boards of its subsidiaries to discuss the Programme's
objectives and address any doubts and concerns. The majority of the employees who participated in these
voluntary meetings expressed a good understanding of the changes being implemented at the Company.

I understand the key objectives of the 2013-2015 Effective and Rising Programme (%)

| strongly disagree

| disagree

| have no opinion

| agree -

| strongly agree

As the process moves forward, we continue to engage in open communication about the Programme and its

individual projects.

-52-



‘() LOTOS Integrated Annual Report 2013 - Grupa LOTOS S.A Win the Future

Misconduct risk

is construed at the LOTOS Group to mean an intentional act or omission which constitutes a violation of the
applicable laws, committed to secure unlawful gains or resulting in a loss for the Company, including any
forms of corruption. To minimise this risk, we take a systematic approach to misconduct prevention,
consisting in comprehensive and organized efforts to identify and assess the risk. Under the Misconduct
prevention system implemented at the LOTOS Group, solutions for preventing and identifying misconduct
and minimising its consequences have been put in place. The system is subject to an annual survey as part of
the Company's organizational maturity assessment, the results of which testify to the effectiveness of the

solutions applied.
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Project Risk

Project risk

is related to the possibility that a given project may fail, may be delayed, or may suffer budget overruns. As we
implement various significant projects, any materialisation of project risks may adversely affect our

operations and financial performance as a result of budget overruns or a project's failure to bring the
expected profits or to bring such profits at the expected time. In the case of key projects, materialisation of
such risks may also prevent the achievement of strategic objectives. In order to minimise these risks, we have
implemented uniform project management policies across the LOTOS Group. These policies require that a risk
management plan is in place for each project. Individual risks related to the given project are analysed and
assessed in detail, risk mitigation measures are identified, and responsibility for their implementation is
assigned to specific individuals. Implementation of each project is duly monitored and reported.

_54-



‘(,l.oros Integrated Annual Report 2013 - Grupa LOTOS S.A

Win the Future

Exploration and Production Segment

> Exploration risks > Technical and production risks

> Risks related to exploration and
production projects

> Financial
risks
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Technical and production risks

Risk of failure of production equipment and facilities due to their limited durability or
improper operation

—should this risk materialise, it may result in financial losses due to production stoppages. To effectively
manage this risk, we employ a number of measures, including regular overhauls and repairs, and vibration
and wear measurements of bearings. We also have certification bodies to perform periodic inspections of the
equipment.

Risks from infrastructure operation, such as the risk of oil spill, sea collision, fire or blowout

—which may cause environmental contamination, death of personnel, downsizing or stoppage of production,
and entail significant costs remedying the resulting damage or paying fines. This production-related risk is a
function of how well E&P infrastructure is operated, the use of appropriate technical solutions, as well as staff
awareness and skills. We therefore take steps to prevent such accidents. Should they nevertheless occur,
action plans have been prepared to mitigate their consequences.

As a result of our approach, no such process safety events as which would meet the criteria specified in the
definitions provided by API RP 754 regarding upstream activities were reported in the E&P segment in 2013.
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Risks related to exploration and production
projects

Risk of limited control of joint ventures

—since at least two partners are involved in such projects, there is a risk that they will not be executed in
accordance with the LOTOS Group's expectations. We mitigate this risk by properly defining the acceptable
conditions on which we can become involved in a project, and by vetting the other interest holders, their
goals, motivation, financial standing, ownership structure and perception. For this, we rely on our in-house
resources and/or business intelligence agencies. Another important thing is to properly define the common
interests, analyse the legal, tax and business regulations in a due diligence process, and study the provisions
of partnership agreements to ensure our interests are secured. The risk is also minimised by devising an
appropriate negotiation strategy at the time of entering into a new partnership and while it continues, as
well as by ongoing monitoring of contractual provisions, evaluating and approving budgets and schedules,
appointing committees, and recommending decisions to be made by the relevant governing bodies.

All of these steps were taken in 2013 for our licences held jointly with partners in both Norway and Poland. In
Poland, one example is the operation of the B4/B6 gas fields in partnership with CalEnergy Resources.

Risk of involving capital in projects which yield unsatisfactory returns — this risk is related to partnership
agreements which may result in financial losses. To counteract this risk materializing, we make sure to
properly define the goals and conditions on which we can participate in a project. Proper tools for assessing
each such project are identified and multidisciplinary teams are set up to perform its economic, legal, tax or
technical analyses.

Risk of failure to fully recover funds invested in the Yme project

—given the significance of the Yme project, we have brought it under special supervision. We are
implementing a number of measures mitigating the attendant risks. Currently, efforts are being made to sell
the interests in the Yme field. We have defined two sub-projects — removal of the MOPU (Mobile Offshore
Production Unit) from the field and submission of a new Yme field development plan to Norway's Ministry of
Petroleum and Energy to raise the value of the interests we intend to sell. To mitigate the associated risk, an
agreement was signed with SBM, the MOPU's manufacturer, in which SBM agreed to cover the costs of the
unit's removal from the field, and paid compensation to the consortium members. In 2013, we also held a
process to select a contractor for the MOPU's removal. We evaluated the quality of work performed by the
operator, helped to build an agreement between those partners that were not consortium operators to
strengthen our position, engaged international advisers and, to ensure we have greater control, seconded
one of our employees to the operator. We also held talks with the Norwegian authorities to clearly confirm
the intention of continuing our activities on the Norwegian Continental Shelf, outlining the planned steps.

Risk of bad weather conditions

—this is a crucial risk factor in a marine environment, which may delay projects and, in extreme cases, force us
to suspend production. To minimise the adverse effect of this risk, systems are deployed to monitor weather
conditions and trigger appropriate safety procedures when necessary.
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Financial risks

The segment's most significant risks in 2013 included risks associated with macroeconomic conditions,
limited availability of funding for investments, and changes in legal regulations, including tax legislation.
These are described in detail in the section on risks of the financial segment. (more information)
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Operating segment

> Technical risk > Risk of unavailability or limited availability
of natural gas

> Work safety risk

> Risks related to carbon dioxide (CO2) > Environmental risks
emission allowance limits

> Risk related to legislative changes with
respect to REACH

> Risk of introduction of stricter quality
requirements for petroleum products
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Technical risk

Technical risk is related to the possibility of occurrence of serious industrial failures or
irreparable damage to infrastructure.

Any materialisation of this risk may seriously affect our operations and financial performance by
necessitating additional expenditure on repair or replacement of installations or equipment, or by causing
disruptions to the production process. A number of measures are implemented within the LOTOS Group to
mitigate the risk. We prioritise installations and equipment based on their criticality. The technologies and
equipment which we use are in line with the Best Available Techniques (BAT). We have emergency shutdown
systems in place to prevent uncontrollable escalation of incidents, and our process units are also fitted with
their own safety and protection systems. In addition, in order to raise standards for assessment of the
technical condition of high-pressure installations and equipment, we commenced implementation of the
Risk-Based Inspection method, which utilises risk assessment principles. We are also working on
implementing the Risk-Based Work Selection method, which involves plant engineering planning based on
previous risk analyses for individual units. Having implemented these methodologies, we will be able to
manage the Grupa LOTOS infrastructure in a better and more efficient way.

In 2013, we carried out the Spring 2013 Overhaul Shutdown, during which thousands of different tasks were
performed, and a total of over five thousand pieces of equipment were examined, repaired or replaced. The
overhaul shutdown also provided an opportunity to carry out all the necessary inspections and tests of
installations and equipment subject to certification by the Office of Technical Inspection. All the apparatus
and piping required to meet the Office of Technical Inspection's standards successfully did so and obtained
relevant validation extensions, which improved the refinery's process safety (more information).

It should be noted that no such process safety events as which would meet the criteria specified in the
definitions provided by API RP 754 were reported at Grupa LOTOS's refinery in Gdarisk in 2013.
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Risk of unavailability or limited availability of
natural gas

Risk of unavailability or limited availability of natural gas

— Currently, natural gas is the refinery's main energy carrier; through the refinery's fuel gas network it is fed to
process furnaces and, separately, to the CHP plant. Natural gas is also a feedstock processed at two hydrogen
production plants. If the risk materialises, it could temporarily affect sales of selected products and result in
higher operating costs. To reduce the potential impact of this risk, we continue to maintain infrastructure
allowing us to revert to the fuels which we used before natural gas was introduced at the refinery.
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Work safety risk

Work safety risk

relates to potential occurrence of accidents and other threats involving exposure of employees to dangerous
and onerous factors. We continuously improve and implement new technical and organizational measures
in order to ensure safe working conditions for anyone visiting the premises or working there for the
Company. Grupa LOTOS's internal requirements in this respect are communicated to its trading partners via a
dedicated website. Relevant rules of conduct are regularly monitored for compliance and post-inspection
requirements are enforced. Education programmes are also operated to raise the employees' awareness of
safety standards and to encourage them to observe these standards at work (more information).
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Risks related to carbon dioxide (CO») emission
allowance limits

Risks related to carbon dioxide (CO2) emission allowance limits

involve insufficient allocation of CO; emission allowances, which would force the Company to incur certain
costs in order to purchase a sufficient number of allowances. 2013 was the first year of operation of the
National Allocation Plan 2013-2020 (phase three NAP), and was in many respects an unusual year. Thus far,
oil refineries had been allocated allowances on the basis of their throughput capacity utilization. Starting
from 2013, for the first time refineries were to be assigned allowances calculated using the CWT (Complexity
Weighted Tonnage) benchmarking. Another unusual development was that the European Commission not
only declined to approve free allocation of allowances to installations covered by the Emission Trading
Scheme, but also, from time to time, changed the general rules of such allocation. Therefore, Grupa LOTOS,
just like other EU ETS participants, faced the risk of having to make decisions without knowing the precise
rules.

According to information from the Ministry of Environment, Grupa LOTOS is going to be assigned 1,521,342
CO3z emission allowances to cover its emissions for 2013, and will be granted 11,303,332 allowances for the
entire 2013-2020 trading period. This, as we are already aware, will result in a shortage of allowances and the
Company will have to purchase them from other participants of the scheme. With a view to minimising the
volume of additional emission allowance purchases, in recent years we have embarked on a number of
projects, such as switchover to natural gas as the fuel used for power generation and as the key feedstock in
hydrogen production; recovery of flare gases; upgrades of process furnaces, and implementation of a
continuous energy efficiency improvement programme for the refinery's production units.
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Environmental risks

Environmental risks relate to the potential adverse environmental impact of Grupa LOTOS. The environmental
risks are interrelated with a number of other risks, in particular the technical and process risks, whose
materialization may cause a threat to the environment (through increased emission of flue gases, ground
leakage of hydrocarbons, etc.). For these reasons, each risk we identify is assessed also in terms of potential
damage to the environment, and appropriate preventive measures are put in place. In addition, to ensure
compliance with all environmental regulations and standards, we monitor the national and community laws
on a daily basis, and where possible actively participate in the legislative process. Applications for any
requisite permits and decisions are made well in advance, in consideration of the risk that administrative
proceedings may last longer than expected.
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Risk related to legislative changes with respect
to REACH (Registration, Evaluation,
Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals)

Risk related to legislative changes with respect to REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and
Restriction of Chemicals) — at present, this risk is particularly related to the possibility of placing the EDC (1,2—
dichloroethane) solvent, used by Grupa LOTOS, on the list of priority substances to be included in Annex XIV
to the REACH Regulation. If this solvent is finally listed in Annex X1V, a permit for its use will have to be
sought. Therefore, we have taken a number of measures to minimise the risk in this respect. In 2013, we
joined the EDC DU Consortium, an association of EDC users. The association will develop the documentation
necessary to apply for the permit. An in-house project to coordinate the actions described above was also
launched. In parallel, relevant installations are being upgraded with a special focus on the impact of
regulatory changes on the use of the EDC solvent.
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Risk of introduction of stricter quality
requirements for petroleum products

Risk of introduction of stricter quality requirements for petroleum products

—this risk involves potential difficulties in ensuring timely compliance with future quality standards. To
mitigate this risk, we are monitoring proposed new standards and regulations which have a bearing on our
production and trading operations; we closely follow the relevant plans of various authorities, institutions
and international organizations such as the European Commission or the International Maritime
Organization (IMO). Our work on Technical Committee 222 at the Polish Committee for Standardisation,
responsible for petroleum products and process liquids, has provided us with an opportunity to voice our
opinions on the proposed European standards during their drafting. We also have a say on quality
requirements, in particular requirements applicable to engine fuels, through our participation in the work of
the Polish Organization of Qil Industry and Trade (POPiHN).
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Financial segment

Grupa LOTOS operates a Financial Risk Management Office responsible for coordinating and supervising

steps taken to ensure that decisions made by LOTOS Group companies are optimised in terms of financial risks.
The aim of these efforts is to ensure that the financial risk management policy is up-to-date, coherent and
consistent with Grupa LOTOS's strategic objectives, and to provide for the efficiency, effectiveness and
operational security of the financial risk management process.

The Company has also established a Price Risk and Trading Committee, whose tasks include supervision and
coordination of price risk management at Grupa LOTOS in relation to prices of crude oil, petroleum products
(including biofuels and biocomponents), natural gas and other raw materials, as well as prices of carbon
emission allowances and electricity.

In order to ensure that financial risks are effectively managed and to minimise the risk of error, all data used
to support the assessment process are thoroughly verified, and the decisions made are based on in-depth
analyses in accordance with risk management policy, limit structure and operating procedures. Financial risk
management policies, instruments and the impact of key risk factors on individual items of our financial
results are presented in the consolidated financial statements. (see Notes to the consolidated financial

statements)
> Feedstock and petroleum products price > Risk related to prices of carbon (CO2)
risk allowances

> Liquidity risk

> Currency risk > Interest rate risk

> Risk of limited access to external financing
or changes in lending terms

> Counterparty credit risk in financial > Creditrisk in trade
transactions transactions

> Risk of adverse changes in tax
regulations, interpretations or court rulings
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Feedstock and petroleum products price risk

Feedstock and petroleum products price risk

—to manage the risk, we continue work to develop a new risk management policy. Our efforts in this respect
depend on implementation of the Energy Trading and Risk Management (ETRM) system. In 2012, work on
implementation of the Allegro 8.0 system began; the project is to be completed in 2014.
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Risk related to prices of carbon (COy)
allowances

Risk related to prices of carbon (CO3) allowances —in 2013, Grupa LOTOS managed phase Il of the EU CO2
Emissions Trading Scheme covering the 2013-2020 trading period. Given the lack of liquidity on the futures
market and the instability of the underlying position in the period until 2020, the end of the risk
management period for the risk related to the prices of CO; emission allowances in phase Ill was set for the
end of 2019. However, with the passage of time, the risk management period will be extended until 2020.
For detailed information on exposure and derivative transactions open as at December 31st 2013, see the
consolidated financial statements. (more information)
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk

—this is one of the key risks to the security of the Company’s operations, and involves its ability to discharge
all liabilities in a timely manner. Liquidity is managed for the entire LOTOS Group based on current liquidity
forecasts. The process consists in using an appropriate selection of financial instruments (including cash
pooling and diversified sources of financing), optimising the working capital position (including payment
terms at LOTOS Group companies and under trading contracts) and applying IT solutions to improve the
security and effectiveness of the process.
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Currency risk

Currency risk

—this risk is managed based on the Strategy of Currency Risk Management at Grupa LOTOS. The US dollar
(USD) is the currency of the market on which we operate. Thus we have a structurally long position in US
dollars. The US dollar was chosen as the most adequate currency for contracting and repaying long-term
facilities, including those used to finance the 10+ Programme. The LOTOS Group operates a group bank,
which allows the LOTOS Group companies to enter into FX transactions with Grupa LOTOS, improving the
effectiveness of currency risk management.
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk
— this risk is related to the expected schedule of payments under the loans taken out to finance inventories
and the 10+ Programme, with the resulting interest accruing at the USD LIBOR floating rate.
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Risk of limited access to external financing or
changes in lending terms

Risk of limited access to external financing or changes in lending terms

— this risk is minimised by maintaining relationships with a diversified group of creditworthy partners, use of a
wide range of financial instruments, fulfilment of disclosure obligations, as well as monitoring of and
compliance with financial ratios, covenants and any other obligations towards the banks. The financial
position and overall standing of the banks providing financing for the LOTOS Group are also monitored, as
are any factors driven by developments on the global financial markets that may threaten the LOTOS Group's
ability to raise financing.

The risk of limiting financing for our investment projects is particularly significant in the case of our
exploration and production segment. As the risk depends on the quality of particular projects, each project is
prepared with due care, in accordance with pre-defined rules. As part of ongoing risk management, a
project's readiness for financing is determined by assessing its technical, organizational, legal, administrative
and financial maturity. Next, the banking market is surveyed to determine availability and terms of financing.

The most recent large exploration and production project for which financing was raised was the

development of the B8 field. The financing for the project was arranged from both commercial banks and
other financing institutions (Polskie Inwestycje Rozwojowe - Polish Investments for Development).
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Counterparty credit risk in financial transactions

Counterparty credit risk in financial transactions

—we limit this risk by entering into transactions only with financial institutions or companies holding the
minimum acceptable credit rating assigned by rating agencies, or holding appropriate guarantees (if they do
not hold their own credit ratings at the required levels) issued by a financial institution or company holding
the minimum acceptable credit rating assigned by credit agencies and meeting the requirements adopted by
Grupa LOTOS and resulting from contractual obligations. Credit limits in financial transactions are determined
by reference to the Company's equity and a ratio calculated based on agency credit ratings updated on an
ongoing basis. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.
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Credit risk in trade transactions

Credit risk in trade transactions

—The LOTOS Group operates an internal procedure for verifying the creditworthiness of trading partners
seeking an open credit limit. Grupa LOTOS grants such limits based on assessment of partners’
creditworthiness, taking into account the available data and information. The final decision on the amount of
trade credit limit is made by persons responsible for credit decisions in line with their assigned responsibilities.
The utilisation of credit limits is monitored on an ongoing basis.
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Risk of adverse changes in tax regulations,
interpretations or court rulings

Risk of adverse changes in tax regulations, interpretations or court rulings — this risk may result in higher tax
burden (excise duty, property tax, CIT), and give rise to tax risk in transactions where such risk was previously
non-existent. Differing legal interpretations of the tax regulations lead to uncertainty, and in international
trading may affect our credibility and force us to withdraw from valuable projects.

The level of tax risk faced by businesses in Poland is high, and continues to grow. One of the risk factors is
non-observance by the legislator of the principle of vacatio legis when enacting amendments to tax laws.
This prevents businesses from adjusting to the new requirements in time and may expose them to the risk of
additional costs or sanctions. Where a tax risk arises from possible disparate interpretations of a law, we
request the Minister of Finance to present a binding interpretation of such law. As a member of respectable
organizations of employers and entrepreneurs, we also voice our opinions on proposed bills and are thus
able to respond appropriately to the changing legal environment. In light of the numerous changes in
interpretation of the tax laws and the introduction of new regulations, we regularly update our internal
procedures to ensure compliance with legal requirements and to identify and mitigate any tax risks,
particularly their effect on the LOTOS Group's financial statements.

The risk related to changes in legislation, including in tax laws, is particularly important in our exploration and
production business as it may hurt our profits and delay project implementation. We monitor the legal
environment in Poland, in other EU countries, and in Norway (we operate in countries with stable tax regimes
and high standards, hence the risk of sudden changes is limited). We take part in public and industry
consultations on drafts of legal acts, we consult legal and tax advisers when assessing the effects of proposed
changes and drafting commentaries and remarks regarding legal acts, and we are also engaged in lobbying
activities. In 2013, we undertook a range of activities which resulted in the development of more favourable
solutions compared with the originally proposed provisions of the law on new hydrocarbon tax, and in the
proposal of numerous amendments to the mining and geological law.
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Marketing segment

> Risks related to diversification of supply > Competition risk
sources

> Risk of decline in domestic

demand
> Risk from grey market > Risk related to sea freight
expansion safety
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Risks related to diversification of supply sources

Risks related to diversification of supply sources

—at Grupa LOTOS, feedstock is supplied mainly via a system of pipelines and by sea, which means that the key
risks in this area lie in the political situation of the countries exporting crude oil and the condition of the
infrastructure. We are consistently pursuing our policy to diversify the directions and sources of our crude oil
supplies by focusing on the following aspects:

® supply security — through progressive expansion of our presence on the international oil markets,
regular contracting of various crudes transported by sea, creating conditions to radically increase
the share of such crudes in total supplies to the refinery in case of any disruption of supplies from
the main import market, and expanding the share of our own production in total feedstock
volumes.

e improvement of competitive position — by fully capitalising on the coastal location of the refinery
in Gdansk and the possibility of sourcing crude supplies through two independent channels:
Russian oil through the Druzhba Pipeline and various types of oil through Naftoport (an offshore
oil terminal).

The appropriate selection of crude types and supply directions is a result of continuous efforts to maximise
the integrated margin.
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Competition risk

Competition risk

—as market conditions need to be factored into the pricing policy, this type of risk may lead to erosion of
margins and profits. Risk factors here include the unrelenting price competition on the fuel market, and also
the strong volatility of global macroeconomic conditions. We are continuously refining our tools for
monitoring variables affecting prices and margins. In retail sales, we are pursuing market diversification,
including diversification into segments less prone to competition-induced margin erosion, as well as other
initiatives aimed at winning and retaining customers.
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Risk of decline in domestic demand

Risk of decline in domestic demand

—due, among other things, to macro factors, such as economic slowdown, decline in investments, and
shrinking industrial output. Various factors, such as growing unemployment, could adversely affect
consumption of our products and services. Therefore we use a variety of distribution channels to sell our
products while pursuing a pricing policy designed to ensure they remain competitive, and seek to optimise

our operating expenses.

Gasoline and diesel oil consumption in Poland in 2011-2013 ['000 tonnes]

2011 2012 2013

Source: In-house analysis on the basis of Polish Organization of Oil Industry and Trade (POPiHN) data.
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Risk from grey market expansion

Risk from grey market expansion

—inrecentyears, Poland has seen an increase in illegal trade, especially of diesel oil and gasoline, which
significantly affects the LOTOS Group's sales. According to the Polish Organization of Oil Industry and Trade
(POPiHN), the resulting losses to legitimate businesses may continue to grow. Whether the situation improves
will depend chiefly on new legal regulations, which are now being developed by the government. The
legislative work is being supported by POPIHN, in which we are working with the other member companies to
support and fund initiatives aimed at supplying market data and analyses that could later be used to assess
the size of the grey market and the associated risks.
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Risk related to sea freight safety

Risk related to sea freight safety

—we put in place measures designed to mitigate the risk of an environmental disaster in the event of
hydrocarbon spills from ship tankers. We have established relationships with providers of maritime transport
services which operate fleets meeting high technical standards and which observe maritime conventions. The
shipping companies we work with meet very strict requirements regarding safety and prevention of
accidents at sea. Moreover, in 2013 we evaluated the possibility of implementing much more stringent safety
standards in the area of sea freight at our organization.
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Beata Ossowska-Lango

Internal Audit Office Director, Grupa LOTOS, President of the Ethics Committee, CSR Strategy Leader for ethics and corporate

misconduct prevention

, ’ Increasing our organization’s
resistance to misconduct by
2015 is part of the key
objective of the LOTOS
Group's Corporate Social
Responsibility Strategy. This
objective is to improve
management by ensuring
ethical conduct and the
transparency of business
processes, aswell as
protecting the organization
against the risk of
irregularities that may
threaten its operations. We
plan to achieve this through
our Ethical Conduct
Programme and Misconduct
Risk Management
Programme.

Beata Ossowska-Lango

Internal Audit Office Director, Grupa LOTOS,
President of the Ethics Committee, CSR
Strategy Leader for ethics and corporate
misconduct prevention

Increasing our organization'’s resistance to misconduct by 2015
is part of the key objective of the LOTOS Group’s Corporate
Social Responsibility Strategy. This objective is to improve
management by ensuring ethical conduct and the transparency
of business processes, as well as protecting the organization
against the risk of irregularities that may threaten its
operations. We plan to achieve this through our Ethical Conduct
Programme and Misconduct Risk Management Programme.

As of the beginning of 2013, the key document of the Ethical Conduct
Programme, the LOTOS Group’s Code of Ethics, became effective. The Board of
Grupa LOTOS also decided on relevant institutional solutions to ensure efficient
implementation and operations of the Programme, in the form of the Ethics
Committee and the Ethics Officer. Among the earliest steps taken by the newly
appointed Ethics Committee was inviting the employees to take part in public
consultations on the current status of ethical culture within our organization and
the type of Ethics Officer selection process preferred by them. Over five hundred
LOTOS Group employees participated in the consultations.

The vast majority declared that the Company’s efforts to develop the desired
ethical corporate culture were suitable, and that ethical culture itself was
essential in their everyday work. Last year’s comprehensive communication and
education programmes for all LOTOS Group employees certainly helped to bring
about these positive results. We also began promoting our values and principles
of ethical business conduct among our key trading partners.

In 2012, before the enactment of the Code of Ethics, we developed and
published another important document, the Misconduct Prevention Policy. We
appointed persons coordinating and responsible for misconduct prevention
activities, and established channels for reporting suspected misconduct, as well as
appropriate organizational arrangements and processes. Furthermore, education
and awareness initiatives were undertaken amongst staff, focusing on
misconduct prevention and the relevance of the system.

In 2013, we conducted a periodic assessment of the risk of misconduct in
individual processes, the aim of which was to find out where the risk was the
highest from the perspective of the Company as a whole. Based on the
assessment, processes to be thoroughly inspected in the near future were
selected. In line with the adopted Corporate Social Responsibility Strategy until
2015, we intend to introduce the comprehensive misconduct risk management
process throughout the LOTOS Group.

What distinguishes our efforts within the misconduct prevention system is
transparency in communication related to both programmes. Key documents and
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channels for reporting suspected misconduct have been published and we also
openly communicate ethical issues throughout our supply chain. This approach
complies with LOTOS ethical values, originating in the Company’s culture and the
concept of corporate social responsibility.

Our efforts were reflected in the relatively high score achieved in the
organizational maturity assessment of Grupa LOTOS. This was largely the result of
steps taken in the last few years, designed to secure the company’s value and
operations, demonstrated through the effectively working internal control system
and corporate governance solutions intended to ensure compliance.
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Misconduct prevention system

Ethical issues and misconduct prevention form an area covered by the LOTOS Group Corporate Social
Responsibility Strategy for 2012-2015, approved by the Board of Grupa LOTOS in 2012. For this area, the
following key objective was defined: to improve management by ensuring ethical conduct and the
transparency of business processes, as well as protecting of the organization against the risk of irregularities
that may threaten its operations.

With a view to achieving this objective, in 2012 the LOTOS Group implemented a misconduct prevention
system, which undergoes constant development. The system is rooted in, and further refined, based on
Managing the Business Risk of Fraud: A Practical Guide —a manual prepared by the Institute of Internal
Auditors, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Association of Certified Fraud
Examiners.

The prevention system in place at the LOTOS Group is geared towards ensuring an optimum degree of
resistance to misconduct.

Resistance to misconduct is achieved by companies which utilise their awareness of real and
perceived misconduct threats arising in the course of their operations to implement and
apply the solutions that are best adapted to the scale and nature of the risk, and that are
geared towards preventing, detecting and responding to such threats.

The purpose of these efforts is to secure the organization's ability to:

® mitigate therisk of misconduct,
® reducethe harmful effects of misconduct,
® gatherresources which will accelerate the organization's return to its pre-misconduct state.

The implementation of a comprehensive misconduct risk management system has been confirmed as a valid
course of action by the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners in its 2012 Report to the Nations, which
presented the results of research into the nature and scale of misconduct in individual industries.

Oil and gas companies rank fourth in terms of
losses incurred as a result of individual cases of
misconduct and second in terms of the number of

REFPORT TO THE NATIONS corruption incidents. The latter accounted for some

CouUra NAL FRAUD AND ABUSE

kAP ey e 50% of all misconduct cases.
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The LOTOS Group's misconduct prevention system has been developed based on solutions taking into
account the importance and effectiveness of internal auditing procedures and independent reviews carried
out by management staff. This is in compliance with the approach presented by the results of the ACFE report
and in line with the best market practice.

With this in mind, we decided to incorporate misconduct prevention into our enterprise risk management
procedure. We construe misconduct as an intentional act or omission which constitutes a violation of the
applicable laws, committed to secure unlawful gains or resulting in a loss for the Company, including any
forms of corruption.

The Ethical Conduct Programme and the Misconduct Risk Management Policy in place at the
LOTOS Group serve to mitigate the risk of misconduct. By comprehensively pursuing these
programmes, we intend to safequard the Company's reputation and assets, as well as to
ensure that our decisions are effective and enhance the value of the Company.

The Ethical Conduct Programme

is pursued with the use of the Code of Ethics, the Ethics Officer and the Ethics Hotline, and by promoting
awareness of and communication of ethical issues. The purpose of these efforts is to encourage the LOTOS
Group's employees to behave in accordance with an appropriate ethical culture.

Elements of the Ethical Conduct Programme

ETHICAL

CONDUCT
PROGRAMME
of the LOTOS Group

Pics REPORTN®
SYSTEM
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The centrepiece of the Ethical Conduct Programme is the LOTOS Group's Code of Ethics, which has been in
force since January 2013. The Ethical Conduct Programme is overseen by the President of the Board of Grupa
LOTOS, the Ethics Committee, and the Ethics Officer.

The Ethics Committee is a body assigned to support the work of the Ethical Conduct Programme to develop a
corporate culture based on ethical values. The Committee is composed of widely respected representatives of
each of the LOTOS Group's operating segments.

The responsibilities of the Ethical Officer include promoting knowledge of the Code of Ethics, providing
support in discussing ethical dilemmas voiced by employees, and organizing the process of reporting and
investigating violations of the Code.

Reporting channels for violations
of the LOTOS Group's code of ethics

Consultation with immediate superior

Consultation with the Ethics Officer

Ethics Hotline: liniaetyki@grupalotos.pl

By telephone: +48 58 308 80 70

By post

Ethics education plays a key role in developing desirable attitudes, by familiarising the recipients of the Code
of Ethics with its provisions and educating them on proper ethical conduct in specific business situations. In
2013, we pursued a number of initiatives aimed at increasing the awareness and knowledge of business
ethics at the LOTOS Group, which included:

Discussing ethical issues as part of the training for newly hired em ployees;
Organizing voluntary 'The LOTOS Group Ethical Principlesin Practice' workshops for em ployees and
management personnel;

e Organizing meetings with the LOTOS Group's management staff to discuss the implementation of
the Code of Ethics;

® Incorporating theissue of business ethicsinto regular communication both at the LOTOS Group
and with the LOTOS service station operators.

Ethics education at the LOTOS Group in 2013

Numberofnewly hired employeestrained 56
Numberofparticipantsofthe' TheLOTOS Group EthicalPrinciplesin Practice' workshops 69
Numberofmanagementstaffparticipating in meetingsimplementing the Code of Ethics 282

NumberofLOTOS servicestation operatorsto whom theknowledge of ethica lissueswa sdirectly communica ted 261
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The Misconduct Risk Management Policy

consists in the coordination of misconduct prevention and detection measures (identification and
evaluation) implemented in individual business processes, misconduct prevention education, as well as
overall assessment of the organization's resistance to misconduct.

Elements of the Misconduct Risk Management Policy

Identifying and
assessing
misconduct risk in
the organization

Reporting Investigating
channels reported issues

Identification
of misconduct

Identifyi d
incidents entitying an

assessing
misconduct risk

Identifying and
assessing
misconduct risk in
individual areas

Efforts to reduce
Explana?ory the negative
proceedings effects of

misconduct

Misconduct
knowledge
management

As in the case of the Ethical Conduct Programme, under the Misconduct Risk Management Programme we
also aim to educate senior executives and managers in corporate misconduct issues. The purpose is to raise
their awareness of corporate misconduct, making them realize the potential losses and risks to the
organization, how it is committed, as well as how it is identified and prevented. In 2013, the operation of the
LOTOS Group's misconduct prevention system was discussed, with a particular emphasis on compliance with
the Misconduct Prevention Policy adopted by the Board of Grupa LOTOS to define the employees’
responsibilities and methods of communicating any identified instances of misconduct, including corruption.

Percentage of Grupa LOTOS employees trained in the organization’s anti-corruption policies and procedures

Position type 2011 2012 2013
Managementpositions 89 625 32
Otherpositions 74 57 7

Channels dedicated to reporting suspected misconduct are available to all employees, as well as external
stakeholders. According to the Misconduct Prevention Policy, every employee is obliged to immediately
report any such suspicion.
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Reporting channels for suspected
misconduct at the LOTOS Group

Chief Executive Officer

Head of the Internal Audit Office

Immediate superior

By e-mail:
audyt.wewnetrzny@grupalotos.pl or
lotos@grupalotos.pl

By telephone:
+48 58 326 43 00 or
801345678

A report is passed on to
the Internal Audit Office

As part of the misconduct prevention system, we conduct periodic assessments of the organization’s
resistance to misconduct. The first results of this exercise were available in 2013, confirming that the
measures taken are both thorough and systematic.

As part of the assessment of the organization’s resistance to misconduct, we also examined the risk of
corruption. In line with the adopted methodology, the heads of the Company’s organizational units were

asked to comment on all processes in place at Grupa LOTOS in a questionnaire-based survey.

Business units of the LOTOS Group assessed for corruption risk in 2012-2013

Totalnumberofunits 15

Percentageofunitssubjectto assessment 7%

One noteworthy fact is that in 2013 there was no single event resulting in dismissal or disciplinary action
against an employee at the LOTOS Group on charges of corruption, nor were there any instances of a
business contract not being renewed because of a breach of the rules for counteracting corruption.
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Value growth strateqy
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Value growth strategy

The LOTOS Group's overarching strategic objective is to create value for shareholders by optimising its
utilisation of human and material resources and by continually developing its oil exploration and production,
processing and trading activities. We decided to develop these areas in accordance with the principles of
sustainable growth, which we define as the continuous effort to reduce our environmental footprint, and by
paying due regard to the intellectual capital and experience of our personnel.

Creating LOTOS value
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Creating value over time
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Global macroeconomic situation

GDP growth in 2012-2014 GDP growth in 2012-2013
(y-o0-y change)
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Source: In-house analysis based on IMF data (October 2013 and Source: In-house analysis based on Eurostat, OECD, and International
January 2014). Monetary Fund data.

The global economic situation in 2013 was below market expectations. The key economies of the world
continued growing, often at rates lower than in previous years.

Developed economies were supported by loose monetary policies and efforts to maintain market liquidity.

While in 2013 the global economy continued to grow, the estimated growth rate (+3.0%) was lower than
expected in the forecasts published in April and July 2013, though it did come in slightly above the October
2013 estimates. Similarly, the forecast for the 2014 global GDP growth rate has been revised upward by
0.1pp, and now stands at 3.7%.

Despite a number of remedial steps and reforms undertaken in the eurozone countries, they still suffered an
estimated 0.4% decline in GDP in 2013. However, the GDP growth rate in the eurozone is expected to return
to the positive territory in 2014. ("

Developed countries may be expected to further stimulate economic growth with continued support from
monetary policy (without further loosening), balanced fiscal policy and further structural reforms, to address
key economic concerns, including unemployment.

m World Economic Outlook, IMF, April 2013 and January 2014.
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Macroeconomic situation in Poland

2013 proved to be another year of economic slowdown in Poland. According to preliminary estimates, in real
terms Polish GDP grew by 1.6% over 2012, which is the lowest growth rate since 2009. This was chiefly
attributable to weaker domestic demand, a fractional increase in sold industrial output and lower
construction output. At the same time, inflation was visibly down to 0.9%.

The economic slowdown in Poland in 2013 is expected to be accompanied by higher unemployment.
According to market estimates, the unemployment rate as at the end of 2013 was 13.4% and remained
unchanged relative to the end of 2012. In 2013, salaries and wages in manufacturing were up nearly 3%
compared with 2012.
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Global refining market

In 2013, crude oil production and processing increased worldwide. Global fuel consumption was driven
chiefly by developing countries such as China and India, as well as Brazil and Russia, while fuel consumption in
OECD countries fell off. Although the bulk of global demand for crude oil is satisfied by non-OECD producers,
at the same time crude production has increased in OECD countries in recent years, mostly on the back of

higher shale oil production in the US. Crude oil production in the European Union continues to fall, which has
a negative effect on the energy security of the entire Community.

Crude output (million tonnes/year)
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2013 saw a further increase in global demand for crude oil, with differences in growth rates between
individual continents continuing. Global demand grew by an estimated 0.9m bbl/d, while in Europe the
demand fell by 0.22m bbl/d, on the back of the lingering economic crisis in several European countries. In
2013, crude oil supplies increased globally by an estimated 1.2m bbl/d, including approximately 1Tm bbl/d
contributed by increased production in the US and Canada. At the same time, production in the EU declined.

The key drivers of the situation in the refining sector include the skyrocketing supply in North America and
the increased demand seen in non-OECD countries. The rising supply accompanied by a decline in domestic
consumption has transformed the United States from the largest global importer of refining products into
the largest net exporter. Additionally, the shale revolution and low natural gas prices have further enhanced
the competitiveness of US refineries.
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European refining market

In Europe, the refining sector changed significantly in the wake of the 2008 global financial crisis. The 2009
drop in demand for petroleum products forced European refineries to reduce their output. This coincided
with the construction of several conversion projects, which meant that the gap between low- and high-
margin products also began to narrow. Furthermore, the United States, the largest buyer of gasoline from
Europe, reduced its imports on the back of substantial increases in its own shale oil production. All of these
developments have had a negative impact on the financial situation of European manufacturers, and
consequently the European downstream sector is experiencing a major crisis.

Since 2009, several refineries, with a combined processing capacity of 3.7m bbl/d, have been closed down in
Europe. However, this scaling back still seems insufficient, as many European refineries continue to generate
low returns, with their processing capacities still relatively underutilised.

A number of burdens resulting from EU legislation have been imposed on European refineries, which renders
them less competitive as compared to those located outside the EU. In effect, the dip in production observed
is bigger than that in demand.

The shutting down of European refineries poses a risk to Europe’s energy security, rendering
EU countries more dependent on imported refining products, which, in turn, may increase
their susceptibility to supply disruptions and their dependence on import terminals and
refining product storage facilities.

Refinery shutdowns in Europe in 2011-2013 *

Refinery Owner Country Capacity (‘000 bbl/d) Date
Harburg Shell Germany 110 2013
Gela Eni Italy 105 2013
Falconara API Italy 83 2013
Porto Marghera Eni Italy 80 2013
Coryton Petroplus United Kingdom 220 2012
PetitCouronne Petroplus France 162 2012
Lisichansk Rosneft Ukraine 160 2012
Arpechim Petrom Romania 70 2012
Paramo Unipetrol Czech Republic 20 2012
Rome Total Italy 86 2012
Cremona Tamoll Italy 90 2011

* Source: www.platts.com, Insight, December 2013
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The average refining capacity utilisation in Europe was 71% in October 2013, with daily output falling below
9m bbl, one of the lowest levels in recent years. This change was a result of the decrease in refining margins in
H2 2013, despite a large number of overhaul shutdowns at West European refineries (especially in Belgium

and Sweden). By the end of 2013, European margins had become so low that even the most efficient
refineries were recording them in the negative.

The average refining capacity utilisation in the US was 88.4% in November 2013, with several refineries
brought back online following completion of their overhaul shutdowns.

Erosion of the crack margin was not equally spread between all product groups. Gasoline crack proved the
weakest, which was a consequence of poor macroeconomic data from the US (including depressed fuel
consumption). The lowest gasoline crack margin of USD 88.84 per tonne was recorded on October 10th
2013, while the highest crack of USD 245.73 per tonne was seen on February 19th 2013; the crack change for
the year was -8.4% or USD -12.9 per tonne.

2013 crack margins for other products:

® Diesel oil —low: USD 96.18/t (February 28th 2013), high: USD 141.86/t (January 14th 2013) -
annual change: +26.9% or USD +29.3/t

e Jetfuel—low:USD 120.75/t (May 3rd 2013), high: USD 213.16/t (February 11th 2013) —annual
change: +9.8% or USD +16.3/t

e Light fuel oil —low: USD 69.25/t (May 3rd 2013), high: USD 133.49/t (February 15th 2013) —
annual change: +30.2% or USD +26.3/t

e Heavy fuel oil —low USD -293.11/t (September 6th 2013), high: USD -170.37/t (April 17th 2013)
—annual change: +4.3% or USD +11.6/1.

2013 crack margins (USD/t)
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Source: In-house analysis based on Thomson Reuters data.

As its main feedstock, Grupa LOTOS uses Russian REBCO crude (Russian Export Blend Crude Qil). Compared
with the global Brent benchmark, REBCO is a heavier crude, has greater density and a higher sulfur content,
and yields more middle distillates (diesel oil, aviation fuel). On the other hand, REBCO processing produces
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more residual fractions for use in the production of cheap heavy fuel oil. The economic viability of the Gdansk
refinery’s processing work depends heavily on the Brent/REBCO differential. Given its slightly lower quality
parameters, REBCO crude is usually marginally cheaper than Brent. However, the differential varies from time

to time and is subject to seasonality. With a high negative differential, refineries which rely on REBCO crude
record higher margins.

Urals/Brent differential in 2010-2013
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Source: In-house analysis based on Thomson Reuters data.

Industry analysts’ predictions for the future of the European refining sector are not optimistic, as fuel
consumption is expected to decline even further. This downward trend creates additional pressure on
refineries, forcing them to reduce their processing costs. In this context, improvements in the refinery’s
efficiency by adjusting its configuration (depth of crude processing) and optimising its units become crucial.
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International fuel market

Global fuel consumption ('000 Forecast global fuel consumption Forecast fuel consumption in
BBL/day) ('000 BBL/day) Europe ('000 BBL/day)
2011 2012 2013E 2013E 2014P 2018P 2013 2014P 2018P
Il Gasolines M Diesel oil Il Gasolines M Diesel oil Il Gasolines M Diesel oil
M Jet fuel [ LPG W Jet fuel [ LPG W Jet fuel [ LPG
B | iaht fuel oil B | iaht fuel oil B | iaht fiel oil
Source: In-house analysis based on JBC data, Source: In-house analysis based on JBC data, Source: In-house analysis based on JBC data,
November 2013. November 2013. November 2013.

Demand for oil refinery products in 2013 is estimated to have risen by 1.1% globally. Stronger demand was
seen in the gasolines (1.0%) and diesel oil (2.5%) segments. The estimated consumption of LPG and jet fuel
also increased (by 3.3% and 1.2%, respectively). However, the demand for light fuel oil slightly fell (by -1.5%).

According to forecasts, the overall global consumption of refinery products is expected to grow by over 5%
until 2018. It is estimated that demand for diesel oil, LPG and JET fuel will grow significantly over 2013
consumption (up 12%, 11% and 8%, respectively). The global consumption of gasolines should remain
relatively unchanged. Light fuel oil consumption is expected to fall by 13%.

According to estimates, consumption of petroleum products in Europe may have declined in 2013 by nearly
1.5%. However, LPG, diesel oil, and light fuel oil saw an increase of 2.8%, 0.2%, and 0.1%, respectively.
Consumption of gasolines and JET fuel fell by 4.0% and 0.7%. The restrained growth of fuels consumption in
Europe reflects the as-yet unresolved economic issues in certain EU Member States and in the eurozone.

The demand for oil refining products is forecast to fall in Europe by 3.7% until 2018. According to estimates,
one of the reasons behind the decline will be a significant drop in consumption of gasolines, exceeding 13%.
Lower consumption is also expected to affect the light fuel oil market (-16%). Concurrently, a strong increase
is expected in consumption of JET fuel - by 3.0%, and LPG - by 4.8%.

In the European car market, new passenger car registrations fell by nearly 2% in 2013, to 12.3m new cars.
However, in the utility vehicles segment new registrations increased by 1%, up to 1.8m vehicles. In terms of
registered new passenger cars, there is continued growing interest in diesel-fuelled cars. Their share in total
new car registrations in Western Europe was nearly 55% (compared with 46% in 2009). 2

m Mid-Term Oil Market Outlook 2013-2018, JBC Energy, November 2013
(2)

European Automobile Manufacturers’ Association, www.acea.be
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Polish fuel market

Domestic demand for fuels is shaped by the general economic situation Fuel consumption in Poland (‘000
in Poland and the region. In the last two years, the Polish fuel market tonnes)

has been challenged by a growing grey market, driven by high fuel
prices and the economic slowdown. lllegally imported diesel oil, which
fails to be captured by official statistics, is the main commodity on the
grey market. Officially, the consumption of diesel oil in 2013 was 11.3m
tonnes, 6% down on 2012. POPiHN estimates that in 2013 fuels sold on
the grey market may have accounted for as much as 12% of total
volumes. Despite the unfavourable domestic trends, diesel oil remained
the primary transport fuel in Poland, with an estimated 65.5% share in
domestic consumption in 2013.

2011 2012 2013

Gasoline sales on the Polish market in 2013 followed prevalent trends in Il Diesel oil
other parts of Europe and continued to fall. As in previous years, : Sa;flf';'els |

. . . . . 19 el ol
demand for gasolines in 2013 fell on the back of high retail prices, by W LPG
over 2% (84 thousand tonnes), down to 3.7m tonnes. Other adverse B Aviation fuel
economic trends helped depressed demand, such as high
unemployment and the resulting limited use of motor vehicles, as wel| ~ Source:In-house analysis of Polish

) o ) Organization of Oil Industry and Trade

as improved fuel efficiency caused by wide-spread fleet upgrades. (POPIHN) data.

Given the high prices of gasoline in 2013, the less expensive alternative
fuel, LPG, also gained in popularity. In 2013, estimated fuel
consumption was 2.3m tonnes (up 4% year on year), with stronger
demand seen in the LPG segment and other segments of the gas
market (including for heating purposes).

Demand for light fuel oil in 2013 continued to decline, contracting by a
further 10% to 843 thousand tonnes. This market segment was affected
by increased interest in alternative heating fuels.

2013 also saw a growth in demand for aviation fuel. Its over 10%
increase was caused by stronger competition on the domestic aviation
fuel market with the toppling of Petrolot’s dominance, which opened
the door to aviation fuel from alternative markets.

Data 2013 suggest that consumption declined by 4% year on year for
all engine fuels combined (gasoline, diesel oil and LPG).
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Polish retail fuel market

In 2013, there were 6.7 thousand service stations operating on the Polish fuel market. As in previous years,
one-third of the stations belonged to domestic operators, 21% were owned by foreign corporations, while
almost 44% were operated independently. Expansion of the service station chains owned by foreign
corporations was centred around Company-Owned Dealer-Operated stations (own stations) — with Shell
recording the largest increase in the number of stations following purchase of the Neste chain of 88 stations
—as well as Dealer-Owned Franchise-Operated stations (partner stations). Relative to its competitors, LOTOS
has the second fastest growing chain of service stations in Poland, surpassed only by Shell.

Service stations in Poland in 2013

Supermarket service stations

Orlen

Independent ———

-~ LOTOS
AS 24
BP
105
: LUKOIL
SHELL Self Service

STATOIL SHELL

Source: Polish Organization of Oil Industry and Trade (POPiHN).

The number of service stations in corporate chains continues to rise, while the network of independently-
operated stations is gradually consolidating and shrinking.

These tendencies will be particularly apparent in the following year, as the Ministry of Economy’s regulation
mandating service stations to modernise their storage tanks comes into effect early in 2014.

Expansion of Poland’s motorway network has been accompanied by a growing number of motorway service
areas. At the end of 2013, there were 55 (') Motorway Service Areas (MSAs) in Poland, including 14 under the
LOTOS brand.

In recent years, Grupa LOTOS has adopted a brand
development strategy based on two segments —
premium and economy, which has led to 50 new
stations added to the LOTOS Optima chain.

One-third of our service stations operate in
the economy segment.

m Based on data from the Polish Organization of Oil Industry and Trade (POPiHN).
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Strategic goals

The LOTOS Group's operational priorities are set forth in its Strategy for 2011-2015, its Corporate Social
Responsibility Strategy for 2012-2015, and its development directions until 2020.

Strategic business objectives until 2015

Exploration and Expansion of the resource base to take advantage of high margins projected
production . .
for this sector in the long term.

Strategic objectives:

® achieve production volume of 24,000 boe/d (barrel of oil
equivalent/day) in 2015 —equivalent to 1.2m tonnes a year,

e increase production of hydrocarbons, in line with the priorities of
Poland'’s Energy Policy until 2030.

Processing operations | jtj|isation of expanded capacities, increasing the conversion ratio, use of
synergies between refining and power generation.

Strategic objectives:

e achieve world-class production standardsand maintain a strong
com petitive position among European refineries,

e makeoptimum use of assets held and acquired as part of the growth
strategy,

e ensuresafeand stable operation of production and ancillary facilities,
with a target of 98% minimum annual availability,

e furtherincrease the conversion ratio and intensify feedstock
processing.

Marketing operations Development of the retail chain and marketing structures, based on an
extended distribution network and efficient product logistics.

Strategic objectives:

maintain a 30% sharein the domestic fuel market,

achieve fuel sales 15% above the refinery’s fuel production capacity,
securea 10% share in the domestic retail market,

develop service station chain and enhance the existing stations’ sales,
maintain the leading position on the Polish market for lubricating
oils.
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Key objectives of the Corporate Social Responsibility Strategy until 2015.

Investment in human resources

Ensuring the availability of highly qualified staff
required to successfully implement the business
strategy; enhancing corporate culture based on

embraced values.

Improvement of health and safety

Raising awareness and involvement in work safety
improvement among management staff, employees
and contractors.

Integration with local communities

Undertaking initiatives to help ensure lasting
solutions to social and environmental issues vital to
our local communities.

Ethics and prevention of misconduct

Improvement of our management by ensuring
ethical conduct and the transparency of business
processes, and by protecting the organization from

misconduct.

Energy sector security

Support for initiatives designed to enhance energy
sector security in a socially and environmentally
responsible manner.

Management of natural resources in the production
process

Reducing environmental risk and continually
minimising the environmental impact of the LOTOS
Group’s operations.

Partnership relations with the market environment

Building lasting customer relationships through a
focus on understanding customers’ needs and
delivering expected product quality and safety.

Communication

Ensuring that communication with employees is
timely and appropriate to their various needs and to
building organizational culture based on multi-
directional, open communication, including through
the development of a system of staff consultations
within the LOTOS Group.
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Trade Production

14% 52%

EFFECTIVE
and RISING

Processing

34%

In our efforts to fully implement our CSR strategy, in 2013 we launched the Effective and Rising Programme,
which comprises a number of economically viable development initiatives, chiefly in the area of our core
business. The initiatives offer substantial benefits to the LOTOS Group, its shareholders and potential
investment partners, and also contribute to the development of the regions in which they are to be
implemented.

Expected benefits

1. Innovative investment 2. Job creation 3. Investment in human
programme capital and know-how
4. Improved vertical 5. Higher revenues 6. Higher dividends
integration

7. Return on capital and
increase in value

Higher tax revenues Business diversification

As with the +10 Programme, the newly planned Investments in the upstream and petrochemical
investment programme will generate a substantial segments will improve the Group's vertical
increase in revenue. integration.

Consequently, the state’s revenues from income, Diversification entails lower business risk, more
property and mineral taxes will go up by ca. PLN stable margins and a stronger competitive position
550m annually after 2016. on domestic and foreign markets.

Higher volumes of sales will also boost revenues
from excise duty.

Energy security Job creation in the region

52% of the investment programme’s funds will be Implementation of the programme will increase
allocated to exploration for oil deposits, the majority ~ employment at Grupa LOTOS and its DOFO operators
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of which (73%) are located in the Baltic Sea.

These investments will help diversify Polish crude oil
sources, improving domestic energy security.

by approximately 1,700 persons.

70% of the planned CAPEX will be spent regionally
and in the Baltic Sea.

Technologically advanced projects will enhance the
region’s know-how and human capital.

Development activities and implementation of efficiency enhancement projects in identified
areas are focused on increasing the LOTOS Group’s value through innovative and sustainable
development, with due regard for its stakeholders’ principles and values.

In line with our own principles, as a socially responsible business we seek to:

® Always consider the social and environmental aspects of our decisions,

® Take responsibility for the impact of our decisions and actions on society and the environment,

®  Build business models contributing additional value to the organization and its stakeholders,

® Integrate our business goals with important social and environmental issues.

Key areas of focus and development until 2020:

Further optimisation of the management
model to achieve the highest available
efficiency.

Production growth to approximately 100
thousand boe/day (equivalent to 5m
tonnes of crude a year),

Maintaining fuel sales 15% above the
refinery’s fuel production capacity.

Further improvement of the economic
efficiency of crude processing, ensuring full
utilisation of our assets.

Access to proven recoverable reserves of
hydrocarbons of approximately 330m boe
in 2020.

Maintaining at least a 30% share in the
domestic fuel market.

Maintaining at least a 10% share in the
domestic retail market.

Steps to optimise the power management
processes at Grupa LOTOS's refinery, by
expanding its connections with other
power systems.
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Effective and Rising. Interview with the
President of the Board

Socially responsible business is...

Our approach to corporate social responsibility goes back to the very beginnings of Grupa LOTOS when it
took its shape, and is of fundamental character; whenever we speak of CSR, we mean doing business. We
reckon that the biggest responsibility of business is simply to conduct its activities properly. Years ago, Milton
Friedman, Nobel Prize winner in Economic Sciences, famously said that “there is one and only social
responsibility of business — (...) to increase its profits”. Today, however, one can say that its biggest
responsibility is to be effective and efficient as, in fact, there is nothing worse for stakeholders than having to
deal with an unprofitable company which does not pay its dues on time and cannot provide decent work
environment for its employees due to its poor standing. As for my personal approach to CSR, | think that key
are answers to the following questions: “how do we make a profit?”, "how do we meet our obligations?” and
"how do we manage the impact of our activities to ensure long-term growth for our company that is
beneficial to both the company and its environment?”. In other words, “how do we do our business to make
sure that it is good business?”, so that we can say — similarly as we would say of an individual — that it is solid
and reliable; the business which, on the one hand, is economically efficient and at the same time is
conducting its activities properly and meeting its duties, on the other. When defining CSR, one can speak a lot
of responsibility, integrity and other qualities attributable to both people and companies; at LOTOS, however,
at the heart of our approach to CSRis being solid and reliable as a properly managed and profitable business.

LOTOS places particular importance on the idea of sustainable development — what does it mean in
practice?
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What we mean by saying that our company is being managed in line with the principles of sustainable
development is that we take into account the needs and interests of the natural environment and of the
community in which we operate. For our activities, one of the most important premises in both our everyday
operations and running our production processes as well as in our investment and development plans are
environmental issues. Therefore, we deploy such solutions as to allow us to minimize our environmental
impact and to utilize natural resources as best we can; to make sure we achieve that, we employ Best
Available Techniques adopted by the international community, especially across the EU. Adhering to the
principles of sustainable development also means making a commitment to manufacture products whose
environmental impact —when they are used by our customers —is mitigated as far as it is possible.

Corporate social responsibility is also about striving to achieve sustainable development while simultaneously
respecting human rights, and building good relations with our neighbours, the local community, and — most
importantly — with our employees. By engaging in a range of activities, we improve our employees’ quality of
life; by creating jobs, we improve the quality of life of the entire society. We treat responsibly all our
stakeholders, both internal and external. Being an oil company, the responsibility we feel is crucial as our
decisions affect the future of people and the natural environment; our customers get better products, the
community has a neighbour who supports the local prosperity and the development of the young
generation, and the national economy is provided with a solid foundation to function upon.

Grupa LOTOS is a signatory to the ‘Declaration of Polish Businesses for Sustainable Development’. In
2013, the Company got engaged in work on honing the ‘Vision 2050’, the document accompanying
the Declaration, in the area of energy. However, it is not the only platform for cooperation aimed at
meeting challenges this sector is facing, is it?

We have repeatedly proven our engagement in dialogue with key sector stakeholders not only on the
national but also on the international level; most recently, in April 2014 at the Energy Summit '29+1"in
Bucharest, one of the periodical meetings of representatives of Central European energy sector companies
with Guenther Oettinger, EU Commissioner for Energy. These meetings are organized by Central European
Energy Partners, an association of which we are a founding member. This time, main subjects for discussion
included issues such as enerqy prices and EU climate objectives which hold back the competitiveness of the
EU economy as well as the energy sector security in view of the current events in Ukraine. As CEO of Grupa
LOTOS, I expressed my strong conviction that we should considerably reduce Central Europe’s dependence on
gas supplies from one source and take action to protect and further develop our industry which shall be
conducive to creating jobs. In the Bucharest Memorandum adopted at the end of the meeting, its
participants called upon the EU not to strive to eliminate the use of fossil fuels but to support investment
projects aimed at developing more effective technological solutions to reduce CO; emissions.

For the climate policy to produce discernible results on a large scale, pro-environmental actions need to cover
the entire world; therefore, when determining the objectives for our climate policy, we should closely observe
which direction rival world economies are taking. While fully standing by the EU 20-20-20 objective, we
intend to promote optimal approach to pursuing its objectives on climate protection, sustainable
development and the security of the energy sector. It means that we will support a common and
comprehensive EU policy which takes into account the vital interests of Central European countries, including
initiatives such as creation of an internal energy market or construction of the Central European Energy
Corridor and the North-South Transport Corridor. At the same time, we consider it to be equally important to
determine new climate and energy objectives until 2030 and to establish new guidelines on exploration for
and production of shale gas.

Central European countries need to develop their industries in an effective and consistent manner with a view
to creating jobs. The prerequisite for that is cheap energy, the production of which will be mostly based on
easily available domestic energy resources. As CEEP, we consistently advocate striking the right balance
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between the EU’s economic development and its climate policy. The pace at which the objectives of the

latter are to be met should not disregard economic realities of either the EU Member States or the global
conditions. We strongly believe that the energy sector policy which does not take into account the differences
in economic development between individual Member States will have a detrimental effect on Central
European countries. The implementation of the climate policy targets, especially with regard to reducing CO>
emissions, needs to be modified if we are concerned about keeping the European Union competitive as a
whole.

Is the ‘Effective and Rising’ Programme announced by LOTOS in mid-2013 the Company’s response to
the challenges of the modern economy?

When explaining to our stakeholders the baselines of our new strategic project, | declared: ‘While everyone
else is struggling to stay afloat, we know how to win the future’. Today, | stand by what | said then entirely.
Nowadays, most successful are these companies that possess the ability to react quickly and adapt to changes
and that are experts in their respective fields. Such a business model allows them to focus more effectively on
the tasks to be completed and to pool skills which help them stand out from the rest. It was this observation
that guided our work on the 2013-2015 Effective and Rising Programme, the purpose of which is to
restructure the LOTOS Group and to aid its further business expansion. It sets out the next stage of our
development and serves as a guarantee for increased efficiency and effectiveness of our actions. While
focusing on the key areas of our competence, we put main emphasis on our core business, simplify the
structure of the LOTOS Group and free up funds for achieving our objectives. And when doing that, we take
into account the interests of our key stakeholders groups as we are well aware of the impact we have on our
environment in the economic, social and environmental aspects.

Does Grupa LOTOS see the chance to accomplish its objectives in its openness in communication with
the market?

This Integrated Annual Report is already our fifth report of that kind. In 2010, we decided to integrate our
reports to present the management approach and performance in all aspects of our activities to all our
stakeholders. These reports illustrate the scope and nature of our impacts on the environment but also
answer the question how, by mitigating associated risks, we maximize the chances for our business to thrive
in the long term. By responsibly managing the productive, financial, natural and human capital entrusted
with us, we consistently implement our value growth strategy. By communicating to the market in an open
and transparent manner the conditions for our operations, as well as our performance and future plans, we
prove that we are a reliable and trustworthy partner. This fact found its confirmation in the high rating we
achieved in the opinion survey conducted in 2013 on the quality of LOTOS communication with the capital
market, which analyzed the Company’s approach to presenting social and environmental aspects of its
operations along with the corporate governance. Without a doubt, it is a significant factor that affects the
value of our business.
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Key data

Grupa LOTOS - selected information *

For the year For the year
ended Dec ended Dec 31 Change
FINANCIALS Unit 31 2013 2012 [%]
(restated)
Revenue EUR "000 6,339,867 7444867 -14%
Operating profit/(loss) EUR 000 (83,780) 133,850 -163%
Pre-tax profit/(loss) EUR 000 (18,410) 232,128 -108 %
Net profit/(loss) EUR 000 (3,508) 200410 -102 %
Totalcomprehensiveincome EUR 000 19,768 292,053 -93%
Net cash from operating activities EUR 000 174,215 112,208 55%
Net cash from investing a ctivities EUR 000 12,117 16,373 -26%
Net cash from financing activities EUR 000 (141989) (179,186) -
Totalnetcash flow EUR "000 44343 (50,605) -
Basic earnings/(loss) pershare EUR (0.03) 154 -102 %
Charitabledonations EUR '000 430 333 29%
Pro-environmenta linvestments EUR 000 14964 16,198 -8%
As at As at
December December Change
FINANCIALS Unit 31st2013 31st2012 [%]
(comparative
data)
Totalassets EUR "000 3,751,787 3908472 -4%
Equity EUR "000 1,720,581 1,725,051 -026%
Year Year
ended ended
Dec 31 Dec 31
NON-FINANCIAL DATA Unit 2013 2012 Change
(restated)
Workforce“) numberofemployees 1334 1323 080%
Employeeturnover % 1.8 92 26pp
LostTimelnjury Frequency LTIFindex (per 1milion hoursworked) (2) 45 43 -
Totalwaterconsumption m 3 3,737,302 3,721,330 0,40%
CO2 emissions thousandtonnesperyear 1689 1979 14,60%_
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The LOTOS Group - Selected consolidated data **

For the year ended Dec For the year ended Dec Change
FINANCIALS Unit 31 2013 31 2012 [%]
(restated)

EUR

Revenue , 6,791,105 7933439 -14%
000
. ) EUR

Operating profit 1000 34,788 74937 -53%
) EUR

Pre-tax profit/(loss) 1000 (14,718) 87,776 -117%

. EUR o

Net profit 000 9363 222320 -96%
) . EUR

Net profitattributableto ownersoftheParent 1000 9,360 222314 -96%
) . S EUR

Net profitattributableto non-controling interests 1000 3 6 -52%
L EUR

Totalcomprehensiveincome 1000 29316 307,702 -90%

Totalcomprehensiveincomeattributableto ownersof EEUR 29313 307699 90%
theParent 000
Totalcomprehensiveincomeattributableto non- EUR

S , 3 3 -15%
controlling interests 000
; o EUR

Net cash from operating a ctivities 1000 341,129 322,762 7%
. . o EUR

Net cash from investing a ctivities 000 (222,848) (200,798) -
: . o EUR

Net cash from financing activities 000 (59,630) (211,635) -
EUR

Totalnetcash flow , 58,651 (89,671) -
000

Basic earningspershare EUR 0.07 171 -96%
. . EUR

Charitabledonations i 506 372 36%
000
. . EUR

Pro-environmentalinvestments 000 15897 18,094 -12%

As at December 31st As at December 31st Change

FINANCIALS Unit 2013 2012 (%)

(restated)

EUR

Totalassets 000 4,894,776 4898871 -0.08%
. . EUR

Equity attributableto ownersoftheParent 1000 2,215786 2,217535 -0.08%
s EUR

Non-controlling interests , 70 171 -59%
000
. EUR

Totalequity 2,215856 2,217,706 -0.08%

'000
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Year
ended
Dec 31 Year ended
NON-FINANCIAL DATA Unit 2012 Dec 31 2011 Change
(comparative
data)
Workforce“) numberofemployees 4,773 4,748 0,50%
LostTimelnjury Frequency LTIFindex (per 1milion hoursworked) (2) 44 33 -
Sharein thefuelmarket % 334 34 -06 pp
Crudeoilproduction thousandtonnes 2191 2623 -16%
Naturalgasproduction milion Nm3 16.0 209 )

23,50%

* For information on Grupa LOTOS' financial performance, please see our financial statementsrhore information)

** For information on the LOTOS Group's financial performance, please see the LOTOS Group's financial statements.(more information)
Average annual headcount.
LTIF — number of accidents resulting in an inability to work x1%’number of working hours, calculated for the average annual headcount.
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Letter from the Vice-President of the Board

Dear Stakeholders,

2013 was a time of major challenges for the implementation of the LOTOS Group's business strategy. While
intensifying and speeding up the completion of activities in the exploration and production segment, we
were observing a significant deterioration in external conditions for the manufacture and sales of fuels. The
European refining sector has been under a growing pressure of cheaper refining products flooding the
market from different parts of the world and have been facing increasing challenges with regard to the
competitiveness of its products on export markets.

Our response to this unfavourable situation was a number of initiatives we undertook in 2013, confirming
our readiness to react to the dynamically changing external environment. Our refinery in Gdansk ranked
amongst the world’s most state-of-the-art refineries in the prestigious study conducted by Solomon
Associates, which testified to the effectiveness of the 10+ Programme. To enhance its efficiency even further,
we commenced work on a preliminary feasibility study into the construction of a delayed coker unit (DCU); it
will help us transform the refinery into a full conversion plant so that it will be able to produce only high-
margin products and will be better prepared to face the growing pressure on refining margins. These harder
conditions in the operating segment coincided with the accelerated implementation of our strategy in the
exploration and production segment. Acquisition of production assets on the Norwegian Continental Shelf,
speeding up the development of the B8 field as well as carrying out preparatory work on the development of
the B4 and B6 gas fields — these were our major achievements in this segment, all of which have brought us
closer to fully implement our strategy and to improve the balancing of the LOTOS Group’s business model.

In 2013, our situation was further hindered by the overhaul shutdown performed at our refinery, connected

with stopping the operation of its refining units, which in turn resulted in decreasing its annual output by
around 8%. Consequently, the LOTOS Group's revenues were lower than in 2012 —in the twelve months of
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2013 we generated consolidated sales of just under PLN 29bn, 14% less on 2012. The operating profit stood
at PLN 146m and, with the one-off events distorting it being eliminated as well as the amortization and the
LIFO effect accounted for, it amounted to PLN 1.3bn, as compared to PLN 2.0bn in 2012. This proves our ability
to generate high cash flows even despite unfavourable conditions for our operations and eroding margins on
the world fuel market.

Furthermore, to support the implementation of its business strategy, the LOTOS Group launched the 2013-
2015 Effective and Rising Programme, which is mainly designed to improve financial indicators, to facilitate
further development by carrying out investment projects in areas of the organization’s core business and to
restructure the LOTOS Group. In a nutshell, our main focus is to go to our core activities, limiting the
engagement of our management in auxiliary activities and simplifying the structure of the LOTOS Group,
which for subsidiaries conducting operations unrelated to our core business means that they will need to look
for an investor who will allow them to unleash their potential for development and facilitate their access to
new financing sources.

In the exploration and production segment, the LOTOS Group consistently pursued its investment and
development plan, which was confirmed by the agreement we concluded with Centrica Norge for the
purchase of interests in 14 licences on the Norwegian Continental Shelf (Heimdal portfolio). In the
perspective of 2016, this transaction will help us recover two-thirds of our deferred tax assets. Following the
acquisition of interests in the Norwegian licences, our annual production in Norway (relative to the shares
acquired by LOTOS) amounts to around 240,000 toe (5,000 boe/d), with 70% of that amount being natural
gas and 30% condensate (light crude oil). What is more, LOTOS recoverable resources have increased by 9
million boe for proved and probable resources and by 31 million boe for contingent resources.

In 2013, preparatory work continued on launching commercial production from the B8 field on the Baltic Sea
—with a production potential of 3.5 million tones of crude oil - which is planned for 2015. It is worth
mentioning here that in October 2013 we signed an agreement with Polskie Inwestycje Rozwojowe on the
co-financing for this project. Also in October 2013, the repair of the PG-1 rig was completed which will enable
us to increase production from the B3 field by 15,000 tonnes annually (Rozewie crude). We also carried on
preparatory work on the B4/B6 gas fields (with a combined production potential of 4 billion m3) in
partnership with CalEnergy Resources Poland. Further evidence for our intensified activity in the exploration
and production segment was the purchase of the GSF Monitor jack-up drilling rig in December 2013, which
will be conducting drilling operations under our exploration licences in the Baltic Sea.

The most important event in the operating and marketing segment was the overhaul shutdown performed
in the spring of 2013, which was the first overhaul shutdown since the refinery’s expansion under the 10+
Programme. In effect, the refinery processed 8.7m tonnes of crude, meaning that the average annual
utilisation rate of its installed capacities was 82% in 2013.

Also in 2013, preparatory work continued on the construction of a delayed coking unit (DCU) which should
directly increase the efficiency of crude processing at the refinery by eliminating from our production and
sale the unprofitable heavy fuel oil. Once this project has been completed, the production of high-margin
motor fuels will increase by 900,000 tonnes annually and a new product — petroleum coke (petcoke) — will be
added to our product mix, with the production volume of around 350,000 tonnes annually. The unit is
planned to be launched in 2017.

Another new development project launched in 2012, on which we continued to work in 2013, is the
diversification of our activities towards a potential development of a petrochemical segment (in partnership
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with Grupa Azoty). Based on the results of a preliminary feasibility study into the construction of a
petrochemical production complex, the construction of a steam cracker unit was proposed as a
recommended course of action. A full feasibility study will mark the next stage in the project, the results of
which are expected at the end of 2014.

In 2013, Grupa LOTOS continued to expand dynamically its service station chain, especially in the economy
segment, which puts us well on track to secure a 10% market share, the target set in our strategy.

Throughout the entire year, the LOTOS Group responded to the increasingly difficult conditions posed by our
market environment. Thanks to the diversification of our activities and the acceleration of development in
the exploration and production segment, we have shown that we try and react to these increasingly difficult
market conditions. In 2014 and the coming years, we will keep intensifying our actions to increase the
importance of the exploration and production segment, and to achieve operational excellence in the refining
segment. Our efforts to date have proved that under the conditions of increasingly fierce competition LOTOS
is a company oriented on further development. We strongly believe that our work on reinforcing the
foundations for it will contribute to enhancing the value for our shareholders and will secure the proper
development of the LOTOS Group in the years to come.

Yours faithfully,

Mariusz Machajewski
Vice-President of the Board
Chief Financial Officer
Grupa LOTOS
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Capital market

Grupa LOTOS share price (PLN) and trading volume (number of shares) since their first listing on the WSE
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Grupa LOTOS shares have been listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange since June 9th 2005. At present, the
total number of Company shares is 129,873,362.

Grupa LOTOS share price performance vs. market indices

2013 was a good year for investors in shares, with equities emerging as the best-performing asset class,
particularly in the developed markets. Stock exchange indices in the US, the world's largest economy, soared
by more than 30% (NASDAQ up 35% and S&P500 up approximately 30%). In Europe, the top performer was
Germany's DAX, up 26%.

The year saw only slight movements in the main WSE indices. The WIG index of all Main Market listings
gained 8%, with the annual change in the WIG20 being negative at -7%.

In September 2013, the WSE launched its new WIG30 index of the thirty largest and most
liquid companies.

As at the end of the year, the index had fallen by almost 2%. Its two SME indices, the mWIG40 and sWIG80,
rose 31% and 37% respectively, delivering the top rates of return.

Looking at stock performance by sector, the winning WIG-BUDOWNICTWO construction sector index gained
33%, with the WIG-PALIWA fuels sector index (down 10%) arriving at the other end of the spectrum.

The RESPECT corporate social responsibility index lost over 4% during 2013.

The price of Grupa LOTOS shares followed the general market trends in 2013, remaining within the PLN
33.15-PLN 44.95 range, closing for the year at PLN 35.45.

In the period under review, the number of Grupa LOTOS shares changing hands in an average trading session
was 229,877, down 18% relative to the previous year. The total value of trading in its stock was in excess of
PLN 2.2bn, representing 1% of total WSE trading, with an average of 877 trades per session.

The Company’'s market capitalisation as at the end of 2013 stood at just over PLN 4.6bn.
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Grupa LOTOS shares in 2011-2013 *

2011 2012 2013
Free float shares (million shares) 129.87 129.87 129.87
Price of Grupa LOTOS shares (PLN)
Low 2226 213 3297
High 495 43.78 4545
Closing price 233 412 3545
Rateofreturn atend of period (%) -359 7682 -13.96
Trade in Grupa LOTOS shares
Trading value(PLNm) 3,299.07 2,013.15 221143
Shareintrade (%) 131 1.07 1.00
Averagetrading volume persession 377,048 282,163 229877
Averagenumberoftradespersession 967 810 877
Company valuation
Market capitalisation atend of period (PLNm) 3,026.00 5351.00 4,603.89
Bookvalue(PLNm) 7,782 40 9,066.40 9,189.60
EV** (PLNm) 1003287 1147260 1031189
Valuation ratios
Earningspershare (PLN) 503 7.4 030
P/E*** (x) 466 580 118.00
P/BV**** (x) 038 059 050
EV/EBITDA***** (x) 6.04 11.89 1285

*In-house analysis based on WSE and Company data.

** EV (Enterprise Value) — market capitalisation plus debt, non-controlling interests, and preferred shares, minus cash and cash equivalents.

*** P/E - Price/Earnings
****% P/BV — Price/Book Value
****F* EV/EBITDA — Enterprise Value/EBITDA
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Grupa LOTOS share price in 2013 (PLN)
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Grupa LOTOS share price performance vs. market indices in 2013 *
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* Rebased (100 = closing price at December 28th 2012)

Dividend policy

Dividend distributions for 2011-2015 are subject to the LOTOS Group's Strategy for 2011-2015, which
provides for optimisation of the LOTOS Group financing. Grupa LOTOS' financial strategy provides for
distribution of up to 30% of net profit as dividend.

However, the Board of Grupa LOTOS recommended that no part of the 2012 net profit be distributed to the
Company's shareholders. On June 28th 2013, acting upon the Board's recommendation, the General
Meeting resolved to allocate the 2012 profit as follows:

® PLN 834,931,320.89 was allocated to statutory reserve funds,

e PLN 1,500,000.00 was allocated to the Special Account designated for financing corporate social
responsibility (CSR) projects.

Dividend and dividend yield *

Share price at the year end

Financial year Dividend (PLN) Dividend per share (PLN) (PLN) Dividend yield (%)**
2005 0.00 0.00 4420
2006 40932,000.00 036 4930 073
2007 0.00 0.00 4450
2008 0.00 0.00 1195
2009 0.00 0.00 3180

2010 0.00 0.00 3635
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20M 0.00 0.00 2330 -

2012 0.00 0.00 3545 -

*In-house analysis based on Company data.
** Dividend yield — dividend per share to price per share.

Historical dividend per share *

Financial year Dividend per share (PLN) % of net profit Dividend record date** Dividend payment date***
2005 0.00 0.00 - -
2006 036 1006 June 112007 notlaterthanJul312007
2007 0.00 0.00 - -
2008 0.00 0.00 - -
2009 0.00 0.00 - -
2010 0.00 0.00 - -
2011 0.00 0.00 - -
2012 0.00 0.00 - -

*In-house analysis based on Company data.
** Dividend record date — date on which the list of shareholders entitled to receive dividend for a given financial year is determined.
*** Dividend payment date — date on which dividend is paid to the Company’s shareholders.

Recommendations

Recommendations on Grupa LOTOS shares are issued by 13 investment houses (including brokerage houses
and investment banks):

Investment houses

Investment houses

Based in Poland Based abroad
DMmBanku Societe Generale
DMBZWBK ErsteBank
DMIDM Wood &Co.
DMPKO BP DeutscheBank
DMBDM Raiffeisen Centrobank
DI Investors

ING Securities

Espirito Santo InvestmentBank
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To the best of the Company’s knowledge, in 2013 brokers issued 25 recommendations on Company shares:

® 4 BUYrecommendations™

® 9 HOLD recommendations **

® 3 REDUCErecommendations ***
® 9 SELLrecommendations ****
of which:

® 6 recommendations were upgraded
® 10 recommendationswere maintained
® 5recommendationswere downgraded.

Furthermore, there was:

° 1 coverage initiation; and
® 3 coveragere-initiations

*BUY - total expected rate of return will exceed 15% in 12 months

** HOLD - total expected rate of return will be between -5% and +5% in 12 months

*** REDUCE - total expected rate of return will be between -5% and -15% in 12 months
**** SELL — total expected rate of return will be over -15% in 12 months.

Structure of broker recommendations on Grupa LOTOS shares in 2013 (%)

SELL

HOLD

REDUCE =

In brokers’ research reports, the target price of Grupa LOTOS shares fluctuated from PLN 29.50 to PLN 56.30,
compared with PLN 19.40 to PLN 38.90 in 2012. The average target price of its shares in 2013 was PLN 37.70
(2012: PLN 26.80). Grupa LOTOS shares traded within a range from PLN 33.15 to PLN 44.95. At the end of
2013, the price of Grupa LOTOS shares was PLN 35.45.
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Brokers' recommendations and average target price against the market price of Grupa LOTOS shares
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of Grupa LOTOS shares in brokers’ recommendations* *

* Simple moving average — arithmetic mean of target prices in broker recommendations for 12 months (excluding recommendation updates
older than six months).

Grupa LOTOS in the RESPECT Index

Since November 19th 2009, Grupa LOTOS has been continuously included in the index of WSE-listed socially
responsible companies, the RESPECT Index (Responsibility, Ecology, Sustainability, Participation, Environment,
Community, Transparency).

*s*RESPECT

Index

The index includes those Polish and international companies listed on the WSE Main Market
that uphold the best management standards in corporate and information governance, as
well as investor relations, and that act responsibly in the social, governance and
environmental areas.

In 2013, the Company underwent external review for compliance with the index’s criteria twice. Since
December 23rd 2013, we have been included in the index which comprises a record-breaking 23 companies.
In the 7th edition of the RESPECT project, new criteria were applied to find the leaders of responsible
business in Poland. The most important changes were in the survey’s questions, which had been divided into
three groups, each representing a different set of factors related to performance in the categories of
Environmental, Social and Governance. Furthermore, the index’s entry requirements were changed to
accommodate specific characteristics of various industries. Starting from 2014, the organizational maturity
assessment will be undertaken on a yearly basis.
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Natural and productive capital

R 6 X 7

Natural capital of Grupa LOTOS

Energy sources: crude oil (fuel gas and fuel oil from its processing), natural gas, electricity
generated and bought from third parties;
Feedstock: crude oil, natural gas;
Components of the environment/media with process applications: water (steam production and
cooling), air (as a control medium);
Components of the environment under direct and indirect impact from the LOTOS Group’s
operations:

air;

water;

soil;

ecosystems and biodiversity;

local communities and em ployees;

landscape.

O 0 0 0 o o

Our objectives in natural capital management:

Ensuring compliance with environmental law;

Ensuring that the organization is perceived as being aware of local and global benefits of
responsible use of natural resources and environmental protection;

Striving to operate in conformity with best environmental practices, while ensuring responsible use
of natural resources.

Key activities:

Monitoring the state of the natural environment and how it is affected, beyond the scope required
by legal regulations;

Consistently reducing the negative impact on the natural environment;

Incorporating and implementing the best available techniques and best environmental practice
for designing new process units, as well as operating and upgrading the existing ones;

Mitigating the risk of sudden environmental contamination (preventing industrial failures);
Supporting pro-environmental efforts of third-party institutions — environmental protection
beyond the organization’s direct sphere of influence;

Pro-environmental education —raising the awareness of best environmental practices and
responsible use of natural resourcesamong employees and local communities.
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Results:

Increased share of natural
gas in the organization’s
energy mix

Reduced water
consumption — using
closed-cycle systems and
maintaining highest
possible recirculation levels

Average annual
wastewater emissions
below 50% of admissible
levels

End of preparations to a
large-area inventory of
elements comprising the
environment within and
surrounding our refinery in
Gdansk

energy system

Less fugitive emissions to
the atmosphere

Gradual modernisation of
service station facilities

Significant reduction of atmospheric emissions from the
refinery in Gdansk: SO2, NOyand dust emissions have been
reduced ten, two and nearly four times, respectively, in

comparison with 2011

Monitoring of bottom
sedimentand sea water
quality within oil and gas
production areas

Consistent reduction of gas
flared at production sites

Construction and launch of a flare gas recovery unit—a 6,000
Mg reduction in CO2 emissions and additional gas in the
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Placing more emphasis on
biodiversity in
environmental impact
assessment

Achieving carbon intensity
levels on a par with the
leading European refineries

Running an educational
campaign on waste
segregation within the
LOTOS Group
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Productive capital of Grupa LOTOS

i

Exploration: licence areas, exploration infrastructure (drilling rigs);

Production: production infrastructure (production platforms, transmission lines);

Downstream: downstream infrastructure (refinery, production plants, port-refinery oil pipelines,

gas pipelines, CHP plants);

® Primary logistics: product depots, road and rail loading stations, rail infrastructure, geographical
location;

e Secondary sales and distribution: distribution networks, road infrastructure, rail infrastructure,

geographical location, service station chain.

Our objective in productive capital management:

® Achieving production and technology standards on a par with global petrochemical trends, while
ensuring compliance with environmental regulations.

Key activities:

® Increasing our own resource base based on fields in low- or medium-risk areas;
® Expanding operations on the Baltic Sea, the Norwegian Continental Shelf and onshore areasin
Poland and Lithuania, in particular by:

o Poland:increasing production from the existing fields, fully appraising the hydrocarbon
potential of the Baltic Sea, developing operations on onshore licence areas,

o Norway: exploring, developing and producing from the existing offshore licence areas,
acquiring producing fields;

o Lithuania: fully developing the existing onshore licence areas.

Modernisation of exploration and production infrastructure;

Optimum use of assets held and acquired as part of the growth strategy:

Further increasing the conversion ratio and intensifying feedstock processing;

Expanding the refinery’s process lines (coking unit);

Efficient use of the refinery’s processing capacities expanded through the 10+ Programme;

Maintaining high reliability of refinery installations — ensuring safe and stable operation of
production and ancillary facilities, with a target of 98% minimum annual availability;
® Expanding the fuel, oil and bitumen sales networks.

Results:
Higher crude oil prod uction New licences Higher processing volumes
and efficiency
Technical availability of the Increased share in the retail
refinery’s installations of market

99.7% achieved - the
highest in the refinery’s
history, which is also one of
the best results in the world
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The total level of capital expenditure allocated to exploration and production in 2011-2015 is PLN

3.9bn, which represents almost 70% of the LOTOS Group's total CAPEX budget for the period.
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Statement by Zbigniew Paszkowicz

Vice-President of the Management Board, Exploration&Production, Grupa LOTOS

2013 saw strong
development of the LOTOS
Group's exploration and
production segment at an
unprecedented pace. The
successisall the more
remarkable for the fact that it
was achieved despite
macroeconomic challenges.
Inlate 2013, the segment's
annual production capacity
exceeded 0.5m tonnes, more
than 40% of the strategic
target to be reached by the
end of 2015.

2013 saw strong development of the LOTOS Group's exploration
and production segment at an unprecedented pace. The success
is all the more remarkable for the fact that it was achieved
despite macroeconomic challenges. In late 2013, the segment’s
annual production capacity exceeded 0.5m tonnes, more than
40% of the strategic target to be reached by the end of 2015.

The success was mainly driven by the high qualifications and strong commitment
of our crews —employees of the upstream subsidiaries. Their expertise and
determination in the pursuit of targets are our most valuable asset, which we will
further enhance by investing in professional advancement of our employees.

At the top of the list of key 2013 events we should place the final resolution of
the Yme project issue, which was addressed on our initiative and by our effort.
The agreement signed in March 2013 between the Yme field operator and the
owner of the rig sitting on the field removed a major impediment which had
hindered the segment’s growth. It was not long before we saw measurable
effects.

LOTOS Norge acquired interests in a portfolio of 14 Heimdal licences on the
Norwegian Continental Shelf. In accordance with the Norwegian tax law, thanks
to the transaction we began to recover funds invested in the Yme project. We
expect that by 2016 we will be able to recover two-thirds of our investment.

Zbigniew Paszkowicz
Vice-President of the Management Board,
Exploration&Production, Grupa LOTOS

On the Baltic Sea, our production exceeded the 2013 target. Such strong

performance was a result of resumed production at the PG-1 rig within the B3
field. The project was well planned and completed safely (with no accidents). The
success is all the more significant given the complexity and technical challenges
that were involved in the overhaul of the PG-1 rig.

The capital market took notice of, and reacted very positively to, these
achievements. We enjoy the full confidence of financial institutions, which makes
it easier for us to raise funds for further investments.

In December 2013, LOTOS Petrobaltic purchased the GSF Monitor drilling rig.
Once placed in operation under the name 'LOTOS Petrobaltic’, it will help us
discover the remaining hydrocarbon accumulations under the Baltic Sea floor,
particularly those which could not be reached earlier due to their location at
depths of more than 90m below the seabed.

The new drilling rig will take over the role of the existing ‘Petrobaltic’ platform,
which will be converted into a production centre for the B8 field. It is worth
noting that the field development was so well prepared that Polskie Inwestycje
Rozwojowe, the Polish state’s SPV established to provide long-term financing for
the most viable infrastructure projects, selected it — from among many others —as
the first project to receive its support. This confirms the strong expertise of our
crews and the financial institutions’ confidence with our business.
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We carried out seismic surveys over six offshore licences on the Baltic Sea,
covering an area of more than 1,200 km2. We had not conducted exploration on
such a large scale for many years. This is a good investment in the future, as are
the two new licences we acquired in 2013. A final decision on the manner of
developing the B4 and B6 gas fields is soon to be made. This project will combine
our knowledge of the Baltic Sea with the competences and potential of
CalEnergy, our partner in the project.

We are strengthening our presence on the Baltic Sea, while conducting
operations under onshore licences in partnership with PGNiG. Our first joint
projects were launched in 2013 in Kamiert Pomorski and Gérowo ltaweckie, and
now we are preparing to develop our cooperation.

In Lithuania, our production stabilised at a level which nearly meets the target,
while the seismic surveys carried out and five production wells drilled in 2013 are

expected to further boost production in the future.

In 2013, we reorganized and restructured the segment companies under the
Effective and Rising Programme. The companies whose core business consists in
hydrocarbon exploration and production may now focus more closely on these
operations. All assets and services with a support function are being transferred
to other companies, mostly of the Miliana Group, part of the LOTOS Group.

In 2013, we built a strong foundation for even faster and more efficient
development of the upstream segment. In 2014, for the first time ever, the value
of the LOTOS Group's upstream CAPEX in a single year will exceed PLN 1.5bn,
with nearly PLN 1bn allocated to Baltic Sea projects.

We are consistently striving to achieve our strategic target: a production capacity
of 1.2m tonnes by the end of 2015.
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Exploration and production

Grupa LOTOS is engaged in exploration and production through the LOTOS Petrobaltic Group in the
following countries:

® Poland - LOTOS Petrobaltic and its subsidiaries;
e Lithuania— AB LOTOS Geonafta and its subsidiaries;
e Norway - LOTOS Exploration and Production Norge AS.

The LOTOS Petrobaltic Group includes companies conducting support activities: the Miliana Group and
Energobaltic Sp z 0.0. The Miliana Group renders sea transport services to LOTOS Petrobaltic, while
Energobaltic was established to manage associated gas produced from the B3 field and —in the future — from
other hydrocarbon accumulations located in the Baltic Sea. At the Wtadystawowo CHP Plant, the company is
involved in the production of electricity, heat, LPG and natural gas condensate, using associated gas from an
offshore oil production facility (the B3 field).

As at the end of 2013, crude oil reserves and resources held by the LOTOS Petrobaltic Group
amounted to 8.08 million tonnes or 62.08 million boe (reserves classified as 2P), and 1.80
million tonnes or 13.63 million boe (resources classified as 2C), whereas its natural gas
reserves and resources were 1.09 billion cubic metres (2P) and 6.49 billion cubic metres (20).

Crude oil reserves classified as 2P Crude oil reserves classified as 2C
(thousand tonnes) (thousand tonnes)

M Baltic Sea M Baltic Sea
I Norwegian Continental Shelf Il Norwegian Continental Shelf
M Lithuania M Lithuania
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Natural gas reserves classified as Natural gas resources classified as
2P (billion cubic metres) 2C (billion cubic metres)

M Baltic Sea M Baltic Sea
I MNorwegian Continental Shelf I Norwegian Continental Shelf
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LOTOS Petrobaltic is the only Polish enterprise engaged in hydrocarbons production in the Polish economic
zone of the Baltic Sea. At the end of 2013, the company held:

Nin

e licences for the exploration for and appraisal of crude oil and natural gas deposits, with

two of them, Stupsk E and Stupsk W, obtained in 2013. The total area of LOTOS Petrobaltic’s

lice

ncesis more than 8.5 thousand square kilometres.

Four licences for hydrocarbons production:

o

on the B3 field, for the production of crude oil and associated natural gas, located 73 km
north of Rozewie; the process of extending the licence until 2026 is currently under way;

on the B8 field, for the production of crude oil and associated natural gas, located 70 km
north of Jastarnia; the field is currently being developed,;

on the B4 and B6 fields, for the production of natural gas, located north of teba; a
development project of the fields is being prepared in partnership with CalEnergy Resources
Poland.

no application was filed for extending the Gaz Pétnoc licence, which expired in April 2013.

In 2013, in the Baltic Sea, LOTOS Petrobaltic was extracting hydrocarbons from the B3 field.

Crude oil production from the Baltic Sea totalled 145.6 thousand tonnes (1,128.2 thousand
bbl) in 2013. Output of associated natural gas totalled 16m Nm?3.

As at the end of 2013, crude oil reserves and resources in the Baltic Sea amounted to 5.06
million tonnes or 39.28 million bbl (reserves classified as 2P), and 0.17 million tonnes or
1.44 million bbl (resources classified as 2C), whereas natural gas reserves and resources
were 0.37 billion cubic metres (2P) and 3.28 billion cubic metres (2C).
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Lithuania

TROBA
Koncesja wazna: Indefinitely
Vidmantas Jonika  85,26%
AB LOTOS Geonafta 12,88%
UAB Profilena 1,74%
Natural person 0,12%

UAB GENCIU Nafta

Licence valid until: Indefinitely
AB LOTOS Geonafta 100%

I
=

AB LOTOS Geonafta

Licence valid until: Indefinitely
AB LOTOS Geonafta 100%

UAB MANIFOLDAS

Licence valid until: Indefinitely
AB LOTOS Geonafta 100%

UAB MINIJOS Nafta
Licence valid until: Indefinitely
UAB MINIJOS Nafta ~ 50%
AB LOTOS Geonafta  50%

Crude oil production from the Lithuanian fields totalled 73.5 thousand tonnes (563.8
thousand bbl) in 2013.

As at the end 2013, crude oil reserves in Lithuania classified as 2P amounted to 0.98 million
tonnes (7.5 million bbl).

-131-



‘() LOTOS Integrated Annual Report 2013 - Grupa LOTOS S.A. Win the Future

Norway — Norwegian Continental Shelf:

LOTOS Exploration & Production Norge AS (LOTOS Norge) of Stavanger, Norway, is the subsidiary
responsible for our operations on the Norwegian Continental Shelf. At the end of 2013, the company held
interests in 24 licences for oil exploration and production: PL 316, PL316B, PL 455, PL 498, PL 497, PL497B, PL
503, PL503B, PL 643, PL 655; and licences acquired as part of the Heimdal portfolio: PL0O26, PL026B, PLO35B,
PLO36BS, PLO36, PL102, PL102D, PL102E, PL102G, PL102F, PL102C, PL249, PL362, and PL442. LOTOS Norge
was the operator of six licences: PLO35B and PL362 (since January 16th 2014), PL455, PL 498, PL 503 and
PL503B.

On January 21st 2014, in the APA 2013 round (Awards in Pre-defined Areas) LOTOS Norge was awarded
two licences: 503C and 498B, for which LOTOS Norge will act as the operator. Furthermore, the company
resigned on January 23rd 2014 from two licences: PL 497 and PL 497B, and on March 1st 2014 from licence
PL 455, due to lack of production prospects.

As a result of the changes described above, on the date of this Report LOTOS Norge holds 23 licences on
the Norwegian Continental Shelf, including 7 for which it acts as the operator.

LOTOS Norge holds a 20% interest in PL316/316B — Yme licence, developed by a consortium which includes
Talisman Energy as the operator.
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On December 30th 2013, the ownership of the Vale, SkirneByggve and Atla fields on the Norwegian
Continental Shelf was acquired. Production corresponding to LOTOS Norge's interest is estimated at 5
thousand boe/d (approximately 240 thousand toe — tonnes of oil equivalent — a year).

As at the end of 2013, crude oil reserves and resources of the Norwegian fields amounted
to 2.04 million tonnes or 15.3 million bbl (reserves classified as 2P), and 1.61 million tonnes
or 12.11 million bbl (resources classified as 2C), whereas natural gas reserves and resources
were 0.72 billion cubic metres (2P) and 3.21 billion cubic metres (2C).

Achievements

Major achievements in the hydrocarbon exploration and production business in 2013 included:

In Poland
Relaunch of production from the PG-1 drilling rig

Repair of the PG-1 rig was completed as scheduled and production was resumed from the B3 oil and gas field
in the Baltic Sea.

Development of the B8 field

Plan for development and operation of the B8 field was implemented as scheduled. Drilling work was carried
out on the B8-5K well, a contractor was selected for key design, procurement and management of shipyard
operations, as well as construction design for the conversion of the 'Petrobaltic’ rig into a production centre. In
October 2013, Polskie Inwestycje Rozwojowe and LOTOS Petrobaltic executed an agreement on the
development financing for the B8 oil field in the Baltic Sea.

Development of the B4/B6 gas fields

Preparatory work on the B4/B6 gas fields was continued in partnership with CalEnergy Resources Poland.
Upon the Ministry of Environment’s consent, in March 2013 the Gaz Pétnoc licence and production licences
covering the B4 and B6 fields were transferred to the company. In April 2013, CalEnergy became a limited
partner in Baltic Gas Sp. z 0.0. i Wspdlnicy Spotka Komandytowa, an SPV established by LOTOS Petrobaltic for
the purposes of the investment agreement concluded with CalEnergy in 2012. In 2013, a 3D seismic survey
was performed over the Gaz Pétnoc licence area. Work was carried out work to select a development concept,
including assessment of the possibility of using existing offshore and onshore infrastructure, and

negotiations were held with potential customers for natural gas.

Seismic surveys in the Baltic Sea

Exploratory and appraisal activities were carried out. In 2013, 400 km of 2D seismic and 870 km? of 3D
seismic were acquired over the Gaz Pofudnie, Gaz Pétnoc, teba, Rozewie, Sambia W and Sambia E licence
areas. The Baltic production potential is estimated at 30m toe of hydrocarbons. Prospects are located
beneath the seafloor at depths of more than 90 m.
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New licences in Poland

The Ministry of Environment awarded LOTOS Petrobaltic two new, three-year licences for the exploration of
crude oil and natural gas in the Polish Economic Zone of the Baltic Sea: Stupsk W and Stupsk E. The licence
areas cover 1,021 km? and 1,139 km?, respectively. At present, the total area of the Baltic Sea exploration and
appraisal licences is over 8.5 thousand km?.

Acquisition of a drilling rig

The company signed an agreement for purchase of the GSF Monitor jack-up drilling rig. In 2014 the platform,

named ‘'LOTOS Petrobaltic’, will take over the drilling operations after the existing 'Petrobaltic’ rig is converted
into a production centre for the B8 field. The drilling rig is capable of drilling in offshore areas at depths of 105
m, and, if its legs are extended, at depths of up to 120 m.

Cooperation with PGNiG

With a view to expanding its operations in onshore areas, in August 2013 an agreement was signed with
PGNIG on joint operations in the Kamiert Pomorski licence area. Located in the Province of Szczecin, the
licence is among the most prospective ones in the region and covers an area of 217 square kilometres. The
exploratory work contemplated by the agreement will allow the partners to evaluate the reserves volumes
and decide whether to launch production.

In Norway
Yme Project - agreement with SBM

To recover capital invested in the Yme project, in March 2013 an agreement was reached between Talisman
Energy (Yme field operator) and SBM Offshore (rig manufacturer) on removal of the defective rig from the
field. SBM Offshore paid the joint venture partners an amount of USD 470m. On behalf of the licence
holders, Talisman Energy agreed to make the necessary preparations and remove the platform from the field.
SBM Offshore will be responsible for towing and scrapping the platform onshore. Further, ownership of the
subsea structure supplied by SBM Offshore will be transferred to the joint venture partners.

Purchase of Heimdal assets

In October 2013, LOTOS Norge and Centrica entered into an agreement on acquisition of the Heimdal
exploration and production assets. The transaction covers 14 licences in the central part of the North Sea,
including: Heimdal gas hub (operated by Statoil), three producing fields (Byggve/Skirne, Atla, and Vale),
three fields to be developed (Frigg GammaDelta, Fulla and Rind), as well as exploration prospects. As at the
effective date of the transaction, i.e. January 1st 2013, proved recoverable volumes of the producing fields
were estimated at 9m boe, with contingent resources of the fields to be developed amounting to 31m boe.
The value of the transaction was USD 175.8m.

In Lithuania
Preparations for development of our licence areas

To fully develop our onshore licence areas, a production drilling programme was implemented. The drilling of
five new wells was completed and the feasibility of increasing production using EOR (Enhanced Qil Recovery)
techniques was analysed. Seismic surveys were carried out in Klaipéda, Ablinga, and Lizai/Auksoras areas.
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Following these steps, in particular the transaction with Centrica and acquisition of the
Heimdal assets, the annual production potential of our exploration and production segment
has reached 0.5m tonnes, or 42% of the strategic target set for the end of 2015.

Challenges in strategy implementation until 2015

The principal strategic goal for the exploration and production segment is to increase the production
potential to 24 thousand boe (barrel of oil equivalent) daily (or 1.2m tonnes of crude oil annually) in 2015. In
2014, we plan to undertake the following key initiatives as part of our strategy:

Poland

e Continued production from the B3 field on the Baltic Sea using the PG-1 rig.

e Development of the B8 field.

e Exploration and production work to fully appraise the production potential of the Baltic Sea.
°

Continued work aimed at developing the B4/B6 gas fields together with CalEnergy Resources
Poland.

® Further cooperation with PGNIG to participate in the exploration for and appraisal of
conventional and unconventional oil and gas resources under onshore licences.

Norway

® Development of and production from the fields forming part of the Heimdal portfolio.
®  Further stepsto recover capital invested in the Yme project.
® FEvaluation of further asset purchase opportunities in the Norwegian Continental Shelf.

Lithuania

e To fully develop our onshore licence areas, a production and exploration drilling programme will
be implemented.
Evaluation of possible licence acquisitions in Lithuania.
Completion of feasibility analyses regarding a production increase using Enhanced Oil Recovery
techniques and im plementation of their results.
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Development prospects until 2020

The LOTOS Group's development directions until 2020 provide for increasing the production potential to
approximately 100 thousand boe (barrel of oil equivalent) per day, or 5 million tonnes of oil per year, and
securing approximately 330 million boe of proved recoverable reserves.

In 2016-2020, we plan to fully appraise the production potential of the Baltic Sea. Concurrently, we intend to
intensify our onshore activity. On international markets, we plan to build a sustainable asset portfolio and
gradually boost organic growth.

We also consider embarking on unconventional oil and gas projects.

The development of our exploration and production segment in 2016-2020 in Poland will involve:

Continued oil production from the B3 and B8 fields on the Baltic Sea.

Launch of gas production from the B4/B6 fields on the Baltic Sea.

Full appraisal of the hydrocarbon potential of the Baltic Sea assets.

Preparation and execution of projects to develop the Baltic Sea areas with confirmed resources.
Production from onshore fields, expansion of onshore operations through faster development of
oil and gas discoveries.

® Assessment of economic viability of potential involvement in unconventional projects.

Our international expansion plans for 2016-2020 envisage in particular:

Projects to develop areas with confirmed resources.
Acquisition of production assets and undeveloped assets with confirmed resources which can be
brought on-stream by 2020.

® Production increasein Lithuania, e.g. by employing enhanced oil recovery (EOR) techniques and
developing new prospects with confirmed resources.

® Evaluation of development opportunities in new geographies.
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Statement by Marek Sokotowski

Vice-President of the Management Board, Chief Operation Officer, Grupa LOTOS

In the refining business, the key challenge in 2013 was to adjust
the output mix to market expectations, while keeping operating
expenses in check and utilising the production capacities in the
optimal way.

In the first place, our efforts were designed to:

® Maximise the use of natural gas asa fuel and feedstock for hydrogen

, In the refining business, the ; ) . .
production, especially that gas remained the cheapest available fuel

key challengein 2013 was to

adjust the output mix to throughout 2013;
market expectations, while Optimise the use of refinery units. A major successin 2013 was an increase

keeping operating expenses in in the conversion ratio of one of the MHC hydrocracking units, built as part
check and utilising the of the 10+ Programme. The 90% conversion ratio achieved in August 2013
production capacities in the was a further improvement on the 85% ratio recorded in 2012, and
optimal way. marked an enormous progress versus the nameplate ratio of 60%. It was
reflected in the increase of the yearly-average conversion ratio from 83.8%
in 2012 to 85.7%;

Maximise the output of highest-margin products, especially diesel oils and

Marek Sokotowski e
Vice-President of the Management Board, aviation fuel.
Chief Operation Officer, Grupa LOTOS

An important aspect of a refinery’s efficiency lies in the reliability of its units and
installations. To ensure problem-free operation of refining units over a longer
time, it is necessary to carry out periodic overhauls. In spring 2013, a large-scale
overhaul shutdown was undertaken in our refinery in Gdansk, the first one since
the refinery was reconfigured under the 10+ Programme. Even though the scope
of the overhaul was significantly more extensive than in the past, the refinery
benefited from operating two independent crude distillation lines, the overhaul
of which was phased. Thus, the overall downtime in feedstock processing was
shorter than during past overhaul shutdowns.

Another important aspect of the refinery’s operating efficiency is connected with
its energy efficiency. Our complex in Gdansk has for long been ranked among the
most energy efficient European refineries. What is more, each improvement in
energy efficiency leads to a noticeable reduction in operating expenses. In 2013,
three process furnaces were replaced. The worn-out, low-efficiency furnaces were
replaced with state-of-the-art units fitted with heat recovery systems, which
further enhances their energy efficiency.

In 2013, projects were continued to increase the use of gas fuel by the refinery,
including conversion of the third boiler of the CHP plant into a gas-fired unit. The
last boiler will be upgraded in 2014 and from that time on all boilers of our CHP
plant will be adapted to run on natural gas. In 2013, we also commenced the
construction of a Hydrogen Recovery Unit. Once the project is completed, we will
be able to recover hydrogen, LPG and naphtha from low-pressure refinery gases,
currently burned in furnaces as a fuel. The recovery of hydrogen and its use in
refining processes will reduce the overall cost of hydrogen production and help
intensify the oil refining process. The other recovered streams will be marketed as
LPG and pyrolysis gasoline. The project is to be implemented in 2013-2016.
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To diversify crude oil supply sources and directions, we have launched the Oil
Unloading Railway Terminal project, which will enable us to receive and unload oil
delivered by rail cars to the refinery in Gdarisk. By developing the necessary
infrastructure for unloading oil from rail cars, we will be able to use domestically
produced oil in our units.

We are also continuing our plan designed to implement the strategic objective of
increasing the conversion ratio and intensifying crude processing by building the
coking complex to process the heavy residue from crude oil processing into high-
value products. The front-end engineering design stage for the coking complex
ended in August 2013. As part of that stage, a coking process licence and
technologies for accompanying processes were selected and purchased, and a
number of necessary technical analyses were performed. The selection of utility
providers and product buyers was commenced. Steps were also taken to ensure
adequate financing for the project. The coking unit will be completed in 2017.

In 2012, Grupa Azoty and Grupa LOTOS signed an agreement to jointly carry out a
preliminary feasibility study into the construction of a petrochemical production
complex. Based on the study results, construction of a steam cracker unit was
proposed as a recommended course of action. In December 2013, the Boards of
both companies entered into an agreement in which they defined the terms of
cooperation and financing of further work. A full feasibility study will mark the
next stage in our joint petrochemical project, to determine whether the
investment is viable and identify its potential economic benefits.

In 2013, our refinery was once again included in the refining industry
comparative performance analysis prepared by Solomon Associates. 2011-2012
were the compared years. For the purposes on the benchmarking study, the
refinery is virtually divided into the fuels segment (fuels refinery) and the
lubricant segment (lube refinery). The fuels refinery is subject to the Europe,
Africa & The Middle East Fuels Refinery Performance Analysis, so the peer group is
formed by refineries from those geographical regions. In 2013, the group
numbered 107 refineries. The lube refinery is subject to the Worldwide Paraffinic
Lube Refinery Performance Analysis, which in 2013 covered 42 refineries.

2012 was the first benchmarking year when all the refinery processes configured
as part of the 10+ Programme were fully operational. The Grupa LOTOS fuels
refinery performed very well against the peer group. The construction of modern
facilities markedly enhanced the refinery’s energy efficiency. At present, the
Grupa LOTOS refinery is among the most energy efficient refineries in Europe,
with only 5% or so of the refineries having scored better in this category. Further
improvement was also seen in labour productivity, as the 10+ Programme had
markedly enhanced the refinery’s capacity, with only a slight increase in
workforce. Since 2006, the labour productivity ratio has improved by
approximately 30%.

Return on capital employed, the most synthetic of all ratios, places the Grupa
LOTOS refinery among the 25% best refineries in the analysed region.
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Processing business

The LOTOS Group's operating activity is centred on refining operations and supplying the market with high
quality products, while utilising the production capacities in the optimal way and minimising the adverse
environmental impact.

The Group’s operating segment comprises the operations of the refinery in Gdansk - the largest production
plantin the LOTOS Group, and those of subsidiaries involved in production or support functions. The
subsidiaries include LOTOS Infrastruktura, LOTOS Serwis, LOTOS Lab, LOTOS Straz and LOTOS Ochrona.

Achievements

The spring 2013 overhaul shutdown was the most important event of the year at the Grupa LOTOS refinery.
It was the first major overhaul shutdown since the refinery’s expansion under the 10+ Programme. The
purpose of such shutdowns is to ensure safe operation of the refinery equipment by restoring them to full
working order. It is only during these stoppages that certain inspections required by the Office of Technical
Inspection can be carried out. In addition, they are an opportunity to implement a number of upgrades,
which cannot be done while the units are operational. In the Grupa LOTOS refinery, overhaul shutdowns are
carried out at four-year intervals.

The work slated for the 2013 overhaul shutdown was carried out in full. The overhaul work schedule was
prepared in accordance with relevant benchmarks for the refining industry, with the target overhaul
duration across key process units within the European average. Additionally, in the refinery’s current
configuration, it was possible to divide the work between two independent oil distillation lines, the overhaul
of which was phased. As the total downtime in crude oil processing was reduced, the shutdown’s impact on
the market availability of the refinery’s products was less significant than in previous years.

The overhaul shutdown was used as an occasion to carry out a number of efficiency improving projects,
designed to optimise the refining processes and replace old units. The most important of these included:

e modernisation of the liquid gas separation facility, which increased the unit’s capacity and raised
the quality of liquid gas streams,

® modernisation of the gasoline hydrodesulphurisation and separation column, resulting in higher
potential output of more expensive gasoline from naphtha processing and improving the process
efficiency,

® launch of a flare gasrecovery unit, designed to enable the use of flare gas asa fuel. The
implementation of the project improved the Company's energy efficiency, reduced its
environmental impact (CO2 emissions and noise) and enhanced itsimage,

® replacement of old furnaces at the gasoline hydrodesulphurisation and oil refining units. Thanks to
their high energy efficiency and enhanced operating profile, the new furnaces will improve the
units’ production performance.
In 2013, the 30-day downtime led to a year-on-year decrease in the volume of crude oil processed.
The refinery processed 8.7m tonnes of crude, which means that the average annual utilisation rate
of itsinstalled capacities was 82.9%. The refinery’s workload was adjusted to market conditions,
which remained challenging throughout the year.

In 2013, the 30-day downtime led to a year-on-year decrease in the volume of crude oil processed. The
refinery processed 8.7m tonnes of crude, which means that the average annual utilisation rate of its installed
capacities was 82.9%. The refinery’s workload was adjusted to market conditions, which remained
challenging throughout the year.
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Crude oil processing and production of finished Crude slate (%)
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As in previous years, the main type of crude processed was Russian REBCO, whose share in the total volume
was close to 90.4% and remained relatively flat on previous years. Crude oil imported by sea, including
approximately 140 thousand tonnes of Rozewie crude supplied by LOTOS Petrobaltic, accounted for the
balance of the crude feed. Following LOTOS Petrobaltic’s acquisition of AB Geonafta, the refinery in Gdansk
also began processing crude oil supplied from Lithuania. In 2013, the volume of Lithuanian crude processed
by our refinery was close to 48 thousand tonnes. Throughout the year, we recorded no supply disruptions
which could affect the volumes of crude processed by the refinery.

In 2013, the margin levels and demand conditions favoured maximised production of middle distillates such

as diesel oil, aviation fuel and light fuel oil, with these products accounting for nearly 56% of the refinery’s
total output.
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The refinery’s utilisation rate fell as a result of the overhaul shutdown. However, the hydrocracking unit’s
2013 workloads were comparable to those recorded in 2012. This was attributable chiefly to a very short
downtime of the 390 hydrocracking unit, which was built as part of the 10+ Programme and launched in
2011, and so did not require any substantial repairs.

Throughout 2013, the focus was on maximising the use of natural gas as a fuel and feedstock in hydrogen
production. Natural gas consumption rose by 75% year on year, to reach 372 thousand tonnes. As a result, the
output of products previously consumed at the refinery instead of natural gas, such as liquefied gas, gasolines
and fuel oil, went up.

Research and development

The focus of our research and development activities was on further optimisation of technologies for the oils
unit's products manufactured at our refinery in Gdansk. The most important R&D achievement in 2013 was
the development of production technology for bright stock oil with an increased viscosity index of 95 or more,
followed by successful production launch and marketing of the product. The viscosity index was increased by
using paraffin fraction residue.

As regards road bitumen and oil production technologies, in 2013:

® industrial validation was obtained for MODBIT 45/80-55 CR, a new polymer-modified bitumen
with added rubber recovered from waste rubber, designed for construction of hard-wearing and
environmentally friendly roads;

® laboratory validation was performed for MODBIT 25/55-60 CR, a new bitumen minimising the
effects of road structure stiffening at very low tem peratures;

® testing wascompleted for L-HV hydraulic oils for compliance with the Denison HF-0 requirements,
to obtain the required Approvals;

e field tests were carried out for oils to be used in stationary gas engines, to obtain formal approval
for use by selected engine manufacturers;

® new classes of motor and industrial oils were introduced, to offer a range of products suitable for
various climate conditions in export countries;

® 27 Approvalsfor lubricants were extended, and 16 new Approvals were secured.

Challenges in strategy implementation until 2015

Actions taken in 2013 were consistent with the objectives of the LOTOS Group's business and CSR strategies
until 2015. In the years to come, our efforts to further increase the efficiency of the refinery in Gdansk will be
continued. The key plans for the coming years include:

® Increasing the effectiveness of hydrocarbon production in the refinery through the construction of
a Hydrogen Recovery Unit;
Upgrading the fourth boiler of the refinery’s CHP plant by converting it into a gas-fired unit;
Continuing work on the design of the coking complex;
Refining our plans for producing high-quality base oils using paraffin fraction from MHC
hydrocracking units;
Further work on the construction of a petrochemical production complex;
Developing the infrastructure for unloading oil from rail cars.
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Development prospects until 2020

Development directions until 2020 in the processing business concern mostly projects that have already been
commenced and are aimed at improving the economic efficiency of feedstock processing at the refinery in
Gdansk. The most important challenges in this area will be:

e The project of a coking complex together with accompanying installations. So far, the technical
aspect of the project is quite advanced. However, the real challenge will be to ensure financing for
the project as well as the smooth implementation of all its stages. Our experiences gained during
theimplementation of the 10+ Programme shall prove useful for smooth completion of the
coking project.

e The project of a petrochemical production complex, which is currently at the stage of conducting
feasibility studies. Shall the project prove to be economically beneficial and financially viable, then
its completion will pose a major challenge and will open up a new chapter in the LOTOS Group's
activities.
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Statement by Marcin Bodio

International Relations Office Director, Grupa LOTOS, CSR Strategy Leader in the Energy Sector Security area
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, ’ In line with the business

strategy of the LOTOS Group
for2011-2015, we will be
seeking to increase our rolein
enhancing the security of
Poland’s energy sector by
increasing hydrocarbon
production and the oil
conversion ratio, improving
Poland’s fuel balance and
exploiting synergies between
the refining and other

segments of the energy sector.

In line with the business strategy of the LOTOS Group for 2011-
2015, we will be seeking to increase our role in enhancing the
security of Poland’s energy sector by increasing hydrocarbon
production and the oil conversion ratio, improving Poland’s fuel
balance and exploiting synergies between the refining and
other segments of the energy sector.

Enhancing the energy sector’s security in a socially and environmentally
responsible manner is also one of the key objectives of our CSR Strategy for 2012-
2015. Itis one of the reasons why we signed the declaration accompanying the
‘Vision of Sustainable Development of Polish Businesses until 2050 initiative. The
importance of the energy sector is underlined by its being one of the six focus
areas indicated in the document as an area where initiatives by business, the
government and other groups are necessary to ensure the country’s successful
long-term development.

In line with our strategy and acting in accordance with the principles of
transparency, we take part as experts in government-initiated activities to
improve the energy sector’s security. We take an active role in the law-making
process regarding key energy issues in Poland and the EU. We also actively work
with dedicated organizations in Poland and abroad to build platforms for
cooperation between the world of business and public authorities.

Marcin Bodio

International Relations Office Director, Grupa
LOTOS, CSR Strategy Leader in the Energy
Sector Security area

The promotion of corporate social responsibility manifests our need to stand for
common values, which is why Grupa LOTOS actively pursues international efforts,

to build a strong position for itself not only in business terms but also as a
corporate citizen. Especially worth pointing out is our work within two
international organizations, Central Europe Energy Partners (CEEP) and the
Atlantic Council.

Grupa LOTOS is an initiator and founding member of CEEP, a regional non-profit
organization whose objective is to support integration of the Central European
energy sector under the EU’s common policy for the energy sector and its
security. At present, CEEP represents 22 companies from six Central European
countries, which employ more than 300,000 staff and whose total annual
revenues are in excess of EUR 40 bn. Thanks to CEEP membership, Grupa LOTOS is
able to effectively voice its interests in the EU. The Atlantic Council is one of the
most internationally recognisable US think-tanks, pursuing programmes in the
fields of energy, the environment as well as global business and economics. As a
partner of an organization with the transatlantic reach, we have gained extensive
networking opportunities to work towards international security and global
economic prosperity.
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Energy sector security

In 2013, the goal of ensuring stable supplies of fuel and energy at prices acceptable to the industry and
society at large, with the most efficient use of domestic energy resources, was the most important aspect of
our efforts towards the energy sector's security. Accordingly, these efforts focused on the following two
areas:

e dynamic development of the upstream segment and active participation of Grupa LOTOS in the
law-making processes to support the exploration and production of hydrocarbons;

e contribution to the Polish and EU energy policy - by trying to make the governments, parliaments
and the public clearly see that the cost-benefit considerations and social costs should be taken into
account when building the energy security.

In 2013, Grupa LOTOS and Central Europe Energy Partners (CEEP) were involved in promoting the energy
security policy, in particular the issue of affordable energy and support for the development of indigenous
energy resources.

At the 3rd European Economic Congress in Katowice, Grupa LOTOS and CEEP co-hosted ‘The role of energy in
a competitive Europe’ discussion panel, held chiefly to highlight the fact that recovery and development of
the industry is the key challenge which needs to be addressed in order to restore economic growth and
create new jobs. However, this will not be possible if the energy costs keep growing.

A number of politicians and businessmen attended ‘The Internal Energy Market in the EU — A Chance for
Central Europe?’ discussion panel organised by CEEP at the 23rd Economic Forum in Krynica. The participants
unanimously agreed that a unified internal market would bring up a number of opportunities for Central
Europe, in particular in the area of cohesion policy, but also certain challenges, which need to be monitored
and taken into account when creating an internal energy market.

Representatives of Grupa LOTOS and CEEP also took part in the Global Security Forum conference in
Bratislava, which was a major event organised as part of the Polish presidency of the Visegrad Group,
featuring, among other things, a presentation of the ‘What Energy, Price, Growth’ report commissioned by
CEEP from Roland Berger Consultants. It was noted that the EU’s unified energy sector policy which does not
account for differences in economic development or the sector’s specific nature would be damaging to
Central European countries.

One of the key events to inaugurate the Lithuanian presidency of the EU was the '29+1" debate held in
Vilnius. The formula for the '29+1" energy summit was already successfully tested in 2012 in Budapest.
Representatives of the 29 leading energy sector companies from Central Europe participating in the summit
had an opportunity to present their views and discuss certain issues facing the sector with Giinther
Oettinger, EU Commissioner for Energy. The idea behind the '29+1" meetings is to ensure that Central
European energy companies have a say in developing the EU’s joint position and energy security policy.

Grupa LOTOS also took part in the Refining Roundtable organised by the European Commission'’s
Directorate-General for Energy (DG Energy), placing emphasis on the impact of EU legislation on the refining
sector’s competitiveness.

As a CEEP member, in 2013 we were involved (as part of the public consultation process) in preparing the

EU’s position on the following issues:
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e 2015 International Climate Change Agreement: Shaping international climate policy beyond
2020;

Exploration and production of unconventional hydrocarbonsin Europe;
Energy prices in Europe.
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Statement by Wojciech Blew

Technology Development and HSE Director, Grupa LOTOS, CSR Strategy Leader in the Management of Natural Resources

in the Production Process area

In Grupa LOTOS’
environmental policy, we
have been pursuing the
commitments embedded in
the Global Compact
Principles. We reconfirmed
thisagain in 2012 by signing
the Declaration of Polish
Businesses for Sustainable
Development. We put in
practice the provisions of the
two documents by ensuring
that our production
installations always operate
in strict conformity with the
most stringent environmental
requirements, and by opting
for innovative technological
solutions when it comes to
development and new
projects. We also im plement
such technical solutions that
meet the stringent
requirements of best available
techniques in terms of
environmental impactand
rational use of natural
resources.

Wojciech Blew

Technology Development and HSE Director,
Grupa LOTOS, CSR Strategy Leader in the
Management of Natural Resources in the
Production Process area

In Grupa LOTOS' environmental policy, we have been pursuing
the commitments embedded in the Global Compact Principles.
We reconfirmed this again in 2012 by signing the Declaration of
Polish Businesses for Sustainable Development. We put in
practice the provisions of the two documents by ensuring that
our production installations always operate in strict conformity
with the most stringent environmental requirements, and by
opting for innovative technological solutions when it comes to
development and new projects. We also implement such
technical solutions that meet the stringent requirements of best
available techniques in terms of environmental impact and
rational use of natural resources.

We take care to design and conduct our production processes with a primary
focus on prevention, so that the generation of pollution and other nuisances is
prevented at source, and if that is not sufficient to minimise the impacts — we
make investments necessary to protect the environment. Such an approach is
reflected in the LOTOS Group's business strategy as part of an operating objective
to limit the environmental risk and to constantly strive to minimise the negative
environmental impact, and in the organization’s CSR supporting its business
objectives.

Our advancement in attaining another objective identified in our business
strategy, which is to meet the best global production standards and remain highly
competitive among European refineries, is well characterised by the results of a
comparative study by Solomon Associates, presented in 2013. In the ‘energy
efficiency’ category, we ranked at the beginning of the first quartile among global
refineries, and first in Central and Southern Europe. Thanks to creative solutions
proposed by our Gdansk-based engineers, Grupa LOTOS' hydrocracking unit
(MHC) achieves a conversion ratio of 90%, compared with a 60% licensor-rated
conversion ratio for the same type of feedstock.

We have seen good progress in the pursuit of a key objective of our CSR strategy —
to reduce the environmental risk and make constant efforts to minimise the
negative environmental impact of the LOTOS Group’s operations.

Throughout 2013, we were successfully expanding the use of natural gas in the
refinery’s fuel gas network. A substantial increase in the use of gas in the refinery’s
energy system and as feedstock for production of hydrogen, replacement of old
inefficient furnaces at two production units, and redirecting of flare gas to the
heating network have all allowed us to achieve better-than-expected results in
the implementation of our strategic CSR objective for carbon dioxide emissions.
The average emissions volume in 2013 was 30.4kg CO2/CWT versus the 33.8kg
CO,/CWT targeted at the end of the year.
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We promote the awareness of best environmental practices and standards
among our employees as well as the local communities. Our activities in this area
include meetings, reunions, debates and conferences, publications in our internal
media, as well as reaching our employees directly with information to raise their
environmental awareness and popularise good environmental practices and
standards. A notable event among those organised in 2013 consisted in a
comprehensive survey carried out among the LOTOS Group's employees, which
on the one hand allowed us to evaluate the degree of their environmental
awareness in the workplace and at home, and on the other hand had an
educational value. Another important event was an integrating meeting for
environmental protection specialists from all major industrial plants in Pomerania,
the first of its kind. The meeting was devoted to environmental management,
including industrial failures and mitigation of the risk of such failures,
implementation of the IED directive into the Polish law and monitoring of how
industrial operations affect the natural environment. We also continued to host
trips to our refinery with a view to popularizing information on how the
environmental impact of our facilities is being reduced, and we carried out other
educational campaigns.

We invariably monitor the environmental footprint of the LOTOS Group's
infrastructure beyond our mandatory obligations. In order to limit the risk of
uncontrolled environmental impact, we continued the review of our service
stations’ documentation, an exercise commenced in 2012. In 2013, the review
covered 70% of the service stations (compared with 30% a year earlier). We also
identified the stations (with a particular focus on stations located in Natura 2000
sites) for which we will procure environmental impact assessments.

In 2013, we selected the contractor to perform the large-area environmental
inventory of the refinery grounds in Gdansk and its surrounding areas. The results
of this analysis, due to be completed in early 2015, will provide information on
the condition of the environment within the refinery grounds and in adjacent
areas.

We also seek to maintain the content of pollutants in treated wastewater and
discharged water at the lowest possible levels. Just like in previous years, in 2013
the average annual ratio of pollutant charge introduced to the Rozwdjka and
Martwa Wista rivers did not exceed the admissible level for all of the monitored
indicators except one. The one exception was the boron content, an indicator
added to our permit in view of the fact that we began to receive wastewater from
the Eko Dolina landfill site. The recorded level of this indicator, which exceeded

the permitted level by 50%, is attributable to the composition of the received

WENGEWEIES
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Environmental impact

(V) - data has been verified See full text of the Independent Assurance Report >

When considering our environmental impacts, at the LOTOS Group we are especially concerned with gas
emissions, which are the most critical source of environmental nuisance, both for the immediate environment
of our plants and other areas located further away. The approach to emissions of greenhouse gases, including
carbon dioxide (COy), methane (CHa), nitrous oxide (N20), fluorinated hydrocarbons (HFCs), perfluorinated
hydrocarbons (PFCs) and sulphur hexafluoride (SFg), is becoming an increasingly more important element of
the assessment whether a company operates in accordance with the principles of sustainable development
and corporate social responsibility. Recently, we have also seen a wave of increased stakeholder interest in
these issues, especially after the 19th edition of the Conference of Parties (COP19) organized by Poland,
during which representatives of many countries from around the world were discussing the risks entailed by
climate change, as well as ways of preparing for and possibly counteracting such change.

At Grupa LOTOS, given that we participate in the EU Emissions Trading Scheme and have a sense of our
material contribution to the country’s climate policy, we attach great importance to all issues related to the
emissions of greenhouse gases as a result of the processes taking place in our installations. In all our projects
we consistently stick to the policy of taking into consideration and implementing the Best Available
Technologies for our processes.

CO3is the only greenhouse gas discharged from Grupa LOTOS' installations @. As in the previous year, we did
not take continuous measurements of carbon dioxide emission volumes, but instead used a methodology
based on calculating those volumes.

2013 was the first year when the manner of monitoring emission volumes of carbon dioxide and other
greenhouse gases was centrally regulated — by the EU. This centrally imposed methodology compelled us to
introduce some modifications in our approach to the assessment of measurement uncertainty and risk
involved in the monitoring process. The consumption of input fuels and materials classified as main streams,
namely fuel gas, natural gas and fuel oils, is measured using the most advanced and accurate Coriolis mass
flowmeters, which guarantee that the highest accuracy standards are met. In turn, analyses of the parameters
(calculation coefficients) of those fuels and materials are performed by an accredited LOTOS Lab laboratory.
There was a slight change in the reference calculation coefficients we use for certain smaller streams of fuels
and materials. We consult these, as well as any other, changes in the method of monitoring carbon dioxide
emissions with a reputable, accredited EU ETS verifier.

The Diesel-powered internal combustion engines of the energy generation system, the steam boilers and
crane engines are all sources of greenhouse gas emissions. On the Baltic Beta platform, gases are emitted by
the turbines running on gas separated from crude oil. An additional source of greenhouse gas emissions
comes from the gas flared on the platform. On the Baltic Beta platform, most excess gas is compressed and
returned to shore where it is used for powering other turbines, hence flaring is reduced to a minimum. All the
gas produced on the 'Petrobaltic’ platform is burned in flare stacks, which are designed to minimise the
emission of harmful substances. All of its CO2 emissions come from the combustion of natural gas and fuel oil
in the generation of electricity and heat.

Natural gas extracted from under the Baltic Sea bed does not contain any chemical compounds or substances
which could produce emissions of any greenhouse gases other than CO3 during combustion. The methane
which is a component of fuel gas is burnt up and is not emitted into the atmosphere. Other products of gas
separation (liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) and natural gas condensate (NGC)) do not contain greenhouse
gases and do not produce emissions of any gases other than CO2 when used by end users.
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LOTOS Geonafta's hydrocarbon production operations in Lithuania generate relatively low emissions of
harmful substances, which is why no emissions monitoring is undertaken there. As for LOTOS Norge, in 2013
it did not conduct any operations which could be a source of greenhouse gas emissions.

CO2 emissions in 2013 Unit. Volume
LOTOS Petroba ltic* tonne 17599 ()
Energobaltic tonne 11,784 ()

Emission volumes including offshore activities.

During the overhaul shutdown performed at the refinery in 2013, we introduced a number of low-emission
improvements, which have contributed positively to our performance.

Type of CO2 emissions in Grupa LOTOS [thousands of tonnes per year]

Type of emission 2011 2012 2013
Direct 2,045 1,979 1689 (v
Indirect 365 400 373 ()
Total 2,410 2,379 2,062 (V)

A reduction in emissions of carbon dioxide and other pollutants into the atmosphere was achieved also
thanks to the completion in 2013 of the following projects:

e Replacement of process furnaces at the gasoline hydrorefining and oils refining units — the new
furnaces are much more energy efficient compared with the old units;
Upgrade of the third boiler at our CHP plant and its adaptation to the burning of natural gas;
Construction of a flare gas recovery unit, which redirected 45% of the total volume of flare gases
to the fuel gas network between the beginning of September and the end of the year.

The only significant source of indirect emissions in Grupa LOTOS is in the purchase and use of electricity . It
should be noted that in 2013 we significantly reduced the use of heavy fuel oil as a fuel for heat generation,
replacing it with more environmentally friendly fuel gas, the main ingredient of which is natural gas.

These projects allowed Grupa LOTOS to reduce its carbon dioxide emissions by approximately
185 thousand tonnes in 2013.

Apart from carbon dioxide, Grupa LOTOS is also required to monitor emissions of such substances as sulphur
dioxide (5O3), nitrogen oxides (NOy), and particulate matter (PM). The method of monitoring these pollutant
emissions remained unchanged from the previous year. Measurements are performed separately for two
installations: the CHP plant and the refinery. An online measurement system has been fitted inside the flue
gas stack of the CHP plant, which continuously indicates the average concentrations of emitted oxides and
particulate matter. Emissions from the refinery are calculated based on periodic measurements.
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Pollutant emissions in Grupa LOTOS [tonnes per year]:

Substance 2011 Es 2011 Eg 2012 Es 2012 Eq 2013 Es 2013 Eq
S02 5,708 7137 3370 6,342 548 () 5169
NO2 1620 2,650 1308 2,501 843 (1) 2,264
PM 344 556 264 461 91 366

Es- actual level of emissions from Grupa LOTOS installations
Ed - permissible level of emissions

In LOTOS Petrobaltic, fuel combustion emissions of such substances as nitrogen and sulphur oxides are due
mainly to the combustion of fuel oils. It needs to be emphasised that none of the emissions from the LOTOS
Petrobaltic Group's production operations contain any ozone-depleting substances.

Pollutant emissions in the LOTOS Petrobaltic Group in 2013 [tonnes]

Substance Unit Volume

LOTOS Petrobaltic

SOx tonne 453 ()
NOx tonne 2688 ()
Dust tonne 288 ()

LOTOS Geonafta

SOx tonne 046 ()
NOx tonne 295 ()
VOC (volatile organic compounds) tonne 69.54 ()
Dus tonne 029 ()
Energobaltic

SOx tonne 0004 ()
NOx tonne 123 @)
Dust tonne 0.005 ()

In 2013, a flare gas recovery unit was put in service at the Grupa LOTOS refinery in Gdansk. The unit was fitted
on one of the two discharge ducts leading to flare 3500. To achieve the greatest possible mitigation of
environmental nuisance while ensuring that the project remains economically viable, the unit's connection
point was located on the duct which carries the vast majority of all flare gases produced in Grupa LOTOS.

-150 -



‘() LOTOS Integrated Annual Report 2013 - Grupa LOTOS S.A Win the Future

Amount of discharge — amount of flare gas in Grupa LOTOS [thousand cubic metres per year]

Source Unit 2011 2012 2013
Flare 3500 thousand cubic metres 21036 19,388 16,363 (V)
Flare 3550 thousand cubic metres 10819 3,603 5499 (1)
Total thousand cubic metres 31,855 22,991 21,862 (V)

Significant volumes of flare gases are produced at shutdowns and startups of installations. Given that an
overhaul shutdown was performed in our refinery in 2013, the aggregate volumes of gas being burned in
flares should have been significantly higher than in previous years. However, the construction of a flare gas
recovery unit, in addition to many other minor improvements, reduced the aggregate annual volumes of
flared gases.

The extent to which Grupa LOTOS managed to reduce its environmental impact is also reflected by the figures
showing a reduction in our air emissions.

Emission reduction in 2013 [tonne]*

Action CO2 SO2 Pyt NOyx
Replacementoffueloilwith naturalgasin thefuelgasnetwork 35,000 1960 150 190
Replacementoffueloilwith naturalgasatthe CHPplant 68,000 1420 60 220
Replacementoflight petrol/LPGwith naturalgasin theHydrogen Generation Unit (HGU) 82,000 0 0 0
Total 185,000 3,380 210 410

* compared with production conditions of 2011.

In 2013, as in previous years, we did not use any ozone-depleting substances, neither did we introduce any
products the use of which would cause atmospheric emissions of such compounds.

In the years to come, we want to continue our efforts to gradually reduce emissions of carbon dioxide and
other pollutants into the atmosphere, through further:

® increasing theshare of natural gasin our fuel gas network;
e reducing the consumption of heavy fuel oil by replacing it with fuel gas.

Energy efficiency

The energy efficiency of all production units used by Grupa LOTOS is one of our top priorities. Our steady
progress in this area is reflected in the comparative performance analyses of the refining industry published
by Solomon Associates.

In the latest Solomon report for 2012, Grupa LOTOS was named the most energy efficient
fuels refinery in Central Europe and Southern Europe, and secured one of the top positions in
Europe.
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We constantly undertake new initiatives to improve the refinery’s energy efficiency. In 2013, the key project
consisted in replacing process furnaces at two refining units, i.e. the gasoline hydrodesulphurisation unit and
the oils refining unit.

The new furnaces are highly efficient, with an energy efficiency ratio of over 90%. By using
advanced, highly efficient technological solutions, we also reduced the consumption of
primary energy, which relative to 2012 was down 28% and 30% in the fuel and lube
complexes, respectively.

As a result of the work performed during the overhaul shutdown and rational management of process
media, we managed to permanently reduce the refinery’s consumption of compressed (control) air by 20%.

In 2013, we also took steps to lower the indirect use of energy by the refinery. To this end, low voltage
switchgears were modernised and inverters were installed on the supplies of the motors of all cooling fans in
one of the cooling water units. This solution enhances the cooling efficiency and saves electricity through
flexible control of the rotational speed of the fan motors in individual cooling units. The system was put in
service in late 2013. We also continued to use LED lights on a test basis.

Given the requirements of the Act on Liquid Biocomponents and Biofuels, the Grupa LOTOS refinery’s fuel
products contain biocomponents (renewable energy carriers): ethanol and ethyl tert-butyl ether are used in
gasoline production, whereas fatty acid methyl esters are added to diesel oils. According to the current quality
requirements for liquid fuels, the permitted ethanol and ethyl tert-butyl ether content in gasoline is 5% and
15%, respectively. Similarly, the volume of fatty acid methyl esters in diesel oils must not exceed 7%. The total
required content of biocomponents in motor fuels is set by the state. In 2013, the Council of Ministers issued
a Regulation on National Indicative Targets for 2013-2018, whereby the NIT was set at 7.10%, which means
that biocomponents must account for 7.10% of the energy content of fuels marketed in Poland. Grupa

LOTOS has met this requirement.

Direct energy consumption of Grupa LOTOS in 2013, by primary energy source [GJ]

Direct — purchased Direct — produced Direct — sold Direct - total energy
Item Unit energy energy energy consumption
Natural gas GJ 7943250 () 0 0@ 7943250 (v)
Fuel gas GJ 0 9542926 () 140807 (7) 9402119 7)
HSFO+Bleed fuel G 0w 09 0 0@
oil - - - -
LSFO GJ 0 1952920 (v) 0@ 1952920 (v)
Light fuel oil G 0 25043 ) 0 25043 ()
(HON) - - - -
Electricity GJ 0 0 0 0
Heat GJ 0 0 118,054 (v -118,054 ()
Residual gas GJ 0 3,258,653 (v 0@ 3,258,653 (v

Total 7,943,250 (¥) 14,779,542 (V) 258,861 (v 22,463,931 (V)

3]
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Indirect energy consumption of Grupa LOTOS, by primary energy source

Year Unit Amount of electricity purchased from the National Power Grid
2011 GJ 4,163,239
2012 GJ 4407590
2013 GJ 4,036,944 ()

The main source of energy used on the drilling platforms is diesel oil, supplied by ships, as well as natural gas
extracted together with oil.

On the 'Petrobaltic’ platform, energy is generated by a system of power engines and generators running on
diesel oil, which meets the requirement to keep sulphur content below 1%. Energy generated in this way is
then distributed throughout the platform. On the ‘Baltic Beta' platform, energy is additionally generated by
gas turbines powered by gas separated from the formation fluid, composed chiefly of crude oil. In LOTOS
Geonafta, energy on the rigs is produced by a diesel generator.

Direct energy consumption of LOTOS Petrobaltic in 2013, by primary energy source

Direct — purchased Direct — produced Direct - sold Direct - total energy
Item Unit energy energy energy consumption
Natural Gl 0 53,048 ) 25139 () 27910 ()
gas Y i i Y
Total GJ 106,733 (v) 53,048 () 25,139 v 134,643 V)

Direct energy consumption of LOTOS Geonafta in 2013, by primary energy source

Direct — purchased Direct — produced Direct — sold Direct — total energy
Item Unit energy energy energy consumption
Natural gas GJ 2,521 () 0% 0 25210
Fuel gas GJ 0 17,056 () 0 17,056 (v
Diesel oil GJ 24874 () 0 0@ 24874 (J)
Total GJ 27,395 (v 17,056 () 0 v 44,451 V)

Direct energy consumption of Energobaltic in 2013, by primary energy source

Direct — purchased Direct — produced Direct — sold Direct - total energy
Item Unit energy energy energy consumption
:\IGaZu;:;ll) gas type E Gl 17679 () 0@ 0@ 17679 ()
Natural fuel gas (dry) GJ 262,519 () 0 0 262,519 ()
Light fuel oil GJ 116 () 0 0 116 ()
Electricity Gl 0 50033 () 47968 () 2,065 (7)
Heat GJ 0 134,163 ) 102,275 (2) 31887 ()
Total GJ 280,314 () 184,196 () 150,243 (V) 314,266 (v
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Indirect energy consumption of LOTOS Petrobaltic in 2013, by primary energy source

Unit. Quantity

Energy purchased fortheland base’soperations GJ 5948 (1)

Indirect energy consumption of LOTOS Geonafta in 2013, by primary energy source

Item Unit Quantity
Energy purchased foradministra tive purposes GJ 1256 ()
Energy forproduction purposes GJ 11826 ()
Total GJ 13,082 (V)

Indirect energy consumption of Energobaltic in 2013, by primary energy source

Unit Quantity

Energy purchased G 26533 @

Raw materials and consumables used

Raw materials used in exploration and production are substances used in the drilling and production
processes. In the case of drilling, these include:

® Drilling mud components (materials),
® Cement used to bond well casing to the drilled rock.

LOTOS Petrobaltic does not use oil-based muds for drilling. All muds used on the drilling rig are water-based.
Drilling mud components are brought to the platform, where they are added to water to obtain drilling mud
of the required physical and chemical properties. The main ingredients of drilling mud are bentonite or metal
salts (KCl, NaCl), with baryte or galena as weighting agents. Various other chemical substances are added to
achieve the required properties.

The main raw materials used in the production process include also:

® Chemical substances (materials) added to the formation and produced water injection system,
® Materials used as filter inserts (anthracite, ground nut shells, gravel of different grain size, metal
and fibrous filter inserts).

Formation water is saturated brine, mostly chlorine, sodium and calcium brine.

From the point of view of environmental protection, injection of water into a deposit does not pose any
environmental threat because the applied pressure does not exceed the fracture pressure of the rock layer,
and so does not affect its structure. However, the presence of water in extracted crude oil poses the problem
of its disposal or recycling by further technological process. So far, the main method of managing this highly
mineralised formation water, extracted together with oil, consists in separating it from the oil in separators,
and discharging it into the sea after cleaning it to a level below 15 ppm of oil components (in accordance
with the requirements of MARPOL 73/78 and HELCOM).
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In order to protect the Baltic Sea and meet the environmental requirements set forth in the Baltic Sea Action
Plan, such as those imposing a total ban on discharge of waters, including treated formation water, directly
into the sea, LOTOS Petrobaltic has built an installation which pumps produced waters back into the deposit.
Consequently, all formation water is pumped back to the deposit it came from, together with the sea water.
This solution does not interfere with the marine environment or with the formation of oil-bearing strata, but
merely returns the extracted substance.

Water parameters around the platforms are continually monitored in order to ensure that they meet the
relevant environmental requirements. We carry out regular monitoring of multiple parameters, including
hydrocarbon content in the water, chemical and biological oxygen demand, chlorides, sulphides, bacteria,
surfactants and others.

The cementing process uses water-based slurry with chemical additives which delay the setting time. The
purpose here is to bond the casing pipes to the drilled levels, prevent contact between drilled rock layers of
different pressure gradients, and ensure tightness of the uncased section to prevent the overflow of drilling
mud or substances extracted during operations. The parameters are monitored before, during and after
drilling, in accordance with the relevant environmental decisions and approvals. Any variations that may
occur are due to country-specific regulations. The Baltic Sea is particularly sensitive, which is why operations
on the Baltic Sea are governed by more rigorous regulations than those applicable in other areas.

Raw materials and consumables used in 2013 by the LOTOS Petrobaltic Group, by weight and volume
(tonnes)

LOTOS Petrobaltic

Injected and formation water Volume
Biocides 1017[t] )
Coagulants 169 [t] ()
Other 1516 [t] ()
Total 35.9 [t] (V)
Drilling mud Volume
Bentonite 193 [t] ()
Salts (drilling mud and packer fluid) 788 [t] ()
Hydroxides 291[t] (v
Other (for maintaining appropriate properties - viscosity, filtration, etc) 2281[t] (v)
Total 123.8 [t] V)
Cement slunry Volume
Cement 4306 [t] (v
Processing agents 1441t (v
Total 445.0 [t] V)
Total 604.7 [t] (v

Transport of gas from the platform via pipeline to Wtadystawowo Volume
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Methanol 8.08 [t] v}
LOTOS Geonafta

Substances used in the drilling process Volume
Acid inhibitors 6.95[t] )
Drilling mud additives 11140([t] )
Polymers 4831[t] (v
Blokers 29.25[t] (v
Lubricants 1400t )
Cement 16242[t] ()
Extraction additives 11140([t] ()
Total 471.13 [t] V)
Substances used in the production process Volume
Cormrosion inhibitors 216 [t] ()
De-emulsifiers 2928[t] (v
Oxidants 020[t] (v
Total 31.65 [t] (V)
Total 502.78 [t] (V)
Energobaltic

Stage | - Gas Compressor Station Volume

Input material: waste gas

Indirect production material: methanol

Stage Il - Gas/Input Material Separator Station

Input material: waste gas (wet) for LPG production

Input material: natural gas condensate

Obtained natural fuel gas (dry) as a fuel for heat and electricity generation

9790352 [Nm>] )
10200(1] )
Volume

496658 [t ()
161351[t] ()

5250374 [Nm>] (%)

Raw materials and consumables used by Grupa LOTOS, by weight and volume (tonnes)

Raw materials Unit 2011 2013
Crude oil tonne 9,163,836 8,702,622 (4
Raw materials and components tonne 1,062,156 834,114 ()
Enhancing additives tonne 2,254 1994 ()
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Water consumption

The refinery draws water from the nearby Motfawa river, which is its only source of surface water. Given the
risk of seawater influx into the river near our intake, to ensure an adequate supply of freshwater the refinery
draws water into a retention tank with a capacity of 350,000 m3, constructed in the Mottawa oxbow lake.
Underground water is sourced from Cretaceous and Quaternary formations. Cretaceous water drawn by
means of two wells is an important source of water for human use. Because of its quality, Quaternary water is
used solely for industrial purposes, and given that our intake from these formations is relatively small, the
source is classified as immaterial.

Economic use of the natural environment, including water resources, is based on relevant water-law permits
and an integrated permit for drawing water from Cretaceous wells. The environmental impact of water
intake is assessed during each permit application procedure. Inspections carried out near the refinery's
underground and surface water intakes confirm that our water intake does not affect any protected sites or
areas of great environmental value.

We consistently maintain water consumption substantially below the prescribed volumes. In
2013, the volume of surface water drawn by the refinery represented 28.9% of the
permitted volume, with Quaternary and Cretaceous waters at 0.4% and 59.2% of the
respective limits.

Total freshwater drawn by Grupa LOTOS, by source (m 3/year)

Source Unit 2011 2012 2013
Underground water m3 202,429 189,217 162,511 ()
Surface water m3 3607427 3,532,113 3574791 ()
Total m3 3,809,856 3,721,330 3,737,302 (v

Grupa LOTOS processes consuming large quantities of water

Source Unit 2011 2012 2013
CHP plant - production of utilities m3/year 2929811 2936,080 2,778,592
Refinery - circulatory cooling water m3/year 1,386,304 1,503,995 1418925

Freshwater for the needs of the LOTOS Petrobaltic platforms is extracted from a deep well, for which the
company holds the required permit. The amount of water drawn is closely monitored and remains below
permitted levels. The amount of water drawn from the Baltic Sea for the needs of the rigs is negligible in
relation to its total water resources — 303,121 m?3 out of 21,727 m>. It should also be noted that none of the
other companies of the LOTOS Petrobaltic Group are depleting water resources through excessive withdrawal.

Water is used on the platforms for human use and for technological purposes. In addition to freshwater,

seawater is also used for production purposes, for example in the water injection system. This water is drawn
directly from the sea by means of deep-well pumps.
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Total freshwater drawn by LOTOS Petrobaltic in 2013, by source (m 3)

Source Unit Amount of water drawn
Freshwater - own intake m3 27645 ()
Freshwater - municipal water supply m3 2467 (4
Seawater m3 303,121 )
Formation water m3 94366 ()
Total m3 427,599 )

Total freshwater drawn by LOTOS Geonafta in 2013, by source (m3)

Source Unit Amount of water drawn
Freshwater m3 3012 (o)
Water for technological purposes m3 1855 (v)
Total m3 4,867 ()

Total freshwater drawn by Energobaltic in 2013, by source (m 3)

Source Unit

Amount of water drawn

Waterdrawn from municipalnetwork m

4,853 @)

Grupa LOTOS seeks to increase the volume of reused water and wastewater. Our goal is to increase the share
of recycled water in our overall process water consumption. In this way, we keep the use of natural resources
to a necessary minimum. For a number of years now, we have been witnessing measurable effects of our
efforts, as the percentage of reused water in our overall water consumption continues to rise. Recycled water
includes industrial water produced from treated wastewater as well as condensate returned to the boiler

feedwater.

Volume of water recycled in Grupa LOTOS (n?)

Unit 2011 2012 2013

Industrial water produced from treated wastewater m3 1,179,317 1,254,556 1368844 ()

Pure condensate volume m3 2,030,131 2207217 2,237300 (v
Total volume of water recycled in Grupa LOTOS

Unit 2011 2012 2013

Total volume of recycled water m3 3,209,448 3461773 3,606,144 (/)

482 49.1 (&)

Percentage of recycled water % 457
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Treated wastewater from the Grupa LOTOS treatment plant is discharged to the Martwa Wista river. The
receiving body was historically a part of the Wista Leniwka river. The reservoir was cut off from the main
course of the Wista in the 19th century, following construction of the Wista cutting and the Przegalina sluice.
The Martwa Wista waters in the refinery area are classified as internal seawaters.

The second stream of water discharged from the plant consists of treated drainage water and clean
rainwater, which are directed to the Rozwdjka river, an element of the Zutawy Gdanskie hydrological
improvement system and a tributary of the Martwa Wista.

Neither of these receiving waters are protected or have high biodiversity value in the discharge area.
Furthermore, long-term monitoring has confirmed that wastewater discharged by Grupa LOTOS has no
material impact on them. Additionally, despite many years of operation, the refinery does not seem to
materially affect any of the habitats located in the vicinity of its discharge areas.

The separate treatment lines allow us to redirect almost all oily rainwater after treatment, to produce
industrial water which is fed back to the plant and reused. Only excess volumes of treated oily rainwater are

discharged, together with technical wastewater and greywater/blackwater, to the receiving body.

Total volume of wastewater from Grupa LOTOS, by quality and destination (m3)

Unit 2011 2012 2013
Rozwojka m3 3,874,089 4305910 4220723 ()
Martwa Wista m3 1354015 1293596 1273851 ()
Total m3 5228,104 5509506 5494574 ()

Treated wastewater discharged by Grupa LOTOS into the Martwa Wista river

2011 2011 2012 2012 2013 2013
Measure Unit Wy Wd Wy Wd Wy Wd
pH - 781 6.50-9.00 7.79 6.50-9.00 7.56 6.50-9.00
Biological Oxygen Demand 02/d2§ 268 2500 256 2500 299 2500
Chemical Oxygen Demand ozldmg 34.00 12500 3020 12500 4410 12500
Suspended solids mg/dm3 7.89 35.00 6.38 3500 789 3500
Volatile phenols ung/ dm?3 1.00 100.00 <5.00* 100.00 <0.005* 100.00
Z:'hb:rtances extractable with petroleum mg/dm3 058 5000 074 5000 073 5000
Petroleum hydrocarbons mg/dm3 083 5.00 193 5.00 023 5.00
Total Nitrogen mg/dm3 290 30.00 240 30.00 430 30.00
Total Phosphorus mg/dm3 1.07 3.00 1.03 3.00 057 3.00
Sulphides pg/dm3 2.00 200.00 6.00 200.00 9.00 200.00
Nickel png/ dm3 10.10 500.00 1020 500.00 17.05 500.00
Vanadium pg/dm3 3630 2,000.00 2890 2,000.00 19.10 2,000.00

Aluminium pgldm3 9220 3,000.00 6240 3,000.00 69.00 3,000.00
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W - actual average annual level
W - permissible average annual level
* result below the quantification limit for the analytical method used in a given year

Treated wastewater discharged by Grupa LOTOS into the Rozwoéjka river

Measure Unit 2011 Wy 2011 wd 2012 Wy 2012 Wq 2013 Wy 2013 Wq
Suspended solids mg/dm3 1192 3500 1071 35.00 9.50 35.00
Petroleum hydrocarbons mg/dm3 164 5.00 2.15 5.00 074 5.00

W - real average annual value
W( - permissible average annual value

All oily wastewater is stored on the LOTOS Petrobaltic platforms in special containers, and later taken ashore

for disposal. Greywater/blackwater is processed in a biological treatment station and then released to the

sea. The condition of seawater around the platform is monitored on a daily basis. Similarly, no wastewater
produced by LOTOS Geonafta in its drilling operations is discharged directly into natural bodies of water

(lakes and rivers). All technological wastewater and greywater/blackwater is stored and subsequently

transported to a wastewater treatment plant.

Volume of wastewater produced in 2013, by destination (n?)

LOTOS Petrobaltic Unit Volume
Greywater/blackwater m3 7546 ()
LOTOS Geonafta Unit Volume
Greywater/blackwa ter m3 3012 ()
Energobaltic Unit Volume
Greywater/blackwa ter m3 617 (4

All formation water produced by LOTOS Petrobaltic in the oil extraction process is pumped back to the

reservoir it came from.

Volume and disposal method of formation water and water produced by LOTOS Petrobaltic in 2013

Item Unit Volume
Degree of oil contamination of formation water ppm 764 ()
Water injected back to the reservoir m3 94,366 (1)

Volume and disposal method of formation water and water produced by LOTOS Geonafta in 2013

Unit

Volume

Formation water m3

246333 ()

In LOTOS Geonafta, all formation water produced in the oil extraction process is stored on the rig and then

transferred for disposal.
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Waste management

Management of waste generated by Grupa LOTOS is carried out in compliance with EU and national
regulations, ensuring maximum safety for the environment. As a result of the work performed during the
overhaul shutdown in 2013, noticeably more waste was produced, which, however, comprised mostly non-
hazardous waste.

Waste generated by Grupa LOTOS - quantity [tonnes/year]

Waste generated by Grupa LOTOS 2011 2012 2013
Waste stored at the end of the previous year 2244 2,195 1777 ()
Generated hazardous waste 7338 6,784 6478 (1)
Generated non-hazardous waste 5046 5574 6,659 (V)
Total generated waste 12,384 12,358 13,137 )
Volumes permitted by the integrated permit 89,627 89,627 89627 (1)
Waste generated by service providers N/A 4,154 3,170 ()

Our endeavours towards environmentally friendly waste management is evidenced by the fact thatin 2013
we managed to recycle all waste produced by the Grupa LOTOS refinery.

Waste management methods applied by Grupa LOTOS - quantity [tonnes/year]

Waste management method 2011. 2012 2013
Waste recycled 12428 12,749 13,504 ()
Waste treated or disposed of 4 28 0
Incineration 4 27 0
Landfilling 0 1 0
Waste stored on site at the end of the year 2,196 1,777 1410 (2
Hazardous 1977 1,503 1376 ()
Non-hazardous 219 274 34 (9

The only hazardous waste sent abroad by Grupa LOTOS are used catalytic converters. Foreign companies have
the appropriate technologies to manage such waste in an environmentally friendly way.

Type of hazardous waste generated by Grupa LOTOS

Type of waste Unit. 2011 2012 2013

Hazardous waste transported from extemnal sources (from outside the LOTOS Group) to the

00
refinery tonne 21 0 v

6,352
Hazardous waste transported from the refinery to external sites in Poland tonne 6,286 77258
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253

Hazardous waste transported from the refinery to external sites outside of Poland tonne 119 0
6,605

Total hazardous waste transported tonne 6426 7258
Percentage of waste transported across interational borders % 2 0 381

In 2013, there were two incidents involving hazardous substances at the Grupa LOTOS refinery ¢, but their
potential impact was limited to the immediate area and neither of them resulted in environmental pollution,
as confirmed by appropriate tests carried out under the inspection of the Pomeranian District Inspector for
Environmental Protection.

In 2013, the LOTOS Petrobaltic Group did not report any significant spills into the environment .

Drill cuttings (small pieces of rock fragmented by the advancing drill bit) are the main waste product of the
drilling process. Once carried to the surface, they are directed to the drilling mud treatment system. Drill
cuttings do not contain any of the substances listed in Annex 1 to the Helsinki Convention. Drill cuttings with
drilling mud from primary and secondary treatment are discharged to the seabed after being separated and
washed, whereas drill cuttings from tertiary treatment are carried ashore and transferred to a waste
management company. Every batch of disposed drill cuttings is tested for toxic content. Drilling mud, on the
other hand, is recycled so it can be reused in the drilling process. When drilling mud is not suitable for
recycling, it is also taken ashore and transferred to a waste management company.

Waste generated by LOTOS Petrobaltic — quantity [tonnes/year]

Generated waste 2013
Generated hazardous waste 38 (1)
Generated non-hazardous waste 644 ()
Total generated waste 682 (1)
Waste generated by LOTOS Geonafta — quantity [tonnes/year]
Generated waste 2013
Generated hazardous waste 22 (0
Generated non-hazardous waste 3966 (v
Total generated waste 3988 (v
Waste generated by Energobaltic — quantity [tonnes/year]
Generated waste 2013
Waste stored at the end of the previous year 007 ()
Generated hazardous waste 042 ()
Generated non-hazardous waste 0808 (v
130 ()

Total generated waste
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Waste management methods applied by LOTOS Petrobaltic — quantity [tonnes/year]

Waste management method 2013
Waste recycled 141
Landfilling 541
Waste stored on site at the end of the year: 0
hazardous 0
non-hazardous 0

Waste management methods applied by LOTOS Geonafta — quantity [tonnes/year]

Waste management method 2013
Waste treated or disposed of 3,988
Landfilling 0
Waste stored on site at the end of the year: 0
hazardous 0
non-hazardous 0

Waste management methods applied by Energobaltic - quantity [tonnes/year]

Waste management method 2013
Waste treated or disposed of 065
Waste recycled 040
Landfilling 025
Waste stored on site at the end of the year: 0.146
hazardous 0.101
non-hazardous 0045

All drilling mud and drill cuttings generated by LOTOS Petrobaltic are produced using water-based drilling
fluid. In the process of drilling, drill cuttings (small pieces of drilled rock, containing 5%-10% of drilling mud)
are separated from drilling mud. The quantity of drill cuttings differs depending on the drilling interval and its
diameter.

The chemical composition and environmental impact of drill cuttings depend on the type of drilling mud
being used. In order to completely eliminate the chemical activity of produced waste, the use of the simplest
type of drilling muds was designed for the process. The drilling muds were tested for their impact on the
marine environment (a study entitled ‘Determination of the potential impact of drilling mud on the marine
environment of the Baltic Sea’ prepared at the Gdansk University of Technology) and considered
environmentally non-toxic.

LOTOS Geonafta used only water-based drilling mud in its production operations. Most of its ingredients are
biodegradable. All technological water, drilling mud and drill cuttings are carried away for disposal.
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Waste generated in 2013 - Drill cuttings [tonne] (LOTOS Petrobaltic)

Drill cuttings Unit Total weight
transferred as waste tonne 94 ()
discharged to the sea tonne 1,054
Total tonne 1,148

Waste generated in 2013 [tonne] (LOTOS Petrobaltic)

Drilling mud Unit Total weight
in circulation tonne 1,141
transferred as waste tonne 340 ()
discharged to the sea tonne 144
Total tonne 1,625

Waste generated in 2013 [tonne] (LOTOS Geonafta)

Unit Total weight
Drill cuttings tonne 1601 (v
Drilling mud and technological water tonne 2322 ()
Total tonne 3,924 ()

In accordance with applicable regulations, the LOTOS Group companies have engaged recycling contractors
for recovery and recycling of packaging introduced to the domestic market.

At Grupa LOTOS, LOTOS Oil and LOTOS Paliwa, the aggregate recovery rates for packaging waste were in
line with the statutory requirements and in 2013 stood at 58.5% I for recovery and 50% @ for recycling.
Tar papers were a product sold by LOTOS Asfalt in packaging until mid-2013 Altogether, the recovery rate for
used packaging waste for this company was 58.5% @), with the recycling rate at 15.8%. @

Transport

Transport is another key area in which we seek to mitigate our environmental impact.

All bitumen and heavy fuel oil transport for the Polish market is coordinated by LOTOS Asfalt. In 2013, road
tankers carried nearly 510 thousand tonnes of products, covering more than 11.5 million kilometres and
consuming more than 3.5 million litres of fuel. To limit exhaust gas emissions, the company’s products are first
transported to distribution centres by rail, and only then dispatched to customers in road tankers. The
products are reloaded in modern handling terminals, where harmful vapour emissions are minimised.

Seeking to protect the environment, LOTOS Kolej, the company providing transport services i. a. to the LOTOS
Group's companies, keeps increasing the share of electric traction transport, gradually replacing diesel

locomotives. As at the end of 2013, the company used 91 locomotives, including 54 electric vehicles.

Due to traction issues, a portion of transport and shunting work is still carried out using diesel locomotives.
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Share of electric and diesel Diesel oil consumption by LOTOS Traction electricity consumption
traction in overall transport (%) Kolej diesel locomotives in 2011- by LOTOS Kolej electric
2013 (thousand litres) locomotives in 2011-2013 (MWh)
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Out of the total volume of fuels sold by LOTOS Paliwa in 2013, 7% was transported by rail and 26% by road
tankers, with the balance represented by fuels collected from storage depots by customers using their own
means of transport. In 2013, no fuel spills were reported in road or rail transport.

Mitigation of environmental impact

Refinery

The environmental impact of Grupa LOTOS products is unavoidable. Fuels provide energy which is released
through combustion, emitting exhaust gas. The efficiency of chemical energy conversion into usable forms of
energy (mechanical or thermal) depends on the design of the engine, rather than the fuel itself. Even so, we
take steps to make sure that our fuels do not have a significant environmental impact.

All Grupa LOTOS products meet the quality requirements prescribed by law, and in some environmentally
relevant respects they even exceed the legally required standards.

e Thesulphur contentin Grupa LOTOS gasolines and diesel oils is substantially below the legal
threshold. In 2013, the average annual sulphur content in motor gasolines and diesel oils was 3.3
ppm and 5.5 ppm, respectively, considerably beneath the required maximum of 10 ppm. This
results in substantially lower sulphur dioxide emissions.

e Thearomaticscontentin Grupa LOTOS fuelsis also considerably lower than that prescribed by
applicable laws. In the case of unleaded gasoline type 95, the average aromatics content in 2013
was 29.7%, less than the legal threshold of 35%. For diesel oils, the content of polycyclic aromatic
hydrocarbonsis limited to 8% of the fuel's weight. However, in 2013 the average PAH content in
our B7 diesel oil was only 0.8% in weight terms. Consequently, this oil produces less soot during
combustion, which translates into lower particulate emissions in exhaust fumes.
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Benzene, sulphur and lead content in Grupa LOTOS fuels

Substance j.m. 2012 - volume 2012 - volume (average) 2013 - volume 2013 - volume (average)
Benzene (in gasolines) % V/V 05-10 08 04-10 () 09 (v
Sulphur (in gasolines) mg/kg 10-99 39 01-79 () 33
Sulphur (in diesel 0il)  mg/kg 14-95 55 2.0-100 ) 55
Lead (in gasolines) mg/kg 0 0 0 0@

Detailed information regarding the properties and composition of fuel products are available for our
customers at www.lotos.pl/en, where descriptions of all our products along with their Safety Data Sheets are
published. On request, the Sheets are also available at LOTOS service stations.

Another long-used method of mitigating the environmental impact of fuels is the use of biocomponents,
which can be considered renewable energy sources, and therefore limit the impact of fuel combustion on the
environment.

Logistics is another area where the environmental impact of fuel products may be mitigated, by preventing
product losses into the environment. In 2013, we launched a new Vapour Recovery Unit (VRU) at the refinery
in Gdansk, to recover the vapours of gasoline. The new unit enables more efficient removal of gasoline
vapours from the air pushed out of rail tankers during loading, with three times the capacity of the old one
(3,000 m3/h). Thanks to the investment, the volume of hydrocarbons released into the atmosphere is
minimised, which reduces the environmental impact of logistics operations related to gasoline handling.

Bitumens

We take steps to eliminate hydrocarbon release related to the production, storage and transport of bitumens,
which produce olfactory nuisance, especially within the production plants. Completed projects which are part

of this strategy include in particular:

e Jasfo: construction of a thermal afterburner, air-tightening of tanks and connecting the air-tight
tanks and bitumen nozzles to the thermal afterburner;

e Gdansk: connection of all road and rail tank nozzles to a vapour extraction system, air-tightening
of tanks, connection enabling treatment of extracted vapours in thermal afterburners,
construction of an auxiliary unit for treatment of vapours collected from the nozzles with
activated charcoal.

Following completion of the project in 2013, the aerosanitary conditions in the area improved substantially.

Rail operations

In 2013, we completed an overhaul and modernisation of the advanced rail tanker cleaning facility, operated
by LOTOS Kolej in Gdansk. Apart from the main facility, the project involved the construction of a specially
designed track fitted with an additional station for removing LPG residues from tankers and feeding them to
flare stacks. The range of services was also extended to include shot blasting of internal tanker surfaces.

Qils

In 2013, the LOTOS Oil production branch in Czechowice-Dziedzice was working on solutions designed to
limit soil, surface water and groundwater contamination. As a result of this work, double bottoms were
installed in selected tanks.
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Fuels

In 2013, we continued to invest in mitigating the environmental impact of existing LOTOS service stations.
These activities included modernising the fuel facilities by installing gasoline vapour recovery units, adding
new equipment for measuring and monitoring petroleum product stocks, as well as detecting and signalling
any petroleum product leaks to surface water and groundwater, and replacing single-shell tanks with
double-shell units.

Production

One of the most important elements in mitigating the impact of production operations on the natural
environment consists in protecting the sea from possible pollution by extracted oil and accompanying
substances, and minimising the environmental damage should such an emergency occur. To remain prepared
for response to potential emergencies, every year we run obligatory drill exercises on tackling oil spills. In
2013, such training was carried out in the Gdansk Bay, with the participation of Maritime Search and Rescue
services and the Maritime Office in Gdynia. At the same time, LOTOS Petrobaltic updated its Oil Spill Response
Plan for spills resulting from exploration and production work conducted within its licence areas, which is part
of the National Plan to Combat Pollution of the Marine Environment.

One of the most important activities to ensure a clean environment and mitigate adverse impacts is
environmental monitoring, which is the study of the environment before, during and after operations. This
relates chiefly to seawater and bottom sediment testing. Another important aspect of the process is the
management of waste generated on the rigs, based on the ‘zero discharge’ policy, covering both post-
consumer and production waste.

Chemicals used in the drilling process circulate within a closed system, not entering in any contact with the
environment. In order to ensure that the arrangements set out in the Baltic Sea Action Plan are followed, in
2013 LOTOS Petrobaltic equipped the production rig with an installation for pumping oily formation waters.

Biodiversity

Marine environment

As at the end of 2013, LOTOS Petrobaltic held eight crude oil and natural gas exploration and production
licences in Polish marine areas. Previously, only one of them, SAMBIA W, bordered on conservation areas of
the Baltic Sea coast, protected under the EU Birds Directive. Currently, the newly acquired licences Stupsk W
and Stupsk E border on the Stupsk Shoal (tawica Stupska), which is a marine site of the NATURA 2000
network as defined by the Birds and Habitats Directives.

One of the most important elements in mitigating the impact of production operations on the natural
environment consists in protecting the sea from possible pollution by extracted oil and substances
accompanying the drilling process, and minimising the environmental damage should such an emergency
occur.

Surveys have shown seabed degradation over vast stretches of the central Baltic Sea, caused primarily by
accumulations of undegradable organic matter, as well as reduced oxygen content at depths of more than 60
metres. An animal that can be found in this area, although irregularly and very rarely, is the harbour porpoise.
In 2013, we took samples for the purpose of biodiversity testing together with bottom sediment samples.
The samples, however, contained too little fauna and flora material to perform biodiversity tests.

Our activities in the Baltic Sea consist in exploration for and production of crude oil from the seabed.
Exploration work can be divided into two stages:
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1. Seismic surveys, which show where hydrocarbons can be found;
2. Testdrilling to make a preliminary estimate of the size of a reservoir and its resources, which helps
evaluate the economic viability of future production.

Seismic surveys involve generating acoustic waves, which affect the sea fauna. An environmental decision
issued by the Regional Directorate for Environmental Protection is required to commence such work. An
opinion from the Director of the relevant Maritime Office is also needed. The environmental decision
specifies the requirements which must be met in conducting the planned work. In this respect, LOTOS
Petrobaltic strictly complies with all the procedures and requirements laid down in the applicable laws and
regulations. The Soft Entrance procedures are applied in seismic work, under which the intensity of a seismic
source is gradually ramped up so as to allow the fish and porpoises inhabiting the area to leave the affected
region.

Although the oil deposits beneath the Baltic Sea floor are low-pressure reservoirs, the risk of an eruption
during appraisal work and test drilling must be taken into account. Therefore, the procedures to be followed
during such operations are very detailed, and provide for all safety measures following from best practice
and best technology solutions to reduce, insofar as practically possible, the risk of an eruption. An oil spill
would have negative consequences, especially for the bird populations. However, considering that crude oil
produced from the Baltic Sea is light oil and 30% of its volatile fractions would evaporate within the first few
hours of a spill, and that HELCOM recommends mechanical collection of oil contamination from the sea
surface while restricting the use of dispersants causing the clumping and sinking of oil particulates, the
impact of a spill on the environment would be minimised.

The main output of the production process is formation fluid, which is separated on the drilling rig into crude
oil, natural gas and formation water, the latter being injected back into the reservoir to an appropriate depth
in order to maintain the reservoir pressure. Natural gas is transported to LOTOS Energobaltic, where it is used
to generate electricity. Such measures also help protect the air, in line with the requirements of Annex VI to
MARPOL Convention 73/78 and the Baltic Sea Action Plan.

The licence areas where LOTOS Petrobaltic may explore for and produce crude oil and natural gas are located
outside the so-called Baltic Sea Protected Areas. As a result, the exploration and production operations

conducted within the licence areas pose a negligible threat to protected areas and the maritime
environment. The Baltic Sea Protected Areas are given priority when it comes to tackling oil spills in sea

waters, with the key objective to prevent any contamination from entering those areas.

Onshore areas controlled by LOTOS Geonafta are located approximately 700 metres from NATURA 2000 sites.
The company manages surface water runoff in a comprehensive way, by using, among other measures, an
appropriate system of drainage canals. The level of air and groundwater pollution is also monitored. All
projects are preceded by environmental impact reports, with data for the purpose of environmental impact
assessment provided by continuous monitoring. Periodic analyses have not shown any impact of the
exploration and production operations on the biodiversity of the neighbouring conservation areas.

Refinery’s surroundings

We are consistent in making biodiversity protection a priority for our planned and ongoing investment
projects. In order to obtain an environmental decision, an environmental impact assessment must be
performed for every major project which may have a significant effect on the environment. As part of this
process, a comprehensive environmental impact assessment report is prepared, containing an obligatory
description of the project’s effect on biodiversity. In our effort to uphold the principles of corporate social
responsibility, Grupa LOTOS goes above and beyond the statutory requirements, thoroughly covering
biodiversity issues in such reports.
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Our commitment to mitigating the adverse impact of our operations on the local fauna and flora is also
evidenced by the fact that one of our key environmental objectives for 2014 is to perform a large-area
inventory of elements comprising the environment within and surrounding our refinery in Gdansk. We
intend to use the inventory data as a basis for future initiatives to help us manage the biodiversity risks in the
refinery’s vicinity.

In 2013, our standing with respect to the protection of species included in any category of the [IUCN Red List
of endangered species did not change relative to previous years. {link to the 2012 Report} So far, the only
protected animal species identified as living in the vicinity of our refinery have been peregrine falcon and
kestrel.

In 2013, a pair of peregrine falcons built a nest on the platform attached to the stack of the refinery’s CHP
plant. The birds are under strict protection in Poland, with only ca. 70 nesting pairs left in the country.

We have also been recording an increasing number of kestrels nesting within the refinery’s premises. In 2013,
two such nests were found on refining units — the first one was located on one of the flares, while the second
one was situated on the bearing of the flue gas duct in the oils refining furnace. The second nest is
particularly worth mentioning, because the area around the duct was to be modernised in connection with
the replacement of the unit’s furnace, as announced the year before. However, to allow the protected birds to
raise their young until they were ready to leave the nest, we rescheduled the work by nearly a month.

Service station areas

In 2013, the LOTOS service station chain was expanded to include 34 locations operating under the CODO
model. 12 of them are newly built stations, with state-of-the-art facilities ensuring environmentally safe
operation. In accordance with the applicable regulations, each service station was assessed for
environmental impact at the design phase to determine its potential impact on the neighbouring areas, in
particular protected sites and areas of high biodiversity value. All the stations were approved for operation
and have no impact on protected areas.

The other 22 service stations were acquired on the market from private owners and made compliant with
LOTOS standards not only in terms of visual identity and service quality, but also in technological terms.

All the locations selected to be included in the LOTOS service station chain were inspected, with special
attention paid to technological solutions and environmental protection documentation. We also reviewed
their location in relation to protected areas and any other areas of biodiversity, and performed a risk analysis
of the possible impact of each station on the environment. Based on the reviewed documentation and site
visits, it was concluded that the service stations newly included in the LOTOS chain were mostly located
within towns and cities, away from protected areas.

As at the end of 2013, the chain comprised 256 service stations owned by LOTOS Paliwa. To
mitigate the risk of uncontrolled environmental impact, we undertook to monitor each
station’s environmental impact beyond the scope of mandatory measures. In line with the
CSR strategy for 2012-2015, we reviewed the archived documentation of all service stations.
In 2012, the review was carried out for 30% of them, with the remaining 70% covered in
2013.
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In some cases, additional assessments were commissioned to review their impact on the local environment
and protected areas. These efforts will be spread over two years, with subcontractors (experts with relevant
expertise and experience in assessing fuel sector facilities) to be engaged in the first year. We expect that
reports produced as part of this initiative, covering ca. 50 service stations, will provide us with detailed
information about the facilities’ location with respect to protected areas, and identify potential hazards for
the protected areas arising from their operations.

In 2013, no revitalisation work was carried out on areas managed by LOTOS Paliwa.

Land owned by the LOTOS Group is discussed in more detail in the 2012 Report . {link}

Capital expenditure on environmental protection

A substantial decrease in charges for economic use of the natural environment proves that the changes we
introduce materially reduce the environmental impact of entities operating as part of the LOTOS Group.

Costs and expenditure (PLN ‘000)

Item 2011 2012 2013
Grupa LOTOS

Costs

Environmentalmanagementcosts 2,685 3,143 2,137 (4
Environmentalprotection spending 20011 23,555% 22336 (1)
Financing of pro-environmentalactivitiesof externalinstitutions 285 525 509 )
Expenditure

Pro-environmentalinvestment 12,116 67,606 63,012 ()
Expenditureon property,plantand equipment** 114,733 141913 202,314 ()
LOTOS Group

Costs

Environmentalmanagementcosts 25450 4,729 4,695 (V)
Environmentalprotection spending 34564 26716 28336 (1)
Financing of pro-environmentala ctivitiesof externalinstitutions 295 547 509 (v
Environmentalinsurance*** 104 105 194 ()
Expenditure

Pro-environmentalinvestment 34,709 75515 66,348 (/)
Expenditureon property,plantand equipment** 805265 814,264 1130446 ()

*1n 2013, there was a change in our approach to calculating our expenditures on environmental protection, which were extended to include
also such costs as were associated with ensuring the proper functioning of the sewage system on the premises of refinery in Gdansk, etc.
Therefore, for the sake of comparability, we have also updated the figures representing our expenditures on environmental protection for
2012 accordingly.

**1n 2012 the approach was changed, with property, plant and equipment presented in accordance with the financial statements.

*** Environmental insurance premiums are paid at the LOTOS Group level.
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Expenditure [PLN ‘000]

Item 2011 2012 2013
Grupa LOTOS

Airemissions 4268 2980 1256 (v
Waterwithdrawal 144 140 162 ()
Wastewaterdischarge 313 298 316 (1)
Wastelandfiling 0 0 0w
Total 4,725 3,418 1,734 V)
LOTOS Group

Airemissions 4805 3218 1651 ()
Waterwithdrawal 210 173 240 ()
Wastewaterdischarge 487 388 511 ()
Wastelandfiling 0 0 0
Total 5,502 3,779 2,402 7

Challenges in strategy implementation until
2015

The investment projects completed in 2013 (upgrading one boiler of the CHP plant by converting it into a
gas-fired unit, replacing old process furnaces with new and more energy efficient ones at two units, a flare
gas redirection system) are fully consistent with our efforts to meet the key objective of the LOTOS Group’s
CSR strategy in the Management of natural resources in the production process area, which is to reduce the
environmental risk and seek to continually minimise the environmental impact of the LOTOS Group’s
operations.

Actions mitigating the LOTOS Group's negative impact will be continued. In 2014, the fourth, and last, boiler
of the Grupa LOTOS CHP plant is to be converted to a gas-fired unit. The completion of this task will allow us
to fully meet the stringent emission standards regarding large gas combustion units (power plants/CHP
plants), which are to come into force as of January 1st 2016.
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Development prospects until 2020

Further reduction of the LOTOS Group's negative environmental impact will be possible thanks to the
implementation of two more environmental objectives set for the coming years, which are:

e Toimprove the energy efficiency of the steam heating system of pipelines connecting units;

e To decrease the primary energy consum ption of the Grupa LOTOS refinery through modernising

further process furnaces.

These actions contribute to further improvement of the energy efficiency, and thus are in line with the
objective of mitigating our negative impact on the natural environment.
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Relationship capital
 a 9 X

Relationship capital of Grupa LOTOS

Well-established sales channels and distribution system ensuring customer satisfaction;

Solid market position;

Reputation of a reliable supplier of prime quality products;

High level of customer service;

Well-earned trust and commitment, which support our relationships with customers, suppliers and
business partners;

e Sustainable supply chain.

Our objectives in the management of relationship capital:

e Maximise financial performance by optimally leveraging our resources and market opportunities,
leading to enhancement of shareholder value.

e Build lasting customer relationships through a focus on understanding customers’ needs and
delivering the expected product quality and safety.

Key activities:

Consolidate our reputation of a reliable product supplier.

Improve customer satisfaction by enhancing our service and sale processes to meet customer
expectations, introducing a uniform group-wide complaint handling procedure, designing the
implementation of a recording system and system for active management of customer
relationships, developing the chain of LOTOS Optima economy service stations, and other
initiatives.

Optimally manage the supply chain (planning, procurement, production and distribution).
Continue the policy of diversifying directions and sources of crude oil supplies.

Results:
Steady improvement in Export of LOTOS-branded Strong growth of the chain
customer satisfaction levels products to 75 countries of economy service stations
around the world
Promotion of the best Leadershipin key product categories

commercial practices
among the supply chain
actors
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Statement by Pawet Maslakiewicz

Sales Director, Grupa LOTOS, CSR Strategy Leader in the Market Partnership to Build Lasting Customer Relationships area

, ’ Grupa LOTOS ranks among
Poland’s major industrial
producers. Every day, we
process thousands of tonnes
of crude oil and deliver
thousands of tonnes of oil
products to the market.
Mobility is the good we offer.
Since it would be impossible
for us to reach our customers
directly, it is key that we build
lasting relationships with
business partners, whose
distribution networks help
channel our products to end
users. We have the pleasure of
working with the industry’s
leaders as well as - what is
equally important - a number
of smaller players, who
guarantee stable supplies of
LOTOS products to the
market.

Pawet Maslakiewicz

Sales Director, Grupa LOTOS, CSR Strategy
Leader in the Market Partnership to Build
Lasting Customer

Grupa LOTOS ranks among Poland’s major industrial producers.
Every day, we process thousands of tonnes of crude oil and
deliver thousands of tonnes of oil products to the market.
Mobility is the good we offer. Since it would be impossible for
us to reach our customers directly, it is key that we build lasting
relationships with business partners, whose distribution
networks help channel our products to end users. We have the
pleasure of working with the industry’s leaders as well as - what
is equally important - a number of smaller players, who
guarantee stable supplies of LOTOS products to the market.

In our effort to build lasting relationships with customers, it is key that we create
and strengthen our image of a reliable, responsible supplier, who seeks to
identify and satisfy market needs, while proposing innovative solutions that set
positive standards for the entire industry. It is important that we demonstrate our
maturity in the approach to commercial matters, but also to our role as one of the
market’s major players.

In 2013, at an annual meeting with our key partners, we unveiled the LOTOS
Group's CSR strategy and showcased the achievements reinforcing our image of
a responsible business partner. | am pleased to say that the presentation was very
warmly received. We showed how, by combining our business capabilities with
innovative ideas from other spheres of life, we can generate a whole new quality.
Our activities for the support of culture, sport and the environment make us a
partner of choice for our customers.

Last year, we also had the pleasure of presenting the LOTOS Group's Code of
Ethics, which provides a systematic framework for our corporate values. This
landmark event, clearly communicated to hundreds of our business partners, has
allowed us to establish a transparent platform of cooperation, providing a crucial
tool for building our relationships with the market environment.

Another thing worth noting is the role we play in supporting the government in
the law-making process concerning the energy sector. We take an active part in
consultations over proposed amendments to the Mandatory Stocks Act and the
Energy Law, and have whole-heartedly supported the introduction of legal
measures aimed to eradicate criminal practices from our industry.

Thanks to our initiatives, the LOTOS brand has come to be associated not only
with premier quality oil products, but also with safety, environmental-mindedness
and responsibility for the market on which we operate.
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Marketing segment

Our marketing business is conducted domestically (sales to foreign companies) and through export sales, by
sea and by land. In 2013, the LOTOS Group's activities involving production and sales to the fuel, lube and
bitumen industries were carried out through:

® Grupa LOTOSand
® subsidiaries: LOTOS Paliwa, LOTOS Oil, LOTOS Asfalt and LOTOS-Air BP Polska.

We also provided logistics services through Grupa LOTOS (management of storage capacities) and LOTOS
Kolej (primary logistics).

In the area of aviation fuel, November 2013 saw the closing of a joint-venture transaction with BP Europe SE,
concerning sale of a 50% equity interest in LOTOS Tank, which led to the establishment of LOTOS-Air BP
Polska.

Achievements

Our 2013 performance relative to strategic objectives for the marketing segment was in line with plans.

The LOTOS Group secured a 33.4% share in the domestic fuel market, 3.4 pp above the target setin the
business strategy for 2015. The market share fell by 0,9 pp on 2012, due to increased activity of the grey
market, whose volume in 2013 was estimated at around 1.6 million tonnes.

The LOTOS Group's share in the Polish retail fuel market reached 8.5% - which means we are on track to
meet our strategic target for 2015. In 2013, our share of the retail market rose by 0.5 pp on 2012. The
achievement of our strategic target, to gain a 10% share in the domestic retail fuel market by 2015, will be
supported by sustainable development of the service station chain both in the premium and economy
segments, and by increasing sales through the existing chain.

The target of generating sales in excess of our fuel production capacities, forecast for the end of 2013,
was achieved at 8.7% - which puts us well on track to meet the 15% target by 2015.

In 2013, the volume of products sold by the LOTOS Group ran to 9.3 million tonnes, 8.1% down year on year.
The greatest decline was seen in domestic sales of diesel oil, as the increased activity of the grey market took
away some of the demand for the fuel, which was further sapped by the economic slowdown. A decline in
export sales was due mainly to the overhaul shutdown of our refinery in the first half of the year, and ongoing
efforts to optimise the sales mix in response to different refining margins spreads.
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LOTOS Group'’s share in the domestic market of liquid LOTOS Group's sales [tonnes]
fuels (%)
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2010 2011 2012 2013

Il Domestic sales [l Export sales

Source: In-house analysis of Polish Organization of Oil Industry and Source: The LOTOS Group in-house data.
Trade (POPiHN) data.
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Value chain - logistics and sales

Sales of motor fuels

The volume of the LOTOS Group's gasoline sales amounted to 1.5 million tonnes, up by 0.4% over the year
before. Relative to 2012, there was a shift in the structure of gasoline sales — in view of the economic
downturn and falling demand for gasoline seen in recent years on the Polish market, the product was sold on
the receptive export markets of the Netherlands, Sweden and the UK.

In 2013, a 6% decline in demand for diesel oil led to a 4.8% decrease in total sales of that fuel by the LOTOS
Group. A drop in domestic sales was largely compensated by exports, which grew 25% year on year, with
Germany, the UK, the Netherlands, France, Denmark and the Czech Republic accounting for the bulk of
foreign sales.

Source: The LOTOS Group in-house data. Sales of diesel oil [tonnes]
2010 2011 2012 2013 2010 2011 2012 2013
Il Domestic sales [ Export sales Il Domestic sales [l Export sales
Source: The LOTOS Group in-house data. Source: The LOTOS Group in-house data.

Sales of aviation fuel

In 2013, the LOTOS Group recorded a 17% drop in sales of aviation fuel, while still remaining the main Polish
exporter of that fuel. Intra-Community sales accounted for the majority of exports, with the main customers
located in Sweden, the Czech Republic, Finland, Denmark and Switzerland. Domestic sales were conducted
via two channels: into plane and wholesale. As part of the into plane fuelling service, fuel was delivered to
airline customers operating on the Polish airports in Gdansk, Warsaw and Krakéow. In the wholesale channel,
sales were mainly to the aviation industry.
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Sales of aviation fuel [tonnes]

Ji

2010 2011 2012 2013

Il Domestic sales Il Export sales

Source: The LOTOS Group in-house data.

Sales of LPG

In 2013, for another year running, Grupa LOTOS recorded an increase in LPG sales both in Poland and on
foreign markets. The increase was linked to the introduction of natural gas as a production feedstock, which
had taken place a year earlier. The Polish LPG market is characterised by a huge deficit, with almost 90% of
total demand being satisfied by imports, and thus our additional LPG output was channelled to the Polish

market. The key export markets for the product included Germany and Serbia.

Sales of LPG [tonnes]

ull

2010 2011 2012 2013

Il Domestic sales [l Export sales

Source: The LOTOS Group in-house data.



‘()loros Integrated Annual Report 2013 - Grupa LOTOS S.A Win the Future

The impact of our fuels on human health and safety is assessed at the production stage. For each type of fuel,
a Safety Data Sheet (SDS) for hazardous substances is prepared, including information on all potential
hazards associated with the use of the fuel and required precautions. An SDS is delivered directly to each
wholesale customer and is available to retail customers at the LOTOS service stations.

Given the fact that we use road or railway transport to supply fuels to customers, internal procedures have
been developed to ensure safety and limit the adverse effect of fuels in transit on human health. Railway
transport is handled and supervised in terms of safety and health protection by LOTOS Kolej, whereas road
transport is fully outsourced to third parties. Nevertheless, we still oversee the safety of this stage of
distribution, by providing tank truck drivers with procedures on how to handle their cargoes and the hazard
class of the fuels they carry.

As part of our supervision of road transport in terms of safety and health protection, we undertake regular
field inspections. The monitoring covers:

Loading operations at depots,

Safe passage of tank trucks over monitored routes, including correct cargo marking as required by
applicableregulations,

Safety of unloading sites,

Unloading in line with the established procedure and conformity with the procedure,

Procedure in case of spills, failures.

Sales of lube products

In 2013, the LOTOS Group sold 254 thousand tonnes of lube products. The principal distribution channels on
the Polish market included wholesale and direct sales. The main foreign markets for our lubricating oils were
EU countries, as well as countries in Central and Middle Asia, the Middle East, and Africa. In 2013, newly
acquired customers for LOTOS Oil products included partners from China, France, the Netherlands, Iran,
Tunisia, Turkey and UAE.

In 2013, LOTOS-branded oil products were sold in 59 countries.

Sales of lube products [tonnes]

I

2010 2011 2012 2013

Il Domestic sales [l Export sales
Source: The LOTOS Group in-house data.
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All products manufactured by LOTOS Qil are appropriately labelled with information about their potential
health impacts and environmental hazards.

Extent of the product and service information required by LOTOS Oil’s internal procedures:

Source of the product or
service components

Content, particularly
substances that might have
an environmental or social
impact

Safe use of the product or
service

Disposal of the product and
its environmental/social
impact

Product policy

Thanksto theprovision of registration numbersforhazardoussubstances,itispossibleto access
information on each product'shealth impactsand environmentalhazards,such ascarcinogenic
effects, fertility im pa ct,bioaccumulations,etc.Information on thecommercialsourceofa product,ie.its
supplier,isnotprovided.

Guidelineson howto safely useand handlehazardoussubstancesarealso included in the Safety Data
Sheets.In addition,labelson packaged productsinclude pictogramsproviding information aboutthe
risksposed by theproduct.Safety Data Sheetsareavailableon LOTOS Oil'swebsite.

Lubricating oilsaresubjectto the Acton Obligationsof Entrepreneursin Respectof Managementof
Certain Wasteand ProductCharges,dated May 11th 2001and secondary regulations,and thusare
collected and transferred fordisposalin quantitiesrequired by the Act.

In linewith LOTOS Oil'sproductpolicy, productsmarketed by thecompany exceed thestatutory
requirementswith respectto environmentand health protection.The QUANTILUS T50and QUANTILUS
60plasticisers,placed on themarketoverthelastthreeyears, mayserveasa casein point,sincethey meet
allrequirementsrelated to mutagenicity leveland contentofcarcinogenicagents,asconfirmed by
independentlaboratories. Anotherexampleistheupgrading of motoroillinesin accordancewith the
ACEA specifications,requiring such products’ conformity with the exha ust a fter trea tment systemsin
passengercarsand trucks. Approximately22% ofthecompany’soilproductsbearspeciallabeling.

Life cycle stages at which the impact of LOTOS Qil’s products on health and safety is assessed

Certification

L N Y NI N U W U N

Use and service

Concept of product development

Research and development
Manufacturing and production
Marketing and promotion

Stocks distribution and supply

Disposal, reuse or recycling

In 2013, LOTOS Oil recorded no incidents of non-compliance with applicable regulations, rules and codes
concerning health and safety impacts of the company’s products and services. Similarly, there were no
incidents of non-compliance with the regulations and voluntarily applied procedures concerning the
marking and provision of information on products and services. No sanctions were imposed on LOTOS Oil
resulting from its non-compliance with the applicable laws or regulations pertaining to the provision and use
of the company’s services and products.

-180 -



‘(’ LOTOS Integrated Annual Report 2013 - Grupa LOTOS S.A Win the Future

Sales of heavy fuel ol

2013 saw a 1% overall increase in sales of heavy fuel oil, which — next to diesel oil and gasoline - is a key
product sold by the LOTOS Group. The increase came on the back of a 6% growth in exports, mainly to
international trading companies. In Poland, the product was sold primarily to power sector companies.

Sales of heavy fuel oil [tonnes]

1111

2010 2011 2012 2013

Il Domestic sales [l Export sales

Source: The LOTOS Group in-house data.

Sales of heating diesel oil

Aslide in domestic demand for light fuel oil in favour of alternative heating fuels, caused our 2013 sales of the
product to shrink 13% year on year, to 293 thousand tonnes.

Sales of heating diesel oil [tonnes]

911°88¢

2010 2011 2012 2013

Source: The LOTOS Group in-house data.
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Sales of bitumens

In 2013, there was a 19% year-on-year drop in total bitumen sales, attributable to weaker financial
performance of construction companies, as well as the economic crisis prevailing across the EU with a
resulting decline in infrastructure investment. Similarly to previous years, road bitumen had the largest share
in total bitumen sales (around 80%). The remaining volume of bitumens sold by the LOTOS Group included
modified and industrial bitumens. Only road (90%) and modified (10%) bitumens were exported, chiefly to
European countries, including Sweden, the UK, Germany, Switzerland, Lithuania, Romania and the Czech
Republic. Record sales were recorded in Germany, and in Romania LOTOS Asfalt established its first foreign
terminal, which will strengthen its foothold in the market thanks to markedly improved logistics and
measurable economic benefits.

Sales of bitumens [tonnes]

LELL

2010 2011 2012 2013

Il Domestic sales Ml Export sales

Source: The LOTOS Group in-house data.

LOTOS Asfalt manufactures construction materials which include such product categories as paving grade
bitumens, modified bitumens, bituminous emulsions and waterproofing materials (until June 2013). The
manufacturer is required to provide full product information for each product classified into a given category.
Mandatory provision of product-related information is required for over 98% of the total volume of products
sold by LOTOS Asfalt.

In addition, although petroleum bitumens are not listed among hazardous substances, bitumen products
manufactured by LOTOS Asfalt are sold with the Information Sheet for substances or admixtures for which a
Safety Data Sheet (SDS) is not required. It contains information on the product ingredients and up-to-date
recommendations on its safe handling.
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Extent of the product and service information required by LOTOS Asfalt’s internal procedures:

" Source of the product or service components
" Content, particularly substances that might have an environmental or social impact
" Safeuse of the product or service

+ Disposal of the product and its environmental/social impact

At LOTOS Asfalt, health impact and safety assessments are performed virtually throughout a product’s life
cycle. If the assessments identify any issue, steps are taken to fully eliminate or at least minimise potential
hazards to the natural environment and human safety.

Paving grade bitumens, which account for more than 95% of the company’s production volume, are subject
to conformity assessment, whose outcome is a warranty for the consumer that the product has appropriate
functional properties and meets the relevant requirements for construction products. Declarations of
Performance (DoP) have been drawn up for LOTOS Asfalt products.

To ensure the safe use of the products — safety enhancement measures have also been extended to their
transport and distribution. There are written manuals and videos on how to safely handle bitumens during
loading, unloading and transport. The providers of transport services are also assessed for compliance with
LOTOS Asfalt’s safety standards.

Life cycle stages at which the impact of LOTOS Asfalt's products on health and safety is assessed

Concept of product development
Research and development
Certification

Manufacturing and production
Marketing and prom otion

Stocks distribution and supply

AN N U U U W N

Use and service

In 2013, LOTOS Asfalt recorded no incidents of non-compliance with the applicable regulations concerning
product health impacts, markings or provision of information on products and services. No significant
penalties for non-compliance with laws or regulations concerning the provision and use of products and
services were imposed on the company, either.

Logistics

Logistics is consistently adapted to the requirements of our trading operations, while we keep building an
efficient distribution system that meets the expectations of customers, but also helps reduce costs. The
purpose of these measures is to build a logistics chain that would function optimally in the constantly
changing external and internal environments.
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Fuel depot

To ensure that our logistics assets operate more efficiently, in 2013 we began to consolidate fuel depots
within the LOTOS Group. The first stage of the process consisted in reorganising companies in the south of
Poland, changing their business profiles and, consequently, changing their names to LOTOS Terminale and
LOTOS Infrastruktura. The next stage culminated in the transfer of ownership of the Rypin and Piotrkéw
Trybunalski fuel depots to LOTOS Terminale. Also, construction work on comprehensive upgrading of the
Grupa LOTOS fuel depot in Pozna_ was begun. The consolidation process is expected to be completed in
2014.

In 2013, work continued on fully automating and centralising road tanker filling operations at our own
depots. A self-service road tanker filling unit was commissioned at the terminal in Gda_sk, and we plan to
gradually roll out similar systems at other locations throughout 2014. The introduction of homogeneous
solutions will help us achieve work standardisation and implement uniform interfaces for the exchange of
data and reporting of processes related to release of products at the LOTOS Group's fuel depots.

In the area of secondary logistics, we launched supplies of the JET A-1 aviation fuel for the Warsaw airport.
Motor fuel deliveries to hypermarket service station operators were also begun.

Preparations continued for the construction of a petroleum product handling terminal on the Martwa Wis_a
river in Gda_sk. When completed, the terminal will handle exports and imports of feedstock components and
product loads of up to 5,000 tonnes from our own wharf.

Rail transport

Rail transport of products from the Grupa LOTOS refinery in Gdansk is a mainstay of our production security.
Comprehensive services in the area of rail logistics are provided by LOTOS Kolej, which ensures economically
viable, efficient and safe rail freight throughout Poland, and - relying on its well-established forwarding
capabilities — can also arrange rail transport across the EU. LOTOS Kolej's services involve:

Management and operation of railroad sidings;

Rail freight;

Maintenance of railway infrastructure and rolling stock;
Eco-friendly cleaning of rail tank cars.
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LOTOS Kolej leads the industry in use of advanced technology solutions, deploying and refining a number of
IT systems designed to optimise the logistics processes. All loading and unloading operations are controlled
by the Rail Logistics System, which ensures that rail transport is efficiently managed. Trains are monitored in
real time in conjunction with the Operational Work Recording System of PKP Polskie Linie Kolejowe.

All LOTOS Kolej's locomotives are fitted with mobile IT systems allowing to transmit
operational data and train documents from any place within the PKP network, which is a
pioneer solution in Poland. The applied solutions are highly appreciated by customers, as
they give them real-time access to reliable information on service status.

Thanks to cutting-edge technologies combined with innovative rail logistics, the company is able to offer
both full-train and single-car freight services, which positions it strongly against competition.

LOTOS Kolej is among the market leaders in terms of using the most modern locomotive fleets in Poland,
which increases the efficiency of its transport services, guaranteeing their high quality.

As at the end of 2013, modern locomotives represented 28% of the company’s rolling stock,

securing it a firm position among rail operators with the most advanced locomotive fleets in
Poland.

As a result of its continuous development, LOTOS Kolej has the potential to fully satisfy the transportation
needs of LOTOS Group companies and, increasingly, to render transport services to third-party customers.

Volume of freight transported [million tonnes]

10.5 10.5

2011 2012 2013

Il Dangerous goods
-@- Total volume of freight

In 2013, LOTOS Kolej transported a total of over 9.4m tonnes, including cargoes of over 4.3m tonnes hauled
for third-party customers.
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LOTOS Kolej ranks among Poland'’s leading rail carriers, whose share in the domestic market of 7.76%,
measured in terms of rail freight volumes, makes it the number two player on the market.

Increase in the volume of rail freight hauled by LOTOS Kolej over a decade [thousand tonnes]

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

-- LOTOS Group  -e-Other

Source: The LOTOS Group in-house data.

LOTOS Kolej's share in the domestic freight market in
2013 (%)

Il PKP Cargo M Grupa CTL
M Crupa DB Schenker LOTOS Kolej
Other

Source: In-house analysis of the LOTOS Group based on data from
the Railway Transport Authority (Urzad Transportu Kolejowego).
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As a rail carrier, LOTOS Kolej has a specialist focus on transport of dangerous goods'"). Consignors of
dangerous goods are required to place relevant information plates on each side of the rail cars carrying such
goods, specifying the good'’s identification number (UN number) and hazard identifier, as well as warning
labels for a given good. This obligation also applies to empty, uncleaned rail cars and containers in which
hazardous substances had been carried, as well as rail cars carrying hazardous waste.

(1) Dangerous goods are products and materials which — given their physical, chemical or biological properties — pose a potential safety threat if
not properly handled during transport, or, in cases of failure or accidents, may cause a risk to human health or life, the natural environment or

property.

In 2013 — as in previous years — LOTOS Kolej recorded no incidents of incorrect or defective marking of
consignments of dangerous goods, or any penalties imposed on it for non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations pertaining to the marking of such consignments.

Extent of the product and service information required by LOTOS Kolej's internal procedures:

« Source of the product or service components
" Content, particularly substances that might have an environmental or social impact
" Safe use of the product or service

« Disposal of the product and its environmental/social impact

Life cycle stages at which the impact of LOTOS Kolej's products on health and safety is improved

{

Concept of product development
" Certification

Manufacturing and production
Marketing and promotion

Stocks distribution and supply

Use and service

LA s

Disposal, reuse or recycling.

In 2013, there were 17 accidents involving LOTOS Kolej's staff and rolling stock (against 13 a year earlier) and
one incident (against 5in 2012).2) Asin 2012, one accident occurred by fault of the company’s employee. The
downward trend in those statistics confirms the effectiveness of our steady efforts to improve the safety and
quality of services provided.

(2) According to the classification provided for in the Regulation of the Minister of Transport, dated April 30th 2007
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Sea transport

Freight transport by sea is a vital element of the LOTOS Group's logistics chain. Having direct access to the
product pipelines linking the refinery in Gdansk to the liquid fuel handling facilities at Port Pétnocny, we
enjoy the considerable advantage of lower transportation costs. It is through maritime transport that we
export the majority of petroleum products, and are supplied with a significant portion of raw materials and
components for production.

2013 was a record year for Grupa LOTOS both in terms of the volume of cargo handled at
sea ports and the number of tanker ships handled, which for the first time in the Company's
history exceeded 300.

The liquid fuel handling terminal owned by Naftoport is able to handle tankers with a maximum draught of
15 metres and a capacity to load up to 150,000 tonnes of crude oil or petroleum products. This allows Grupa
LOTOS to export surplus products and sell them on the markets of Scandinavia, Northern and Western Europe
and the Baltics. The direct connection to the port also facilitates imports of additional feedstock, including
intermediate products for further deep processing at the refinery in Gdansk, as well as fuel components. The
coastal location allows us to respond quickly and flexibly to changing market conditions. Apart from the
Naftoport fuel depot, we also use the Maritime Bulk Terminal in Gdynia and the Siarkopol terminal in Gdarisk
to handle smaller cargoes.

Grupa LOTOS enjoys the advantage of having a refinery at a short distance from a cargo
handling terminal, which allows it to diversify its supply sources and facilitates the shipping
of crude oil from the Company’s own fields under the Baltic Sea and in Lithuania, and —in
the future — crude oil produced from under the North Sea.

We are consistent in our efforts to take over the management of cargo transportation by sea, or to control the
transportation process on the longest possible section of the supply chain, from the affreightment of ships to
the formal handling of sea transport. This ensures greater control and helps streamline the planning of cargo
handling at sea ports, thus allowing us to reduce the frequency of ship detention and optimise the related
costs.

Petroleum product exports

In 2013, Grupa LOTOS exported 2,806 thousand tonnes of petroleum products, with a total
value of PLN 7,445m.

Export revenue fell 5.1% year on year, chiefly on the back of lower refining margins in Europe. Despite the
overhaul shutdown at the refinery in Gdansk in 2013, the volume of exports went up 2.6%.
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Grupa LOTOS petroleum products were exported mainly to Northern and Western Europe.

Naphtha > integrated oiland petrochemicalcompaniesin the Netherlands,Germany and Belgium
M°t°f > petroleum hub in Rotterdam,Sweden and the UK

gasoline

Aviation fuel > Sweden,the Czech Republic,Finland,Denmarkand Switzerland

Diesel oil > Germany,theNetherlands,theUKand France

storagedepotsofglobaltrading companiesin Estonia,Denmarkand theNetherlands,and forfurthersaleoutside

Heavy fuel oil > ofEurope

There was a considerable, 25%, year-on-year increase in diesel oil exports. Heavy fuel oil was the Company's
key export product in volume terms (over 1m tonnes in 2013).

Export sales by land have gained importance. The value of exports delivered by land in 2013 was up by almost
17% year on year, though export by land still accounts for a little more than 3% of the Company’s total export
sales. Most of Grupa LOTOS' export customers were international vertically integrated oil companies and
trading houses. None of the customers accounted for more than 5% of total revenue.

LOTQOS service stations

In 2013, work continued on expanding the LOTOS retail network by adding new stations to the CODO
(company owned) and DOFO (franchise operated) chains. In the economy segment, we were rapidly
developing the LOTOS Optima business concept. As a consequence of decisions made in previous years, 2013
was another period in which we curtailed retail sales through DODO service stations.

Number of LOTOS and LOTOS Optima service stations at the end of 2013

142 CODO stations

LOTOS 14 MSAs

Premium segment 115DOFO stations
17DODO stations

LOTOS Optima 100CODO stations

Economy segment 51DOFO stations

In an effort to expand the chain of CODO stations, properties are acquired, with the most important criterion
for selecting a location being the sales potential of the local market. In 2013, we added 34 new locations to
the CODO chain, including 3 MSAs (Motor Service Areas). Over the same time, the DOFO chain was
expanded to include 11 new service stations.

Non-fuel sales represent a significant part of the business of the LOTOS service station chain. In 2013, we
continued to develop the Cafe Punkt food service concept, expanding its food and product offering. Among
the key initiatives launched in 2013 and continued in 2014 is the standardisation project, aimed to establish a
uniform visual identity for the LOTOS retail chain.

Other achievements in the service station chain segment in 2013 included:
® Promotion of sales activity,

® Optimisation of margin on product sales from service station shops,
e Enhancement of the coffee offering at service stations, by
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o Opening new cafésat morethan 100 locations,
o Useof a special blend of freshly ground coffee exclusively for the LOTOS chain and introduction
of larger, 300 m| coffee cups,

e Implementation of a financial efficiency improvement programme for the retail chain.

LOTOS Paliwa markets ready-made fuels, meeting the quality requirements provided for in industrial
standards and legal regulations. To ensure compliance, we regularly monitor the quality of fuels sold through
the service station chain in terms of their conformity with the relevant requirements. Annual inspections of all
fuel types are carried out at each station operating within the LOTOS chain.

In the case of fuel sales from CODO stations, LOTOS Paliwa sets the standards, and supervises adherence to
those standards by the station managers. The process is governed by separate agreements and procedures,
which are improved on a regular basis. As part of the established health and safety-related standards, the
following areas are overseen and assessed for conformity with the applicable requirements:

Fuel supplies,

Supervision over the stations’ fuel infrastructure,

Procedures in case of accidents and failures,

Standards of safety with respect to customer service and fuel sales,

Environmental management in accordance with the PN-EN ISO 14001:2005 standard,
Occupational health and safety management in accordance with the PN-N-18001:2004
standard.

LOTOS Paliwa'’s activity involving retail sales through CODO stations, conducted by the station managers, is
strongly connected with the safety of service station personnel and customers. Given their nature, service
stations are retail facilities exposed to the risk of aggressive behaviour by persons who are not customers.
This kind of behaviour may pose a threat to the physical safety of the station’s employees. In 2013, 11 such
instances were recorded.

We attach great importance to the safety of the personnel and customers of our service stations. With that
end in mind, we have been taking and enhancing various technical, organizational and HR measures
designed to prevent any potentially dangerous incidents.

Technical measures - protecting the service stations through:

Appropriate lighting,

Surveillance with the use of video cameras,

Technical protection of building entrances and passageways,
Alarm systems.

Organizational measures:

® Establishment and enhancement of procedures and instructions for service station managers and
personnel telling them how to behave in case of specific hazards,
Establishment and enhancement of physical security procedures,
Employment of specialist providers of security services,
Investigating incidents that have taken place at service stations and taking appropriate preventive
measures.
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In 2013, we reviewed our procedures relating to property security and provision of third-party security
services.

HR measures:

® Provision of station managers with instructions on how to behave in case of hazards related to
dangerousincidents and how to prevent such hazards,

® Provision of training to managers and personnel of new service stations. In 2013, training in safety
procedures was provided to personnel of a few dozen service stations.

Last year, no instances were recorded of our products or services negatively affecting the health of LOTOS
Paliwa’s employees. The managers of service stations, in their capacity of employers, are required by law to
monitor the work environment at the stations and to ensure that all employees undergo medical check-ups.

In retail sales, information concerning the properties of fuels sold by the company is provided at a customer’s
request in the form of Safety Data Sheets for hazardous substances. Service station dealers are required to
provide, at a customer’s request, Safety Data Sheets for hazardous substances included in goods available
from their stations.

Extent of the product and service information required by LOTOS Paliwa's internal procedures

" Source of the product or service components
" Content, particularly substances that might have an environmental/social impact
" Safe use of the product or service

+ Disposal of the product and its environmental/social impact

In 2013, LOTOS Paliwa identified no incidents of non-compliance with the regulations and voluntary codes
concerning the marking and provision of information on fuel products. No significant penalties for non-
compliance with laws or regulations concerning the provision and use of products and services were
imposed on the company, either.

Challenges in strategy implementation until 2015

In line with our business strategy for fuel sales, we will primarily aim to further reinforce our market presence
by:

Maintaining a 30% share in the domestic fuel market;
Achieving sales 15% in excess of the fuel production capacities of the Grupa LOTOS refinery;

Securing a 10% share in the domestic retail market through sustainable development of the
service station chain and enhanced sales from the existing chain.

In sales of lubricating oils, the key objective is to retain our leading position on the domestic market.

In sales of other products, the key objective is to optimise financial performance by leveraging our resources
and market conditions.
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Customer satisfaction

In line with our CSR strategy, which supports the effective pursuit of our business strategy, the primary
objective is to build lasting customer relationships through a focus on understanding customers’ needs and
delivering the expected product quali